THE TOWN OF DUNDEE, FLORIDA



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR

1 – FIRE DEPARTMENT MINI PUMPER

RFP NUMBER: 24-05

Responses are due by 4:00 PM on December 27, 2023

MAIL OR DELIVER RESPONSES TO:

Town of Dundee Attn: RFP 24-05 202 East Main Street PO BOX 1000 Dundee, FL 33838

Contact:

Trevor Douthat
Town Clerk
Town of Dundee
tdouthat@townofdundee.com
(863) 438-8330, Ext 258

TABLE OF CONTENTS

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL	
TERMS AND CONDITIONS	
WORK SUMMARY	
PROPOSAL/BID FORM	
DRAWINGS/DEPICTIONS	
AFFIDAVIT CERTIFICATION IMMIGRATION	A1
AFFIDAVIT NONCOLLUSION	A2
CERTIFICATION OF DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE	A3
SALES TAX SAVINGS FORM	A4



RFP 24-05

FY 2023-2024 – 1 FIRE DEPARTMENT MINI PUMPER

Sealed Bids marked "SEALED BID – FY 2023-2024 – 1 FIRE DEPARTMENT MINI PUMPER" will be received by the Town Manager of the Town of Dundee, Florida, until 4:00 PM on December 27, 2023 at P.O. Box 1000, 202 East Main Street, Dundee, Florida 33838, for the following:

The Town of Dundee (the "Town") is seeking proposals on and/or for one (1) FIRE DEPARTMENT PUMP TRUCK (the "Truck") in accordance with the requirements and specification set forth herein and as depicted by **Exhibit "A"** which is attached to the Work Summary and incorporated herein by reference. The Town requires certain items to be included in the Bid, as follows: (1) options to finance though the vendor/dealership or, in the alternative, the right and ability for the Town to select, in its sole discretion, to finance though a bank or lending institution the purchase price of and/or for the one (1) FIRE DEPARTMENT PUMP TRUCK; and (2) the Truck must be delivered and ready for route.

In addition to the aforementioned, the information and specification(s) required for the Truck and this RFP 24-05 are, as follows:

- 1. Bidder must provide Lead time of the units. (from build to delivery)
- 2. Budder must include all warranty on the body and chassis. (3-5year preferred)
- 3. List of references that currently operate these styles of trucks.

SPECIFICATIONS:

• **DIMENSIONS:**

- Overall, Height, < 96.00"
- Overall Length < 26'
- Overall Width, 96.00"
- Pump Module Width, 24.00"
- Angle of Approach, NFPA Minimum, 8 Degrees
- Angle of Departure, NFPA Minimum, 8 Degrees
- NFPA 1901 REQUIREMENTS -INITIAL ATTACK 7.000 02/14/22

NFPA 1901-2016

- NFPA 1901-2016 Compliance, Initial Attack
- Center of Gravity, Calculated
- Road Test Certification

PLACARDS and LABELING

- Label, FAMA #7: Seated and Belted
- Label, FAMA #10: Cab Equipment Mounting
- Label, FAMA #15: "Helmet Worn in Cab"
- Label, FAMA #17: "Vehicle Backing"
- Label, Chassis Data Labels, 1901
- Label, Overall, Height, Length, GVWR
- Label, Warning, "No Ride Rear Step"

• COMMERCIAL CHASSIS

- Ford, F-550, DRW, 4x4, 4-Dr, 203.7" WB, XL
- Payload Plus Upgrade Package
- Elec Shift on the Fly (ESOF)
- Skid Plates (Extended and Crew Cab Only)
- Engine, 6.7L Power Stroke Diesel
- Transmission, Automatic, 10-Spd
- Fire/Rescue Prep Pkg
- Operator Commanded Regeneration (OCR)
- Fuel Tank, 40 Gallon, Aft, w/ Aux fuel tap
- Rear Axle Ratio, Limited Slip, 4.88 (6.7L)
- Block Heater
- PTO Provision
- Cab, Crew, 4-Dr
- Power Equipment Group
- 40/20/40 Vinyl Front Bench Seat
- 60/40 Rr Bench Seat
- XL Value Package
- Tires and Wheels: F450/550 (4x4)
- Wheels, 19.50" Steel
- Tires, 225/70Rx19.5G BSW
- Ford Warranty, Superduty

CHASSIS PAINT COLOR 1

- Cab Paint, Single Color, Race Red, PQ
- CHASSIS MODS 7.000 02/14/22

• CAB STEPS, RUNNING BRDS -

■ FORD OPTION: Running Boards, Crew Cab, NFPA

WINCHES/ BRUSH GUARDS/ REPLACEMENT BUMPERS

- NO Front Bumper Replacement PTS
- FORD OPTION: Grille Guard, w/ winch Mount
- Winch, 12,000 lbs., Wire Rope

• HITCHES-TIE OFFS-RECEIVERS

- Receiver Hitch, Rear, Class V, 2.00"
- Trailer Hitch Power Plug, 12V, 7 Prong

FORD SEATING

- FORD/ RAM OPTION: Center Seat Removal for Console
- Seating Capacity, Four (4)
- FORD OPTION: SCBA Seats, Valor, Rear, (2), w/ EZ Lock SCBA Brkt
- Label, FAMA #11: SCBA Seat Insert
- Seat Belt Web Length, Commercial Chassis, Non-NFPA 2016 Compliant
- Seat Belts, Supplied by Chassis Mfgr, Ford, Non-NFPA 2016

• TIRE PRESSURE MONITORING SYSTEMS

Tire Prss Monitoring Dvce, LED AirGuard, 6 Wheel

WHEEL TRIM and COVERS

■ FORD OPTION: Wheel Covers, SS, 19.50"

EXHAUST SYSTEMS

- Chassis Exhaust Extension, RH Side
- Exhaust Heat Shield, Under Body Components
- Label, FAMA #04: "Hot Exhaust Dangers"

• FRAME PREP and MODIFICATIONS

- Chassis Preparation, Commercial
- Front Tow Hooks Chassis Supplied
- Not Required, Vehicle Data Recorder & Seat Belt Monitor, Ford, Non-NFPA 2017

• CONSOLES and EQUIPMENT

- FORD OPTION: Center Console, Aluminum
- Console Option, Cup Holders, (2)

BATTERY SYSTEMS and SHORELINE PLUG-INS

- Master Body Disconnect Switch
- Indicator Light, Mst Body Disconnect, Green
- Kussmaul, Chief 4012, 40 Amp
- Battery Charger Location, Per Manufacturer
- Shore Power Inlet, Kussmaul, Super Auto-Eject 20A
- Auto-Eject Mating Plug, NEMA 5-20P
- Chief Status Center w/ Cover, 091-55-266-YW, Yellow
- Auto Eject Location, Per Manufacturer
- Aux Air Cmp, Kussmaul, 12V
- Aux Air Compressor Location, Per Manufacturer

• BACK UP ALARM

- Back Up Alarm, 97db
- 12 VOLT POWER SOURCES
- USB Port, Kussmaul, Dual, 4.8amp total, 2.4amp each

• PUMP AND PLUMBING - FOUTS 4 - 7.000 02/14/22

- Pump Package, Side mount, Fouts 4, Hale, DSD, Midship
- Fire Pump, Hale DSD, 1 Stage, Midship
- Pump Warranty, Hale, 5 Year (2 Year Parts & Labor, Parts Only Years 3-5)
- Pump Manuals, Elec, (2)
- Pump Flow Rating, Hale, DSD, 1500 GPM
- Altitude Requirements, 0' to 2000 Feet Above Sea Level

• MASTER INTAKE(S)

- Intake, 6.00", NST, Ungated, LH Side, Pump Panel
- Cap, 6.00", Chrome Long Hndl, NST, Fouts Logo
- Intake, 6.00", NST, Ungated, RH Side, Pump Panel
- Cap, 6.00", Chrome Long Hndl, NST, Fouts Logo

PUMP MODS

Pump Installation, Midship Split-Shaft, Ford 450/550 1

• PUMP SHIFT, FORD, HALE, MIDSHIP

- Pump Shift, Hale, Air, Midship w/ Air System Install 1
- Pump Shift Control, Elec Over Air, IC 1

• PUMP EQUIPMENT, HALE,

- Valves: Akron, Gen II 1
- Drains, 0.75" Mnl, Class1, Lift Handle 1
- Discharge Gauges, Class 1, 2.50", (0-400 psi), White Face 1
- Gauge Bezels, Class 1, Chrome 1
- Pump Primer, Hale ESP-PVG, 12V Elec, Fluidless 1
- Fuse, 250 amp, Primer 1
- Anodes, (3), Alloy: 2 Suction, 1 Discharge, Hale 1
- Thermal Relief Valve, TRV-120 1
- Pump Cooler Valve, Hale 1

PRESSURE GOVERNOR

Governor, Class 1, Sentry 1

• GATED INTAKE

- Aux Suction, 2.50", LH Side, Pump Panel 1
- Intake Valve Control, Mnl Swing Type-Adjacent 1
- Plug, 2.50" Chrome, NST, w/Chain

• TANK TO PUMP VALVE

Valve, Tank to Pump, 3.00", Air 1

• TANK FILL VALVE

- Valve, Tank Re-Fill, 2.00" 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Lckng, Class 1, CP T-Hndl 1

• DISCHARGE, LH PANEL

- Discharge, 2.50", LH Side, Pump Panel 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Locking, Class 1, CP T-handle 1
- Discharge, Elbow, 30d, 2.50" MNST, Integral, Class1 1
- Cap, 2.50" Chrome, NST, w/ Chain 1
- Discharge NOT Foam Capable 1

• DISCHARGE, RH FRONT PANEL

- Discharge, 3.00", RH Side, Pump Panel, Front 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Locking, Class 1, CP T-handle 1
- Discharge, Elbow, 30d, 3.00" MNST, Integral, Class1 1
- Cap, 3.00" Chrome, NST, w/ Chain 1
- Discharge NOT Foam Capable 1

• DISCHARGE, RH REAR PANEL

- Discharge, Push Pull, 3.00" x 4.00", RH Side, Pump Panel, Rr 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Locking, Class 1, CP T-handle 1
- Discharge Adapt, Straight, 3.00"-4.00" MNST, Class1 1
- Discharge Elbow, TFT, 30 deg, 5.00"Stz S x 4.00"F NH S RL 1
- Cap, TFT, 5.00" Storz w/ Lanyard 1
- Discharge NOT Foam Capable 1

• DISCHARGE, HOSEBED PRE-CONNECT

- Discharge, Preconnect, 2.50", Front of Hose Bed, RH 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Locking, Class 1, CP T-handle 1
- Discharge NOT Foam Capable

• DISCHARGE(S), CROSSLAYS

- Crosslay Discharge #1- One (1) 1.75", Above Mod 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Locking, Class 1, CP T-handle 1
- Discharge Foam Capable 1
- Crosslay Discharge #2- One (1) 1.75", Above Mod 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Locking, Class 1, CP T-handle 1
- Discharge Foam Capable 1

MASTER GAUGES

Master Gauges, Pressure Governor 1

• TANK LEVEL INDICATOR(S)

Water Level Gauge, Class1 "ITL-40B", Blue, Pump Panel 1

PUMP ENCLOSURE

- Pump House, Side Mount, Ext Alum, 24.00" 1
- Pump Panels, 14 GA, Brushed Finish, 304 SS 1

CROSSLAYS/ DUNNAGE AREA

- Crosslay Config, (2) Hosebeds, Double Stack 1
- Crosslay Divider, 3/16" Alum, w/ Hand Holes 1
- Vinyl Crosslay Cover, Red 1

• PUMP PANEL/ ENCLOSURE LIGHTS

- Pump Panel Lt, LH Side, LED, Strip 1
- Pump Panel Lt, RH Side, LED, Strip 1
- Pump Compt. Lht, LED Strip 1
- Lt, Controls, Switch on pump panel 1

PUMP MODULE RUNNING BOARDS 1

- Running Board, LH Pump Panel, Alum T/P, TM 1
- Running Board, RH Pump Panel, Alum T/P, TM

• PUMP PANEL LABELING

- Label, FAMA 22, Hose Restraint Required 1
- Label, FAMA 18, Intake and Discharge Cap Pressure 1
- Label, FAMA 25, Trained Personal Only 1
- Label, Pump ID Plate, IC 1
- Labels, Color Coded, Innovative Controls 1

FOAM SYSTEM 1

- Foam System, Hale SmartFOAM, 2.1A 1
- Foam Level Gauge, Class A, Class1 "ITLF-40G", Green 1

RESCUE BODY

• WATER TANK 1

- Tank, 300 Gal Water, 15 Gal Foam, Poly 1
- Label, FAMA 19, "Foam Type Mixing" 1

BODY 1

■ Alum, 108.00" L x 95.00" W, Body Const 1

• LEFT SIDE COMPARTMENTS 1

- L1, Ahd Rr Whls Full Ht Comp't Roll Up Dr 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1

- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 41.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Swtch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1
- Shelf Trac, Vertical, Alum 1
- Shelf, Alum, Adjustable, ea 1
- L2, Upr Hgh Sde Sgle Comp't Roll Up Dr 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 21.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Swtch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1
- Shelf Trac, Vertical, Alum 1
- Shelf, Alum, Adjustable, ea 1
- L3, Bhnd Rr Whls Full Ht Comp't Roll Up Dr 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 41.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Swtch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1
- Shelf Trac, Vertical, Alum 1
- Shelf, Alum, Adjustable, ea 1

RIGHT SIDE COMPARTMENTS

- R1, Ahd Rr Whls Full Ht Comp't Roll Up Dr 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 41.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Swtch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1
- Shelf Trac, Vertical, Alum 1
- Shelf, Alum, Adjustable, ea 1
- R2, Upr Hgh Sde Sgle Comp't Roll Up Dr 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 21.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Swtch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1
- Shelf Trac, Vertical, Alum 1
- Shelf, Alum, Adjustable, ea 1
- R3, Bhnd Rr Whls Full Ht Comp't Roll Up Dr 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 41.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Switch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1
- Shelf Trac, Vertical, Alum 1
- Shelf, Alum, Adjustable, ea 1

• REAR BODY DESIGN- FLAT BACK 1

- CR1, Rr Cntr Comp't Full Ht Roll Up 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 13.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Swtch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1

HOSEBED

- Hose Bed, Grating, Extrd Alum 1
- Hose Bed, Cross Divider, Fwd 22.00" 1
- Hose Bed Dimensions: 49.75"W x 85.00"L x 15.00"T 1
- Hose Bed, Strge Cpcty, 34.00 Cubic Feet 1
- NO Hose Bed Storage Capacity PTS 1
- Hosebed, Divider, 3/16" Alum, ea 1
- Hsbd Cvr, Vnyl, Velcro, Red 1

• EQUIPMENT STORAGE

- Tray, Suction Hose, (2), LH, Above Compt 1
- Hose Capacity, (2) 8' Sections 1
- Ladder Mtg, RH, Above Compt, (1) PEL-12 1

• WHEEL WELL AREA

- Whl Well Cmpt, (3), Sngl SCBA Tubes, Alum Dr 1
- Whl Well Prv, LH Rear, Diesel Fuel Fluid Fill 1

REAR STEPS

- Folding Steps, (2) LH Rear, IC 3004234, w/ (1) LED Step Lt 1
- Lt, Controls, Work/ Step Lts, Park Brake 1

• EXTERIOR GRAB RAILS

• Grab Rails, (2), Rear, Vertical 1

COMPARTMENT PACKAGES

NO FMI Compartment Packages - PTS 1

• 12V ELECTRICAL SYSTEM - FOUTS 4 - 7.000 02/14/22 1 ELECTRICAL Electrical, 12V 1

NFPA Electrical System 1

• GROUND LIGHTING

- Ground Lts, (4), Chassis, 4-Dr. LED 1
- Ground Lts, (2) Forward Rr Whls, LED 1
- Ground Lts, (2) Rr Step, LED 1
- Lt Swtch, Ground Lts w/ Park Brake 1

DOOR OPEN / HAZARD WARNING LIGHT INDICATOR SYSTEMS

Lht, Hazard, LED, Flashing, Red

REAR DIRECTIONALS/ DOT LIGHTS

- Rear Brake/Tail/Turn/Backup, Whelen M6 1
- Tail/Brake Lts, Whelen, LED, M6, Red Lens (Pair) 1
- Turn Signals, Whelen, LED, M6, Amber Lens (Pair) 1
- Backup Lts, Whelen, LED, M6 (Pair) 1
- Tail Lt Bezel, 4 Lights, Whln M6 (Pair), ABS Chrome 1
- Fouts4 Body LED Marker Lights 1
- Marker Lts, 0.75" LED, DOT Required 1
- Reflectors, Red, (4), Rear Body 1
- Lht, License Plate, LED 1

• TRAFFIC ADVISOR

■ Traffic Advisor, Whelen TAL85, 48.00" LED 1

• SCENE LIGHT(S) - UPPER BODY 1

- Scene Lts, Whelen, Side Facing Upper Front, (2) M6ZC 1
- Scene Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6ZC, LED, Ea 1
- Scene Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6ZC, LED, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M6 Series, Ea 2
- Scene Lts, Whelen, Side Facing Upper Rear, (2) M6ZC 1
- Scene Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6ZC, LED, Ea 1
- Scene Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6ZC, LED, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M6 Series, Ea 2
- Scene Lts, Whelen, Upper Rear Body, (2) M6ZC 1
- Scene Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6ZC, LED, Ea 1
- Scene Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6ZC, LED, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M6 Series, Ea 2
- Left Scene Swtch, Rocker, Single Switch, Cab 1
- Rear Scene Swtch, Rocker, Single Switch, Cab 1
- Right Scene Swtch, Rocker, Single Switch, Cab 1
- Scene Lt Swtch , Rr Scene Lts, Auto w/ Reverse 1

BACKUP CAMERA

- Rearview Camera, 7.00" Color Monitor
- Monitor Location, Rear View Mirror

WARNING LIGHTS PACKAGE

Warning light flash pattern, Default NFPA 1

LIGHTBAR

- Lht Bar, Federal, 53" Vision SLR 1
- White Lights, "Blocking Right of Way" 1
- Lt Bar Swtch, Rocker, Single Switch/ Master Warn, Cab 1
- Lightbar Mount, MKEZ7 1

UPPER LEVEL WARNING LIGHTS 1

- Warn Lts, Whelen, Side Facing Upper Front, (2) M6 Series LED 1
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M6 Series, Ea 2
- Warn Lts, Whelen, Side Facing Upper Rr, (2) M6 Series LED 1
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M6 Series, Ea 2
- Warn Lts, Whelen, Upper Rear, (2) M6 Series LED 1
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M6 Series, Ea 2
- Upper Warn Lt. Swtch, Rocker, Single Switch/ Master Warn, Cab 1

• LOWER LEVEL WARNING LIGHTS 1

- Warning Lts, Whelen, Lower Warn Lt, (2) M4 Series LED 1
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M4 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M4 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M4 Series, Ea 2
- Warning Lts, Whelen, Intrsct, (2) M4 Series LED 1
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M4 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M4 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M4 Series, Ea 2
- Warning Lts, Whelen, Low Mid Body (2) M7 Series LED 1
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M7 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M7 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M7 Series, Ea 1
- Warning Lts, Whelen, Low Rr (2) M6 Series LED
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Bezel(s), Taillights
- Lower Warn Lt. Swtch, Rocker, Single Switch/ Master Warn, Cab

AUDIBLE WARNING

- Siren, Whelen Howler Siren Amplifier
- Siren, Whelen, 295SLSA1, 100/200 watt
- Speaker, Whelen, 100 watt, SA315, RH Side
- Label, FAMA #42: "Siren Noise"

• PAINT/ PREP/ STRIPE

PAINT AND FINISH

- Cab, Standard Color
- Anti-Corrosion Protection, ECK
- Body Undercoating, Rescue Body
- Compartment Interiors, Side, Zolatone

• PAINT TWO TONE CAB

Wheel Rims, As Provided with Chassis

LETTERING AND STRIPING

- Rear Cheveron Striping, Red/ Florescent Yellow-Geen
- DEALER SUPPLIED GRAPHICS PACKAGE

• LOOSE EQUIPMENT

• WARRANTY REQUIREMENTS

- General Warranty, (1) Year
- Body Warranty, Alum, (10) Year
- Plumbing Warranty, Stainless Steel, (10) Year
- Paint Warranty, (5) Year, PPG
- Electrical Warranty, (2) Year
- Akron Brass Warranty, (10) Year Valves, (5) Year Elec
- Whelen Warranty, (2) Year Siren, (5) Year LED
- Whelen Warranty, Limited Lifetime
- Kussmaul Warranty

On Thursday, December 28, 2023 at 10:00 AM, at Town Hall, 202 East Main Street, Dundee, Florida 33838, bids will then and there be publicly opened and read aloud at a meeting of the Purchasing Review Committee.

The project specified shall be furnished in accordance with this Request for Proposal, Work Specifications, Terms and Conditions, and Work Summary attached hereto and made a part hereof as if fully set forth herein.

Questions may be submitted to the Town Clerk until 3:30pm on December 20, 2023. For more information regarding this RFP 24-05, please contact Trevor Douthat, (863) 438-8330 or by e-mail at tdouthat@townofdundee.com.

Public Records - It is the policy of this state that all state, county, and municipal records are open for personal inspection and copying by any person. Providing access to public records is a duty of each governmental agency. §119.01, Fla. Stat. (2019). As such, do not submit any document(s) that you do not want to be made public. Bidders shall submit bids on the Proposal and Bid Form furnished by the Town. Please note the NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT OF PRIME BIDDER form which must also be completed. A W-9 form must be attached to the bid when returned by the responding vendor. Payment will be rendered to the name and ID appearing on the W-9. A client reference list that includes at least three (3) references and a summary of the bidders' qualifications and experience should be submitted in the bid packet. The bidder shall submit a tentative timeline detailing the process and anticipated timeline necessary to complete the project.

An original and five (5) copies, a total of six (6), of the proposal shall be submitted in sealed envelopes/packages addressed to Trevor Douthat, Town Clerk, Town of Dundee, Florida, and marked RFP 24-05: FY 2024-2025 – 1 FIRE DEPARTMENT MINI PUMPER.

The Town of Dundee welcomes your response to this **RFP 24-05**. The Town of Dundee reserves the right to reject any proposal found to be non-responsive, vague, non-conforming, or irresponsible. The Town of Dundee may withdraw all or part of this **RFP 24-05** at any time to protect its best interest. The desire of the Town of Dundee to pursue proposals shall in no way obligate the Town to compensate you for your efforts or to execute a contract. All proposers are asked to be thorough yet concise in the response(s) to this **RFP 24-05**. The failure to provide a response in the manner prescribed herein shall be grounds for disqualification.

The Town of Dundee, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Florida, reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received pursuant to this RFP 24-05, re-advertise RFP 24-05, waive informalities, and the Town of Dundee may enter into a contract determined, in the sole discretion of the Town of Dundee, to be in its best interest, in accordance with the Terms and Conditions referenced herein.

TOWN OF DUNDEE – GENERAL PROVISION CLAUSE(S) TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1) GENERAL CONDITIONS AND STATE LAW COMPLIANCE:

I. General Conditions:

- a) Bidders are required to submit their proposals subject to and upon the express terms and conditions set forth herein.
- b) Bidders shall thoroughly examine the specifications, instructions, all other Contract Documents (as defined in Section 2), visit the site of this project (if applicable) and fully acquaint itself, at its own risk, with all conditions which may affect completion of this project and/or delivery of bid items.
- c) These Terms and Conditions and any Contract Documents are subject and subordinate to any existing or future state, federal, or local law, regulation, or written policy, which may be applicable hereto, including any applicable building codes.
- d) Notwithstanding anything in this **Request For Proposal FY 2023-2024 1 FIRE DEPARTMENT MINI PUMPER No. 24-05** (the "RFP") to the contrary, the obligation of the Town of Dundee (the "Town") to furnish payment is expressly subject to appropriation(s) of sufficient public funds by the Town Commission of the Town of Dundee, Florida. In the event the Town Commission of the Town of Dundee fails to appropriate sufficient funds to satisfy the payment obligations to the successful bidder of any kind or type, the Town and/or successful bidder may immediately terminate any agreement entered into pursuant to this RFP and be released from any future responsibility or liability thereunder.

e) **PUBLIC RECORDS**:

The Town and Contractor (as defined in Section 2) agree that the Contractor shall comply with Florida's public records laws to specifically include the following:

Public Records. Consultant/Bidder/Contractor agrees to:

- i) Keep and maintain public records required by the public agency to perform the service.
- ii) Upon request from the public agency's custodian of public records, provide the public agency with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copies within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119 of the Florida Statutes or as otherwise provided by law.
- iii) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following completion of the contract if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the public agency.

- iv) Upon completion of the Contract (as defined in Section 2), transfer, at no cost, to the public agency all public records in possession of the Contractor or keep and maintain public records required by the public agency to perform the service. If the Contractor transfers all public records to the public agency upon completion of the Contract, the Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If the Contractor keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the Contract, the Contractor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to the public agency, upon request from the public agency's custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the public agency.
- f) IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT 863-438-8330, <a href="mailto:tdotto:t

If the Contractor does not comply with a public records request, the Town shall enforce the Contract provisions which may include immediate termination of the Contract.

- g) It shall be understood and agreed that by the submission of a proposal, the Contractor, if awarded a contract, shall save harmless and fully indemnify the Town and any of its officers, or agents from any and all damages that may, at any time, be imposed or claimed for infringement of any patent right, trademark, or copyright of any person or persons, association, or corporation, as the result of the use of such articles by the Town, or any of its officers, agents, or employees, and of which articles the Contractor is not the patentee, assignee, licensee, or lawfully entitled to sell same.
- h) It is the intent of the Town that this RFP promotes competitive bidding. It shall be the bidder's responsibility to advise the Town at the address noted on the cover letter, if any language, requirements, etc. inadvertently limits the requirements stated in this RFP to a single source. Such notification shall be received in writing not later than ten (10) days prior to the bid opening date.
- i) Bidders must possess any applicable business, contractor, or occupational licenses at the time of submission of the bid. The Town may request proof of such licensure. Bidders shall also obtain all permits required for this project.
- j) The Town shall be entitled to rely on the written representations of the bidder. No claims shall be paid by the Town unless in writing and approved by the Town. Additionally, sovereign immunity is not waived as to any verbal representations or comments made by the Town.
- k) Unless detailed elsewhere in the bid documents, proof of insurance naming the Town as an additional insured shall be required of the successful bidder (on any project requiring work, labor, and/or installation on Town property) with the following minimum coverage: workers compensation, general liability, and automobile insurance in an amount and form acceptable to the Town, with limits of not less than one-million dollars and zero cents (\$1,000,000.00).

II. State Law Compliance:

- a) Scrutinized Companies. Section 287.135 of the Florida Statutes states that a company is ineligible to, and may not, bid on, submit a proposal for, or enter into or renew a contract with the TOWN for goods or services in any amount if at the time of bidding on, submitting a proposal for, or entering into or renewing a contract if the company is on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List, created pursuant to Section 215.4725 of the Florida Statutes or is engaged in a boycott of Israel; or for One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00) or more if, at the time of bidding on submitting a proposal for, or entering into or renewing a contract, the company is on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, created pursuant to Section 215.473 of the Florida Statutes, or is engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria. By entering into the CONTRACT, CONTRACTOR certifies that it does not and did not at any time since the submission of a response to the initial solicitation participate in a boycott of Israel; that it is not on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List, Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List; and that it does not engage in business operations in Cuba or Syria. CONTRACTOR understands that a false certification may subject it to civil penalties, attorneys' fees and costs pursuant to Section 287.135 of the Florida Statutes and that the TOWN may terminate this RFP 24-05 and/or the CONTRACT at the TOWN's option if the CONTRACTOR is found to have submitted a false certification.
- b) *Public Entity Crimes; Convicted Vendor List.* A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017 of the Florida Statutes for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. By Entering into the CONTRACT, CONTRACTOR certifies that it is not on the convicted vendor list.
- c) *Drug-Free Workplace*. By entering into the CONTRACT, CONTRACTOR certifies that it has a drug-free workplace and has a substance abuse policy in accordance with and pursuant to Section 440.102 of the Florida Statutes.
- d) *E-Verify*. By entering into the CONTRACT, the CONTRACTOR becomes obligated to comply with the provisions of Section 448.095(5)(a), Florida Statutes, to register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all new employees of the CONTRACTOR and any subcontractor hired by the CONTRACTOR. If the CONTRACTOR enters into a contract with a subcontractor, the subcontractor must provide the CONTRACTOR with an affidavit attesting that the

subcontractor does not employ, contract with, or subcontract with, an unauthorized alien. Failure to comply will lead to termination of this CONTRACT, or if a subcontractor knowingly violates the statute, the subcontract must be terminated immediately. Any challenge to termination under this provision must be filed in the Circuit Court no later than 20 calendar days after the date of termination. If the CONTRACT is terminated for a violation of the statute by the CONTRACTOR, the CONTRACTOR may not be awarded a public contract for a period of one (1) year after the date of termination.

- e) No Consideration of Social, Political, and Ideological Interests. CONTRACTOR acknowledges receipt of notice from the TOWN of the provisions of Section 287.05701 of the Florida Statutes which prohibits local governments from giving preference to a prospective contractor based on the prospective contractor's social, political or ideological interests or requesting documentation from, or considering, a prospective contractor's social, political, or ideological interests when determining if the prospective contractor is a responsible vendor. CONTRACTOR affirms and agrees that the TOWN did not request any documentation about, or give any consideration to, the CONTRACTOR's social, political, or ideological interests in the award of this RFP 24-05 and/or the CONTRACT.
- f) Contracting with Foreign Entities. By entering into the CONTRACT, CONTRACTOR certifies that it is not owned by the government of the People's Republic of China, the Russian Federation, the Islamic Republic of Iran, the Democratic People's Republic of Korea, the Republic of Cuba, the Venezuelan regime of Nicolás Maduro, or the Syrian Arab Republic (collectively "Foreign Countries of Concern"), nor is it owned by any agency of or any other entity of significant control of any such government. Further, CONTRACTOR certifies that no government of a Foreign Country of Concern has a "controlling interest" in CONTRACTOR as the term is defined in Section 287.138(1)(a) of the Florida Statutes, nor is the CONTRACTOR organized under the laws of a Foreign Country of Concern, nor does the CONTRACTOR have its principal place of business located in a Foreign Country of Concern. If this RFP 24-05 and/or the CONTRACT permits the CONTRACTOR to access the personal identifying information of any individual, CONTRACTOR agrees to notify the TOWN in advance of any contemplated transaction that would cause CONTRACTOR to be disqualified from such access under Section 287.138 of the Florida Statutes. CONTRACTOR agrees to furnish the TOWN with an affidavit signed by an officer or representative of the CONTRACTOR under penalty of perjury at any time and upon request that the statements in this paragraph are true and correct.

2) **DEFINITIONS**

Words used in the RFP and/or Contract Documents any and all attachment(s) and/or exhibit(s) incorporated and made a part hereof shall possess their everyday and ordinary meaning, provided however, that where one (1) of the following listed terms is used, such term(s) shall possess the corresponding meaning, as follows:

- a) *APPLICABLE LAW*: Any contract entered into pursuant to this RFP shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida.
- b) **BUSINESS DAYS**: Any calendar day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or holiday which is recognized by the Town of Dundee, Florida.
- c) CALENDAR DAYS: Any and all days in a 365-day calendar year.
- d) *CHANGES*: The Town, without invalidating the Contract, may order changes, including additions, deletions, or modifications. The Parties recognize that said changes may affect price and time for performance, in which event appropriate adjustments will be considered. All such changes in the work shall be authorized in writing, signed by the Town Manager or his/her designee. The price and the time for performance may be changed only by Change Order Request. By written instructions to the Contractor, the Town may make minor changes in the work which are consistent with the purpose of the work, and which do not change the contract price or time for completion. The Town Manager shall be notified of any proposed changes in: (a) materials used, (b) manufacturing process, or (c) construction. However, changes shall not be binding upon the Town unless evidenced by a Change Order Request issued and signed by the Town Manager.
- e) **DAYS**: A calendar day unless specifically stated otherwise.
- f) **TOWN**: The Town of Dundee, Florida, a Florida municipal corporation, and/or its authorized representative vested with home rule authority pursuant to the Municipal Home Rule Powers Act, Chapter 166 of the Florida Statutes, and Article VIII, §2 of the Florida Constitution; and the Town is therefore vested with governmental, corporate and proprietary powers to enable it to conduct municipal government, perform municipal functions and render municipal services, including the general exercise of any power for municipal purposes.
- g) *CONTRACT*: The agreement entered into and executed by the Town and Contractor and includes, but shall not be limited to, the Contract Documents.
- h) *CONTRACTOR*: The successful bidder who enters into the Contract with the Town to complete the project set forth in the RFP.
- i) **DEFAULT**: Default in promised delivery of supplies, completion of project, or failure to meet specifications authorizes the Town to terminate the Contractor's right to proceed with the order/work by giving the Contractor written notice. The defaulting Contractor may, at the discretion of the Town, be charged the increase in cost(s) of obtaining the goods/services elsewhere.
- j) *CONTRACT DOCUMENTS*: The RFP; Terms and Conditions; Contract; Bond; Performance Bond; Maintenance Bond; Contract Bond; Special Provisions; Specifications; Technical Specifications; Proposal and Bid Form; Engineering Plans

- and/or Drawings; Addenda issued before, during and after the bidding period for the RFP; Change Orders issued after the Contract is let; and any other document incorporated by reference and/or annexed hereto.
- k) INDEMNIFY / INDEMNIFICATION: Contractor shall hold harmless, indemnify, and defend the Town, its elected officials, appointed officers, and employees, representatives, or agents, against any claims, action, loss, damage, injury, liability, tax, assessment, cost or expense of whatever kind (including, but not by way of limitation, attorneys' fees and court costs (in bankruptcy, trial and appellate matters in any judicial and/or administrative tribunal) arising out of and/or incidental to the Contractor performance of this Contract. Other specific references to the Contractor duty to indemnify the Town and hold it harmless, which may be set forth herein, shall be construed as in addition to, and not as a limitation of the requirements of this section. The Town shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorneys' fees, including trial and appellate, and court costs in the event judicial and/or administrative enforcement of this Contractor indemnity is required.
- l) *INSPECTION*: The goods and services purchased are subject to the inspection and approval by the Town. The Town reserves the right to reject goods and services which do not conform to provisions of the Contract Documents.
- m) *INSURANCE*: As specified in the Contract Documents.
- n) *LIMITATION ON MUNICIPAL INDEMNITY*: To the extent that the Contract calls for the Town to indemnify any party thereto, the following sentence shall be appended to the indemnity and shall control the indemnity as if set forth therein, as follows:
 - i) "Provided, however, that regardless of whether any such obligations incurred hereunder are based on tort, contract, statute, strict liability, negligence, product liability or otherwise, the obligations of the Town of Dundee under this indemnification provision shall be limited in the same manner that would have applied if such obligations were based on, or arose out of, an action at law to recover damages in tort and were subject to Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, as that section existed at the inception of this Contract." Provided further, no waiver of the Town's sovereign immunity is intended to be made herein.
 - ii) The addition of this language shall not be construed to create Town indemnifications where none are expressly made in the terms and conditions of the contract or agreement.
- o) **STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE**: No bids submitted shall be considered unless the bidder warrants that, upon execution of a Contract with the Town, it shall:
 - i) not engage in employment practices that have the effect of discriminating against employees or prospective employees because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, handicap, or marital status; and

- ii) will submit such reports as the Town may thereafter require to assure compliance.
- p) **SUB-CONTRACTOR**: An individual, person, firm, company, corporation, association, entity, society, or group which enters into a contract with the Contractor to do a portion of the work on and/or for the project.
- q) *TITLE*: The risk of loss of goods covered by the Contract Documents shall remain with the Seller and/or Contractor until the goods have been delivered to a designated site and actually received by the Town. Any damage to the material and equipment, or loss of any kind, occasioned in transit shall be borne by the Seller and/or Contractor.
- r) WARRANTY: The Contractor shall not incorporate in the work of a project any materials or equipment subject to a chattel mortgage, a conditional sales contract, or any other agreement permitting a vendor to retain an interest. The Contractor shall warrant clear title to all materials and equipment incorporated in the work when the project is completed, and the Contractor shall deliver to the Town the improvements it has incorporated free of any lien or claim. The provisions of this section shall be included in all contracts with vendors and Sub-Contractors. Vendors who furnish materials without a formal contract shall be given notice by the Contractor that this provision exists.
- s) *VENUE*: Any legal or equitable action or proceeding concerning this Contract shall be brought in the State Courts of Polk County, Florida.

3) INTERPRETATIONS OR ADDENDA:

- a) No oral interpretation will be made to any Contractor as to the meaning of the Contract Documents or any part thereof to include any error, omission, discrepancy, or vagueness. Every request for such an interpretation shall be made in writing to the Town Manager. Any inquiry received prior to the cut-off time and date for questions will be given consideration. Where necessary, interpretations made to a Contractor will be in the form of an Addendum to the Contract Documents ("Addenda"), and when issued by the Town, will be on file and available to the public upon request at the Town.
- b) The Town shall not be responsible for the safe delivery of the Addenda and/or notification of same. It shall be the Contractor responsibility to make inquiry as to the Addenda issued. All such Addenda shall become part of the Contract Documents, whether received or not.

4) MANUFACTURER'S NAMES AND APPROVED EQUIVALENTS:

a) Unless specifically set forth in the specifications, any manufacturer's names, trade names, brand names, information and/or catalog numbers listed in a specification are for information and not intended to unfairly limit competition. The Contractor may offer any brand for which they are an authorized representative, which meets or exceeds the specification(s) for any item(s) and/or deliverables required in the RFP. If bids are based on equivalent products, indicate on the Bid Form (see attachment), the manufacturer's name and number. The Contractor shall submit with their proposal descriptive literature and/or complete specifications. Reference to literature submitted with a previous bid will not satisfy the provision. The Contractor shall also explain in detail the reasons why the proposed equivalent will meet the specifications and not be considered an exception thereto. Bids which do not comply with these requirements are subject to rejection within the discretion of the Town.

b) Alternate bids shall not be considered unless alternate bids are specifically required by the technical specifications set forth in the Contract Documents. For purposes of this provision, alternate bids shall mean any bid which deviates from the specific type of product; method of construction; or plans specified in the RFP.

5) SAMPLES:

Samples of products, when called for, must be furnished free of expense and may, upon request, be returned at the Contractor expense. Each individual sample must be labeled with the Contractor name, manufacturer's name brand name and number, bid number and item reference. If forwarding instructions, payment for postage, and/or pick-up, is not made by the Contractor within ninety (90) days of the bid opening, the commodities shall be disposed of by the Town.

6) PROTEST PROCEDURES:

The Town encourages prompt and fair handling of all complaints and disputes with the business community. In order to resolve disputed matters in a fair, timely and equitable manner, without fear of retribution on the part of a vendor or person, the following shall apply:

- a) All formal responses to the RFP shall include the following statement: "NOTE: THE FAILURE TO FOLLOW THE BID PROTEST PROCEDURE REQUIREMENTS WITHIN THE TIME FRAMES PRESCRIBED HEREIN AS ESTABLISHED BY THE TOWN OF DUNDEE, FLORIDA, SHALL CONSTITUTE A WAIVER OF BIDDERS PROTEST AND ANY RESULTING CLAIMS."
- b) **RIGHT TO PROTEST:** Any aggrieved, actual, or prospective bidder in connection with the RFP may protest to the Town Manager of the Town prior to the award of a contract by the Town Commission of the Town of Dundee.
- c) **NOTIFICATION:** The Town shall post all recommendation of awards available for review by the General Public.
- d) **INITIAL NOTICE:** Any person adversely affected by an intended decision or action with respect to the initial recommendation of award of any bid or action shall file a written notice of intent to file a protest. For the purpose of computation of time, the initial notice of intent to file a protest must be received by the Town Manager no later

than 3:00 p.m. on the third (3rd) workday following the date of the notice of the initial recommendation of award (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and legal Town holidays).

In addition, a non-refundable protest bond (the "Bond") in the amount of one thousand dollars and zero cents (\$1,000.00) in the form of a cashier's check payable to the Town shall be submitted with the initial notice of intent to file a protest. The initial notice of intent to file protest shall be in writing and shall state the basis of the protest (recommendation of award protest or other) and clearly indicate that its purpose is to serve as the initial notice of intent to file a protest. Failure to clearly indicate its intent or failure to provide a Bond shall constitute a waiver of the right to seek any remedy provided under these protest procedures.

Upon the timely receipt of an initial notice of intent to file a protest and the required Bond, the Town shall toll (put on hold) any further actions related to the recommendation of award (except as noted below). Should the affected party decide to withdraw its initial notice of intent to file a protest during the tolled action the Bond will be refunded in full. This is the only reason the Town will refund the Bond other than a finding in favor of the protestor.

If during tolled action, the Town Manager determines that an Emergency Purchase (as defined by the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Dundee) is necessary, action may be taken to secure the goods or services.

e) **FORMAL NOTICE:** Any person who has filed an initial notice of intent to file a protest, as described above, shall file a formal written protest within ten (10) calendar days after the date of the filing of the initial notice of intent to file a protest. Any amendment to the formal written protest shall be in writing and received by the Town Manager within ten (10) calendar days of the date of the initial notice of intent to file a protest. No amendments to the protest will be allowed after the ten (10) calendars day period has expired.

The formal written protest shall contain the following:

- i) Town bid number and/or title (if applicable);
- ii) Name and/or address of the Town department, division or agency affected;
- iii) The name and address of the affected party;
- iv) The title and position of the person submitting the protest;
- v) A statement of disputed issues of material fact;
- vi) If there are no disputed material facts, the written letter must so indicate;
- vii) Concise statement of the facts alleged;
- viii) Statement identifying with specificity the rule(s), regulation(s), statute(s), ordinance(s), and/or constitutional provision(s) entitling the affected party to the relief requested;
- ix) Statement identifying with specificity the relief which an entitlement is alleged;
- x) Such other information as the affected party deems to be material to the issue.

f) **PROTEST MEETING:** The Town will notify all parties and schedule a protest meeting. The protest will be presented to the Protest Committee, which shall be made up of three (3) members consisting of the Town Manager or his/her designee who shall serve as the Chairperson, the Town of Dundee Finance Director or his/her designee and a designated member of the Purchasing Review Committee. The Town Attorney or designee shall be present and act in an advisory capacity to the Protest Committee.

The Protest Committee shall meet with the protesting party within fourteen (14) business days of receipt of the formal written protest. The response time may be extended, if necessary. All affected parties will be notified of the location, date and time of the bid protest meeting and will be allowed the opportunity to make their presentation to the Bid Protest Committee. The parties may bring a representative if they so choose.

The Town Manager shall present the background for the protest to the Bid Protest Committee. The purpose of the protest meeting is: (1) to question and review the basis of the protest; (2) to evaluate the facts and merits of the protest; and (3) gather information in order to make a decision.

The agenda for the bid protest meeting will be:

- i) The background as to why the recommendation for award was made or why the vendor was not selected.
- ii) The protesting party or their representative will speak to how they were adversely affected by the decision of the Town.
- iii) Any other affected parties or their representative will be given the opportunity for rebuttal and to present any facts that they deem are relevant to the protest.
- iv) During the meeting, the Bid Protest Committee may ask questions of all parties as necessary.
- g) The Bid Protest Committee will render their decision in writing within five (5) business days of the bid protest meeting.
- h) The Town Manager may conduct an evidentiary hearing if there are disputed issues of material fact. The Town Manager will conduct a review and make a final written decision within ten (10) business days after the rendering of the decision of the Bid Protest Committee. The Town Manager's decision shall be final and binding. No further protests of the action in question will be heard by the Town.
- i) Any person who is aggrieved by the final and binding decision of the Town Manager shall be entitled to a review of the final and binding decision by the 10th Judicial Circuit Court of Polk County, Florida, by filing an appropriate petition with the Clerk of the Court within 30 calendar days following the rendering of the Town Manager's final and binding decision.

j)

7) PROPOSALS:

- a) The bid must contain a manual signature of an authorized representative in the space provided on the applicable form. Each party shall be responsible for the accuracy of his/her/its proposal. A party cannot obtain relief by pleading that its bid was in error.
- b) Submittals to the RFP shall be received no later than the time and date set forth in the RFP. No bid shall be accepted after the specified deadline or at any location other than that specified in the RFP. Any bid received late or because of submittal to another location will be maintained unopened in the bid file. Bids properly received will be opened at the time, date, and place set forth in the RFP.
- c) The Town may elect to cancel or postpone the RFP at any time prior to the time and date set to open the subject bid(s).
- d) Sealed bids, proposals, or replies received by the Town pursuant to the RFP are exempt from disclosure under Section 119.071 of the Florida Statutes and s.24(a), Art. I of the Florida Constitution until such time as the Town provides notice of an intended decision or until 30 days after opening the bids, proposals, or final replies, whichever is earlier.
- e) If the Town rejects all bids, proposals, or replies submitted in response to the RFP and the Town concurrently provides notice of its intent to reissue the RFP, the rejected bids, proposals, or replies remain exempt from disclosure under Section 119.071 of the Florida Statutes and s. 24(a), Art. I of the Florida Constitution until such time as the Town provides notice of an intended decision concerning the reissued RFP or until the Town withdraws the reissued RFP. A bid, proposal, or reply is not exempt for longer than twelve (12) months after the initial Town notice rejecting all bids, proposals, or replies.
- f) Bid and a non-collusion affidavit(s) (see attachments) should be submitted on the forms furnished by the Town and completed without additions, modifications, deletions, and erasures. Bids not submitted on attached bid form(s) shall be rejected. Bids must be typed or printed in ink. All corrections must be initialed. Each bidder shall deliver its sealed proposal to the location specified by the RFP. It is the bidder responsibility to assure that its bid is delivered at the proper time and place of the bid opening. Bids which are not received, as set forth in the RFP, shall not be considered by the Town.
- g) Telegraph, telephone, e-mail, electronically transmitted, or facsimile (FAX) bids shall not be considered. Bids may be modified, in writing, provided such modification is received at the location specified for submission and prior to the time and date set for the bid opening. Each bidder shall be solely responsible for the costs associated with the preparation and submittal of its bid in response to the RFP.
- h) BIDS RECEIVED AFTER THE TIME AND DATE SET FOR THE BID OPENING SHALL NOT BE CONSIDERED.

8) PRICES, TERMS, AND PAYMENT:

- a) Prices shall be firm and good for ninety (90) days after the bid opening and shall include all labor, materials, supplies, equipment, overhead, profit, insurance, applicable taxes, packing, shipping charges, and delivered to any point designated by the Town.
- b) **Taxes:** (For purchase of products only) Bids shall not include federal excise or state sales taxes in bid prices of products only as these are not applicable to municipalities.
- c) **Discounts:** Contractor may offer a cash discount for prompt payment; however, such discounts shall NOT be considered in determining the lowest net cost for bid evaluation purposes. The bidder(s) are encouraged to reflect cash discounts in the unit prices quoted. Any discount offered shall allow no less than fifteen (15) business days for payment.

9) SUBMITTING A "NO BID" OR A "NO CHARGE":

Any bidder intending to not bid on some of the item(s) sought by this solicitation must mark those item(s) as "No Bid." However, if some of the item(s) are being offered at no charge, then items must be marked as "No Charge." Items that are left blank shall be considered a "No Bid" for that item, and the bid shall be evaluated accordingly.

10) MISTAKES; INACCURACIES; INCOMPLETE INFORMATION:

- a) All bidders are expected to examine the specifications, delivery schedule, bid prices, and all instructions pertaining to supplies and services. The failure to do so will be at the bidder risk.
- b) In the Purchasing of goods or supplies, without labor, where the bid contains a mistake in extension or total bid amount, the unit price will govern. The Town shall be entitled to presume that a mistake has been made where the unit price and total or extension do not equate.
- c) The Town reserves the right to contact a bidder, telephonically or in writing, to clarify inconsistent, inaccurate, or confusing information regarding the proposal submitted. As well, the Town reserves the right to demand the execution or re-execution of the proposal, affidavits, or certification required to be accompanied with the bid proposal, when it appears to the Town that the deficiency was an oversight in good faith. It shall be presumed that proposals submitted without a single signature on an affidavit or on the proposal is non-responsive and shall not be considered for clarification or correction.

11) SAFETY STANDARDS:

Unless otherwise stipulated in the bid, all manufactured items and fabricated assemblies shall comply with applicable requirements of federal, state, and local law, including, but not limited to, the Occupational Safety and Health Act and regulations or standards thereunder.

12) INVOICING AND PAYMENT:

The Contractor shall be paid upon submission of proper invoices to the Town at the prices stipulated in the Contract at the time the order is placed, after delivery and acceptance of the goods, less deductions, if any, within thirty (30) business days after approval of invoice by the Town. If a cash discount is taken by the Town on a prompt payment invoice, payment shall be made within the time specified, but not less than fifteen (15) business days. All invoices shall include the purchase order number for purchases against any contract resulting from this bid. An original and one (1) copy of the invoice shall be submitted. Failure to follow these instructions may result in delay in processing invoices for payment. In addition, the purchase order number must appear on bills of lading, packages, cases, delivery lists and correspondence. No overcharge will be paid. In the event an invoice is submitted with an overcharge, a credit memo must be submitted in order to correct such overcharge. Any applicable discounts that apply as a result of the Contract shall be taken even though the allowable time has lapsed due to the time awaiting credit memorandum(s).

13) WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS:

A bid proposal may be withdrawn prior to the time fixed for the bid opening, if proper written notification is received, at the location specified for submission in the RFP, prior to the time fixed for the bid opening. A proposal may also be withdrawn if the Town does not accept it within ninety (90) calendar days after the date fixed for the bid opening. Notwithstanding any withdrawal, all bid documents received by the Town in response to the RFP shall remain the property of the Town.

14) NONCOLLUSION AGREEMENT:

Any bidder submitting a bid for the RFP shall execute and submit with its bid a non-collusion affidavit (see attachments) which states that it has not entered into a collusive agreement with any other person, firm, or corporation in regard to any bid submitted in response to the RFP.

15) REJECTION OF BIDS:

The Town may reject a bid if:

- a) The bidder misstates or conceals any material fact in the bid;
- b) The bid does not strictly conform to the law or the requirements which includes, but is not limited to, the terms and conditions set forth in the RFP; or
- c) A bid is submitted in bad faith and/or in a manner intended to undermine the competitive sealed bid selection process.

The Town Manager and/or the Town Commission shall have the right to act in the best interests of the Town and reject any and all bids and request the entire transaction be rebid. The Town may also waive any minor informalities, irregularities, or technicalities in any bid.

16) STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS:

Each bidder shall, upon request of the Town, submit a statement of qualifications, its experience record in furnishing a particular commodity or constructing any type of improvements embraced in the Contract Documents, its organization and equipment available for the work contemplated, and, when specifically requested by the Town, appropriate financial information which would assist in determining the ability and solvency to perform work contemplated by the Contract Documents.

The bidder may also be requested to furnish references which the Town may use to verify claims of competency. The Town shall have the right to take such steps as it deems necessary to determine the ability of the bidder to perform its obligations under the Contract Documents; and the bidder shall furnish the Town all such information and data for this purpose as it may request.

The right is reserved to reject any bid where an investigation of the available evidence or information does not satisfy the Town that the bidder is qualified to carry out properly the terms of the Contract Documents.

17) AWARD OF CONTRACT:

- a) The Town reserves the right to award contract(s) to more than one Contractor, to split awards, to award contracts by item or group of items, to make partial awards, or to decrease or increase any or all quantities that is in the Town's best interest.
- b) The Contractor may qualify its bid for acceptance by the Town on an "All or None" basis. An "All or None" basis bid must include all items upon which bids are invited. Contractor is hereby notified that a bid submitted on an "All or None" basis is at risk for rejection in instances where the Town may deem it necessary to split or divide a project as set forth herein. Contractor shall denote on the front page of the bid proposal as to whether the bid is an "All or None" bid.
- c) A written award of acceptance mailed or otherwise furnished to the Contractor results in a binding contract without further action by either party.
- d) After issuance of a notice of intent to award and no protests having been timely filed, award shall be made to the lowest, most responsive, and responsible party (or as specified in the RFP). Additional criteria as set forth in the RFP will be considered in the award of the bid. The lowest most responsive and responsible party will be determined after evaluation of the bid by the Town. In determining the lowest most responsive and responsible party, in addition to price, the following may be considered as criteria if noted in the bid documents:

- i) Evaluations and quality of performance on previous projects;
- ii) Ability, capacity, equipment and skill of the party to fulfill the contract;
- iii) Ability to fulfill the contract within the time specified, without delay;
- iv) Character, integrity, reputation, judgment, experience and efficiency;
- v) Previous compliance with laws and ordinances relating to the contract;
- vi) Sufficiency of the financial resources to fulfill the contract;
- vii)Quality, availability and adaptability of the supplies or contractual services;
- viii) Ability to provide future maintenance and service, as required or needed; and
- ix) Number and scope of conditions attached to the bid.

18) OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES:

The Town encourages and agrees to the Contractor extending the pricing, terms, and conditions of this RFP and the Contract (if there is any such resulting contract) to other governmental entities at the discretion and/or option of the Contractor.

19) PERFORMANCE:

- a) Contractor shall keep the Town advised at all times of status of the work performed pursuant to the Contract Documents. The Contractor's default in promised delivery of supplies, completion of project, or failure to meet specifications authorizes the Town to terminate the Contractor's right to proceed with the Contract. In the event the Town terminates the Contractor's right to proceed, the Town shall provide the Contractor with written notice; and thereafter, the Town may purchase supplies and services elsewhere. Any increase in charge(s) and/or cost(s) incurred by the Town shall be charged to the defaulting Contractor.
- b) The Contract shall not be terminated, or the Contractor charged with liquidated damages (if otherwise provided for in the Contract Documents) because of any delays due to unforeseeable cause beyond the fault or negligence of the Contractor including, but not limited to, acts of God, acts of the Town, fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, (with which the Contractor has no direct connections), and unusually severe weather. The Contractor shall, within ten (10) calendar days from the beginning of such delay, notify the Town, in writing, of the cause for the delay. If, in the opinion of the Town, the failure of Contractor to perform the conditions of this Contract is occasioned by or is the result of acts or events over which the Contractor has no control, said delay in performance may be excused.
- c) The Contractor shall take into account all contingent work which has to be done by other parties, arising from any cause whatsoever, and shall not plead its want of knowledge of said contingent work as an excuse for delay in its work or for the nonperformance thereof.

20) SERVICE AND WARRANTY:

Unless otherwise specified, the Contractor shall define any warranty service and replacements that will be provided during and subsequent to this Contract. Contractor shall explain on an attached sheet to what extent warranty and service facilities are provided.

21) GOVERNMENTAL RESTRICTIONS:

In the event any governmental restrictions may be imposed which would necessitate alteration of the materials, quality, workmanship, or performance of the items offered on this proposal prior to their delivery, it shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to notify the Town immediately after learning of such restriction including, but not limited to, indicating in writing the specific regulation which required an alteration. The Town reserves the right to accept any such alteration, including any price adjustments occasioned thereby, or to cancel the Contract at no expense to the Town.

22) PRICE AND ADJUSTMENTS:

Any price decrease effectuated during the term of the Contract and/or any time specified for performance therein, either by reason of market change or on the part of the Contractor to other customers, shall be passed on to the Town.

23) EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY:

No bids submitted shall be considered unless the bidder(s) warrants that upon execution of a Contract with the Town, it shall not engage in employment practices which have the effect of discriminating against employees or prospective employees because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, handicap, or marital status, and will submit such reports as the Town may thereafter require to assure compliance.

24) OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY (FLORIDA RIGHT-TO-KNOW-LAW):

- a) In compliance with Chapter 442, Florida Statutes, any item delivered from a Contract resulting from this RFP, which contains a toxic substance as listed on the FLORIDA SUBSTANCE LIST, shall be accompanied by a Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) which product shall be labeled as such as well. These MSDS shall be forwarded to: Town of Dundee, Attn: Town Manager, P.O. Box 1000, 202 East Main Street, Dundee, Florida 33838.
- b) The MSDS shall be maintained by the Town and must include the following information:
 - i) The Division/Department to which the material was shipped.
 - ii) The chemical name and the common name of the toxic substance.

- iii) The hazards or other risks in the use of the toxic substance, including:
 - (1) The potential for fire, explosion, corrosivity, and reactivity;
 - (2) The known acute health effects and chronic health effects of risks from exposure to the toxic substance, including those medical conditions which are generally recognized as being aggravated by exposure to toxic substance; and
 - (3) The primary routes of entry and symptoms of overexposure.
- iv) The proper precautions, handling practices, necessary personal protective equipment, and other safety precautions in the use of or exposure to the toxic substances, including appropriate emergency treatment in case of overexposure.
- v) The emergency procedures for spills, fire, disposal, and first aid.
- vi) A description of the known specific potential health risks posed by the toxic substance, which description is written in lay terms and is intended to alert any person who reads this information.
- vii) The year and month, if available, that the information was compiled and the name, address, and emergency telephone number of the manufacturer responsible for preparing the information.

25) TIE BIDS:

The Town Manager shall make award of all tie bids. In accordance with Florida law, a firm which is a drug-free workplace shall have precedence. In the event that both or neither firm is a drug-free workplace, tie bids may be awarded to one of the bidders based on any of the criteria listed below (in descending order), or as otherwise directed by the Town Manager to comply with all of the Source Selection provisions of Town of Dundee Ordinance No. 14-17 (*codified in Sec. 2-159*) and the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Dundee:

- a) Where tie bids are between bidders, one of which is a business whose principal place of business is located in the Town of Dundee utility service area and the other bidder is not, the recommended award shall be to the bidder located in the Town of Dundee utility service area.
- b) Where tie bids are between bidders, one of which is a business whose principal place of business is located in Polk County and the other bidder is not, the recommended award shall be to the bidder located in Polk County.
- c) Availability or completion period.
- d) Previous vendor record on similar projects or requirements.

e) Business location closest to the Town.

26) NOTICE:

- a) A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.
- b) A company is ineligible to, and may not, bid on, submit a proposal for, or enter into or renew a contract with an agency or local governmental entity for goods or services of One Million (\$1,000,000) or more if that, at the time of bidding or submitting a proposal for a new contract or renewal of an existing contract, the company: (a) Is on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List, created pursuant to Section 215.4725, Florida Statutes, or is engaged in a boycott of Israel.
- c) Any contract for goods and/or services in and amount of \$1,000,000.00 or more will be subject to termination by the Town if the contractor is found to have been placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Sector List, or been engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria or has been placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel list, or is engaged in a boycott of Israel.

27) UNAUTHORIZED ALIEN(S):

- a) The Contractor agrees that unauthorized aliens shall not be employed nor utilized in the performance of the requirements of this solicitation. The Town shall consider the employment or utilization of unauthorized aliens a violation of Section 274A(e) of the Immigration and Naturalization Act (8 U.S.C. 1324a). Such violation shall be cause for unilateral termination of any agreement and/or the Contract by the Town. As part of the response to this RFP, the successful party shall complete and submit the attached form "AFFIDAVIT CERTIFIATION IMMIGRATION LAWS".
- b) Employers may avail themselves of a program by the U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement called E-Verify. E-Verify is an Internet-based system operated by U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS), part of the Department of Homeland Security (DHS), in partnership with the Social Security Administration (SSA). E-Verify is currently free to employers. E-Verify provides an automated link to Federal databases to help employers determine employment eligibility of new hires and the validity of their Social Security numbers.

c) If your company wishes to avail themselves of this program, you can register online for E-Verify at https://www.vis-dhs.com/EmployerRegistration, which provides instructions for completing the registration process. At the end of the registration process, you will be required to sign a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) that provides the terms of agreement between you as the employer, the SSA, and DHS. An employee who has signatory authority for the employer can sign the MOU. Employers can use their discretion in identifying the best method by which to sign up their locations for E-Verify. To find out more about E-Verify, please visit www.dhs.gov le-verify or contact USCIS at 1-888-464- 4218.

CONSTRUCTION AND OTHER CLAUSES

(provisions related to construction may not be applicable to all contracts awarded)

The construction-related clauses shall apply to all work performed pursuant to the Contract Documents by either the Contractor or by any Subcontractor engaged to do a portion of the work. The Contractor shall supply each of its Subcontractors with a copy of all of the Contract Documents.

28) ERRORS:

If the Contractor discovers any error, omission, or vagueness in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall report this discovery to the Town immediately upon learning of same. Work done after such a discovery and before the Town corrects the error, omission, or vagueness shall be at the Contractor's risk.

29) UNIT PRICES:

The unit prices for each of the several items in the proposal (see attached Bid Form) of each bidder shall include its pro rata share of overhead so that the sum of the products obtained by multiplying the quantity shown for each item by the unit price bid represents the total bid. Any bid not conforming to this requirement may be rejected as non-responsive. Special attention is called to this provision for should conditions make it necessary to revise the quantities, no limit will be fixed for such increased or decreased quantities nor extra compensation allowed, provided the net monetary value of all such additive and subtractive changes in quantities of such items of work (i.e., difference in cost) shall not increase or decrease the original contract price by more than twenty-five percent (25%) for work not covered in the drawings and technical specifications.

30) SALES TAX SAVINGS PROCEDURE/OWNER DIRECT PURCHASES:

This procedure will be in accordance with Florida Administrative Code, Public Works Contracts, and Section 212.08(6) of the Florida Statutes.

The Town reserves the right to purchase all equipment, materials, and supplies that are components of a construction bid, but generally will purchase only major equipment, materials, and supplies.

When the Town exercises this option the following procedures shall be used for ordering, receiving, and paying for the component(s) selected.

a) BID PRICES.

The bid shall include the appropriate Florida State sales tax for all components of the bid that makes up the lump sum amount submitted.

b) ORDERING.

- i) The Town may exercise its right to direct purchase any component of the bid, at the Contractor's rate, in order to save the sales tax on the selected component, which may include equipment, materials, and supplies contained within the bid. The items selected will then be purchased directly from the vendors that the Contractor used to submit their bid to the Town and therefore made a part of the Contract. The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the Town, providing information for the preparation of purchase orders for these direct purchases, monitoring deliveries, and approving invoices.
- ii) Following receipt of a sales tax savings form from the Contractor, the Town will issue a purchase order, and certificate of entitlement, to the material supplier for the component selected for owner direct purchase (ODP). The purchase order, and certificate, will be sent to the Contractor, who shall verify that the order was issued correctly, and if so, send to the material supplier. A separate form shall be used for each item or group of items selected for ODP.
- iii) The Contract shall be reduced by the amount of all construction materials plus taxes selected by the Town, for direct purchase.

c) EXPEDITING.

The Contractor shall be responsible for expediting delivery to ensure that material is received on time to maintain the construction schedule.

d) RECEIPT.

The Contractor shall sign for and receive all materials; and retain packing slips and delivery tickets for all materials delivered for the performance of the Contract. The Contractor and Subcontractors shall be responsible for the safe care, custody, and control of all materials.

i) BILLINGS/PAYMENTS.

i) All ODP's shall be billed to the Town in care of the Contractor.

- ii) The Contractor shall check all invoices for accuracy and completeness when received. The Contractor shall be responsible for immediately notifying the supplier of any billing errors and requesting corrected invoices as necessary.
- iii) Receipts and invoices must be processed in a timely manner in order to take advantage of any discount payment terms. All discounts shall accrue to the Town.
- iv) The Contractor shall prepare a direct purchase report for the Town upon submittal of each pay request.

j) OTHER CONSIDERATIONS.

- i) The Town shall have title to all items of which any payment has been made pursuant to the Contract Documents.
- ii) The Contractor shall assume the risk of damage or loss at the time of the purchase.
- iii) The selection of ODP for any item(s) contained within the bid does not relieve the Contractor from liability for that item as it may related to the quantity ordered, the maintenance and care of the item when delivered, or the installation or incorporation of the item in the work to be performed in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- iv) The Town shall have access to all necessary records in order to conduct audits to determine the correctness and accuracy of any item purchased in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- v) To be entitled to purchase materials tax exempt for a public works project, a governmental entity is required to issue a Certificate of Entitlement to each vendor and to the governmental entity's contractor to certify that the tangible personal property purchased from that vendor will go into or become a part of a public works.

31) INSPECTION:

- a) For the Town, the Contractor shall provide facilities for safe and convenient access to any completed work, work-in-progress, and preparation for work to be done.
- b) The Town shall examine the work to assure its conformity with the Contract Documents. The Town will assist the Contractor in correctly interpreting the plans, specifications, and other Contract Documents, but this assistance will not require that the Town give early notice of rejection of work or materials.

- i) The examination and/or assistance by the Town shall not relieve the Contractor of the Contractor's responsibility of any actions it may take or neglect by Contractor or its Subcontractors in performing the work.
- ii) The Town shall not be responsible for Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences of starting, stopping, or resuming work, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, and the Town shall not be responsible for Contractor's failure to perform the work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- iii) The Town shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of Contractor or any Subcontractors, or any of Contractor's agents or employees.
- iv) Neither the Town's authority to act under these Contract Documents, nor any decision made by the Town in good faith either to exercise or not exercise such authority shall give rise to any duty or responsibility of the Town to Contractor, any subcontractor, any materialman, fabricator, supplier or any of their agents, or employees or any other person performing any of the work.
- c) The Town shall retain authority to make a final decision in any matter which involves interpretation of plans and other Contract Documents including, but not limited to, quality and quantities of materials used, construction and progress of work, work completed and estimates.
- d) If the Town finds any materials or work faulty, it shall so inform the Contractor; the Contractor shall replace, at its expense, and as soon as possible, said faulty materials or work. If the Contractor does not replace the faulty materials or work within a reasonable length of time, the Town may stop the work, furnish materials and men to replace the faulty work, and deduct the expense incurred by the Town from the amount due, or which will become due the Contractor.
- e) The Town may reinspect work which has been passed and it shall be permitted to reject faulty work which existed but was not apparent at the time of a previous inspection.
- f) The Town may order the Contractor to uncover work which has been covered without the consent of the Town. The Contractor shall bear the expense of the extra work. The Town may order the Contractor to uncover work which has been covered with the consent of the Town. If the questioned work is found to be without fault, the Contractor may charge the Town for this extra work; if the questioned work is found faulty, the Contractor shall bear the expense of the extra work.

32) SUPERVISION:

The Contractor shall maintain a superintendent, who fulfills the Town's requirements, on this project at any time work is in progress and furnish efficient and skilled supervision of all work. The Contractor may change project superintendents only if the change is approved by the Town

or if the Contractor discharges the project superintendent. If the Contractor is not present, the Town shall be permitted to consider the project superintendent the Contractor's agent; and the Town shall consider instructions given to the superintendent as binding as instructions given to the Contractor.

33) ACCIDENT PREVENTION:

- a) No laborer or mechanic employed in the performance of the Contract shall be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to health or safety as determined under construction safety and health standards promulgated by the Secretary of Labor.
- b) The Contractor shall exercise proper precautions at all times for the protection of persons and property and shall be responsible for all damages to persons or property, either on or off the site, which occur as a result of Contractor's prosecution of the work. Machinery, equipment, and all hazards shall be guarded in accordance with safety provisions to the extent that such provisions are not in conflict with applicable laws.
- c) The Contractor shall maintain an accurate record of all cases of death, occupational disease, or injury requiring medical attention or causing loss of time from work, arising out of and in the course of employment on work under the Contract. The Contractor shall promptly furnish the Town with these reports.

34) CLAIMS FOR ADDITIONAL PAY:

If the Town issues written instructions which the Contractor believes will involve additional work and cost, the Contractor may assert a claim for extra cost only if it gives written notice to the Town Manager or his/her designee immediately after it receives the instructions and before it complies with those instructions. The Contractor may assert a claim for extra cost without advance written notice only if immediate compliance with the instructions given by the Town is necessary to meet an emergency which endangers life or property.

If the Contractor asserts a claim for extra pay, the Town may cancel the instructions and deny the claim or follow the procedure(s) set forth herein for "CHANGES". The cost or credit to the Town from a change in the work shall be determined from price information in the bid form, or by a lump sum price agreement with the Contractor, or a price based on the Contractor's cost for labor, materials, equipment, supervision, and insurance plus fifteen percent (15%) for profit and overhead, or as the parties otherwise agree.

35) FITTING AND COORDINATION OF THE WORK:

The Contractor shall be responsible for the proper fitting of all work and for the coordination of the operations of all trades, subcontractors, or materialmen engaged in the performance of the Contract. The Contractor shall be prepared to guarantee to each of its Subcontractors the locations and measurements which they may require for the fitting of their work to all surrounding work.

36) SUB-CONTRACTING:

Nothing in the Contract Documents shall be construed to create a contractual relationship between the Town and a Subcontractor doing a portion of the work on this project, nor shall it create any obligation on the part of the Town to pay or see to the payment of any moneys due any Subcontractor. The Town shall hold the Contractor responsible for the work done by any of its Subcontractors. For any portion of the work to be sub-contracted, a list of the Subcontractors shall be furnished to the Town Manager prior to the commencing of this project(s).

37) MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY OF CONTRACTORS:

If, through acts or neglect on the part of the Contractor, any other contractor or any subcontractor shall suffer loss or damage in the performance of the Contract, the Contractor shall settle with such other, contractor or subcontractor by agreement or arbitration, if such other contractor or subcontractor will so settle. If such other contractor or subcontractor shall assert any claim against the Town on account of any damage alleged to have been so sustained, the Town will notify the Contractor, who shall defend at Contractor's own expense any suit based upon such claim, and, if any judgment or claims against the Town shall be allowed, the Contractor shall pay or satisfy such judgment or claim and pay all attorney's fees, costs, and expenses in connection therewith.

38) LINES AND GRADES:

The Town shall establish a base line and a benchmark at each location of any separate portion of this project. The Contractor shall reference all base lines, benchmarks, and property monuments and re-establish in their original state any which are disturbed during work on this project. The Contractor shall verify in the field all base lines, elevations, and dimensions shown on the plans, report any error, omission, or discrepancy it discovers, and assume full responsibility for its grades.

39) ASSIGNMENT OR NOVATION:

The Contractor shall not assign or transfer, whether by assignment or novation, any of its rights, duties, benefits, obligations, liabilities, or responsibilities under the Contract without the express written consent of the Town; provided however, that assignments to banks, trust companies and/or other financial institutions of payments due to Contractor may be made without the consent of the Town.

40) OTHER CONTRACTS:

The Town may award, or may have awarded other contracts for additional work, and the Contractor shall cooperate fully with such other contractors, by scheduling its own work with that to be performed under other contracts as may be directed by the Town or Town Manager. The Contractor shall not commit or permit any act which will interfere with the performance of work by any other contractor as scheduled, on this project or any other project.

41) PATENT INFRINGEMENT:

The Contractor shall indemnify the Town, its officers, its agents, and its employees and hold all free of liability and unharmed by any suit or claim which results from the incorporation of any patented or unpatented invention, device, process, or system in the work of this project.

42) SHOP DRAWINGS:

Where a portion of this project requires the use of shop drawings, the Contractor shall submit four (4) copies of these drawings and a schedule of the required work to the Town. The Town shall review these drawings promptly and note any corrections required to-meet the intent of the plans and specifications. The Contractor shall make the noted revisions and submit four (4) copies of the revised drawings to the Town. The Town's approval of the shop drawings shall not relieve the Contractor of its responsibility for any error in the shop drawings and any deviation from the plans and specifications.

43) PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS:

- a) The Town shall furnish the Contractor one (1) set of the plans and specifications when the Town notifies the Contractor to begin work. The Contractor shall keep this set available at the project site at all times. If the Contractor wants more than one (1) set of plans and specifications, the Contractor may obtain these if it pays the cost of reproduction.
- b) The original plans and specifications, and any copies of these plans and specifications the Town furnishes the Contractor, shall remain the property of the Town. They shall not be used on work other than this project. The Town may ask the Contractor to return all copies of the plans and specifications when the work is completed. The Contractor shall coordinate the requirements of the plans, specifications, and all other Contract Documents prepared for this project.

44) SUB-SURFACE DATA:

The Town does not guarantee the accuracy of the sub-surface data shown on the plans. Where it will influence its execution of the Contract, the Contractor shall, with its own resources, verify ground water elevations, soil conditions, wetland jurisdictional boundary, the location of underground structures, sewers, water pipes, gas lines, telephone cables, electric cables, conduits and other such underground infrastructure.

45) FACILITIES, MATERIALS, AND EMPLOYEES:

a) Unless it is otherwise stipulated in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall be responsible for supervision, electric power, water, and any other facilities required to complete this project.

- b) The Contractor shall incorporate in the work of this project only materials, equipment, and methods which conform to the Town's applicable specifications.
- c) Unless otherwise specifically provided for in the Technical Specifications, all workmanship, equipment, materials, and articles incorporated in the work shall be new and the best grade of the respective kinds for the purpose. Where equipment, materials, articles, or workmanship are referred to in the Technical Specifications as "equal to" any particular standard, the Town shall decide the question of equality.
- d) The Contractor shall furnish to the Town for approval the manufacturer's detailed specifications for all machinery, mechanical and other special equipment, which it contemplates installing, together with full information as to type, performance characteristics, and all other pertinent information as required, and shall likewise submit for approval, as required, full information concerning all other materials or articles which it proposes to incorporate in the work.
- e) Machinery, mechanical and other equipment, materials, or articles installed or used without such prior approval shall be at the risk of subsequent rejection.
- f) Materials specified by reference to the number or symbol of a specific standard, such as an A.S.T.M. Standard, a federal specification or other similar standard, shall comply with requirements in the latest revision thereof and any amendment or supplement thereto in effect on the date of the RFP, except as limited to type, class, or grade, or modified in such reference. The standards referred to, except as modified in the technical specifications shall have full force and effect as though printed therein.
- g) The Contractor shall use only employees with skills at least equal to the requirements of their work assignment on this project.

46) TESTS AND INSPECTIONS OF MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT:

- a) Unless it is otherwise stipulated in the Contract Documents, the tests and inspections of materials and equipment incorporated in the work of this project shall be made at the Contractor's expense by independent laboratories and agencies approved by the Town.
- b) The Contractor shall instruct any laboratory or agency making, required tests to furnish the Town with a copy of the report made on each test and inspection.

47) PROTECTION OF WORK, MATERIALS, PROPERTY, AND THE PUBLIC:

The Contractor shall protect the work of this project and the stored materials not yet incorporated in the work, on site or off site, from injury, damage, and loss. The Contractor shall protect and save from damage all public and private property adjacent to the project site. The Contractor shall guard all excavations by appropriate means; and shall protect the public from hazard. Receipt of progress payment(s) shall not affect the obligations of the Contractor under this provision.

48) PROTECTION OF MONUMENTS:

The Contractor shall protect and save from damage or movement all survey monuments, permanent reference monuments, property monuments, reference points, and benchmarks. If the work demands the temporary removal of such a monument, point, or benchmark, the Contractor shall notify the Town who shall reference the monument, point, or benchmark and reset it without cost to the Contractor. If the Contractor damages, moves, or destroys a monument, point, or benchmark, the Town may restore such by a registered surveyor at the Contractor's expense and withhold the cost from money otherwise due the Contractor from the Town.

49) USE OF PREMISES:

The Contractor shall confine its equipment, storage or materials, and construction operations to the limits set forth in the Contract Documents and as prescribed by ordinances or permits, or as determined by the Town, and shall not unreasonably encumber the site or public right-of-way with its materials and construction equipment.

50) WORK PROGRESS:

- a) If the Contractor fails to proceed with the diligence required to complete the project within the time set forth in the Contract or within an extension of that time which the Town may grant, the Town may terminate the Contractor's right to proceed with the work by providing written notice to the Contractor.
- b) If the Town terminates the Contractor's right to proceed, the Town may choose to proceed with the work, take possession of the materials on the project site, incorporate these materials in the work, and hold the Contractor and its sureties liable for payment of excess costs the Town may incur, or demand the surety to complete the project as permitted under the terms and conditions of the performance bond. The execution of the Contract by Contractor shall constitute an acknowledgment of the surety's consent to this provision.
- c) If the Town does not terminate the Contractor's rights to proceed, the Contractor shall proceed with the work; in this event, it will be impossible to determine the actual damage the delay has caused. In lieu of payment of actual damage, the Contractor and its sureties shall be liable for the payment of the fixed, agreed, and liquidated damages as may be set forth in the Contract Documents for each calendar day of delay beyond the contract time.

51) REQUESTS FOR INTERPRETATION AND INFORMATION:

a) All requests for interpretation shall be in writing and submitted to the Town Manager. Whenever a written request for interpretation(s) of the Contract Documents is properly

submitted, the request(s) shall be answered by way of Addenda. All Addenda will be sent to each party holding Contract Documents. The Town shall not be responsible for the safe delivery of the Addenda.

It shall be the responsibility of the party to make inquiry as to the issuance of any Addenda to the Contract. All Addenda shall become part of the Contract Documents and all parties shall be bound by such Addenda, whether received or not.

b) It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to make timely requests of the Town for any additional information not already in its possession which should be furnished by the Town under the terms of the Contract, and which it will require in the planning and execution of the work. Such request may be submitted from time to time as the need is approached, but each shall be filed in ample time to permit appropriate action to be taken by all parties involved so as to avoid delay. Each request shall be in writing and list the various times and the latest date by which each will be required by the Contractor. The first list shall be submitted, within two (2) weeks after Contract award and shall be as complete as possible at that time. The Contractor shall, if requested, furnish promptly any assistance and information the Town may require in responding to these requests of the Contractor. The Contractor shall be fully responsible for any delay in its work or to others arising from its failure to comply fully with the provisions of this section.

52) DISPUTES:

- a) All disputes arising under this Contract or its interpretation, except those disputes covered by FEDERAL LABOR STANDARD PROVISIONS (if applicable), whether involving law or fact, extra work, and/or all claims for alleged breach of the Contract shall within ten (10) calendar days of commencement of the dispute be presented by the Contractor to the Town for decision. All papers pertaining to claims shall be filed in quadruplicate. Such notice need not detail the amount of the claim but shall state the facts surrounding the claim in sufficient detail to identify the claim, together with its character and scope. At all time(s) during the pendency of a dispute, the Contractor shall proceed with the work as directed. Any claim not presented within the time limit specified in this paragraph shall be deemed to have been waived by the Contractor.
- b) The Contractor shall submit in detail its claim and proof thereof. Each decision by the Town shall be final. Each decision by the Town will be in writing and mailed to the Contractor by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, directed to the Contractor's last known address.
- c) If the Contractor does not agree with any decision of the Town, it shall in no case allow the dispute to delay the work but shall notify the Town promptly that it is proceeding with the work under protest.

d)

53) CONTRACTOR INSURANCE:

For contracts not exceeding \$500,000.00 dollars the following insurance requirements shall be met:

The Contractor shall, at its own expense, procure and maintain, with insurers acceptable to the Town (the "Owner"), the types and amounts of insurance conforming to the minimum requirements set forth herein. The Contractor shall not commence work until the required insurance is in force and evidence of insurance acceptable to the Owner has been provided to and approved by the Owner. As evidence of compliance with the insurance required herein, the Contractor shall furnish Owner with (a) a fully completed satisfactory Certificate of Insurance evidencing all coverage required herein, with a copy of the actual notice of cancellation endorsement(s) as issued on the policies and a copy of the actual additional insured endorsement as issued on the Commercial General Liability policy, signed by an authorized representative of the insurer(s) verifying inclusion of Owner's officials, officers and employees as Additional Insureds in the Commercial General Liability coverage; (b) the original of the policy(ies); or (c) other evidence satisfactory to Owner. Such evidence shall include thirty (30) days written notice of cancellation to the Owner for all coverage. With respect to Property Insurance, an appropriate Evidence of Property Insurance form, or a copy of the policy itself shall be satisfactory evidence of insurance. Until such insurance is no longer required by this Contract, the Contractor shall provide the Owner with renewal or replacement evidence of insurance at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration or termination of such insurance.

(1) Worker's Compensation Insurance:

(a) Such insurance shall be no more restrictive than that provided by the Standard Workers' Compensation Policy, as filed for use in Florida by the National Council of Compensation Insurance, without restrictive endorsements. In addition to coverage for the Florida Workers' Act, where appropriate, coverage is to be included for the Federal Employer's Liability Act and any other applicable Federal or State law. The policy shall be endorsed to provide the Owner with thirty (30) days' notice of cancellation. The minimum amount of coverage (inclusive of any amount provided by an umbrella or excess policy) shall be:

(i) Part One: "Statutory"

(ii) Part Two: \$500,000.00 Each Accident

\$500,000.00 Disease-Policy Limit \$500,000.00 Disease-Each Employee

(b) The policy shall be endorsed to waive the insurer's right to subrogation against Owner and its officials, officers and employees in the manner which would result from the attachment of National Council on

Compensation Insurance's (NCCI) Waiver of Our Right to Recover from Others' Endorsement (Advisory Form WC 00 03 13) with Owner and its officials, officers and employees scheduled thereon.

(2) General Liability Insurance:

- (a) Such insurance shall be no more restrictive than that provided by the standard Commercial General Liability Form (ISO Form CG 00 01) as filed for use in the State of Florida without any restrictive endorsements 1 other than those required by ISO or the State of Florida or those described below. The policy must be endorsed to provide the Owner with thirty (30) days' notice of cancellation. The coverage may include restrictive endorsements excluding coverage for liability arising out of:
 - (i) Mold, Fungus or Bacteria
 - (ii) Terrorism
 - (iii) Sexual Molestation
- (b) Unless the work under this Contract includes activities, which would be the subject of such exclusions, the coverage may also exclude coverage for liability arising out of:
 - (i) Architects and Engineers Professional Liability
 - (ii) Exterior Insulation and Finish Systems (EIFS)
- (c) The minimum limits (inclusive of amounts provided by an umbrella or excess policy) shall be:

(i) \$1,000,000.00	General Aggregate
(ii) \$1,000,000.00	Products/Completed Operations Aggregate
(iii)\$1,000,000.00	Personal and Advertising Injury
(iv) \$1,000,000.00	Each Occurrence

(3) Automobile Liability Insurance:

Such insurance shall be no more restrictive than that provided by Section II (Liability Coverage) of the most recent version of the standard Business Auto Policy (ISO Form CA 00 01) without restrictive endorsements, including coverage for liability contractually assumed, and shall cover all owned, non- owned, and hired autos used in connection with the performance of the work. The policy must be endorsed to provide the Owner with thirty (30) days' notice of cancellation. Such insurance shall not be subject to any aggregate limit and the minimum limits (inclusive of any amounts provided by an umbrella or excess policy) shall be:

(i) \$1,000,000.00 Each Occurrence – BI/PD Combined

(4) Property Insurance:

- (a) If the Contract includes: (1) construction of a new above-ground structure or structures; (2) any addition(s), improvement(s), alteration(s) or repair(s) to an existing above-ground structure or structures; or (3) the installation of machinery or equipment into an existing structure or structures, the Contractor shall provide, in a policy acceptable to Owner, "all risk" (i.e., Special Form) property insurance on any such construction, additions, machinery or equipment. The amount of the insurance shall be no less than the estimated replacement value at the time of the Owner's final acceptance of such new structures, addition(s), improvement(s), alteration(s), repair(s), machinery or equipment1. The coverage shall not be subject to any restriction with respect to occupancy or use by the Owner and, subject to thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Owner, shall remain in full effect until final acceptance by the Owner. The policy must be endorsed to provide the Owner with thirty (30) days' notice of cancellation. The Owner shall be an insured on this policy. The maximum deductible shall be \$500 per occurrence.
- (b) If the Contract includes: (1) construction of a new above-ground structure or structures located within a Special Flood Hazard Area (100 year floodplain), or (2) any addition(s), improvement(s), alteration(s) or repair(s) to an existing above-ground structure or structures located within a Special Flood Hazard Area (I 00 year floodplain), Flood insurance must also be provided on such new structure(s), addition(s), improvement(s), alteration(s) or repair(s) for the lesser of: (1) the estimated replacement value at the time of the final acceptance of such new structure(s), addition(s), improvement(s), alteration(s) or repair(s), or (2) the maximum amount of flood insurance available through the National Flood Insurance Program.
- (c) The insurance provided by the Contractor and its Subcontractors shall apply on a primary basis. Any insurance maintained by the Owner, shall be excess of and shall not contribute with the insurance provided by the Contractor and its subcontractors. Except as otherwise specifically authorized in this Contract, or for which prior written approval has been obtained hereunder, the insurance maintained by the Contractor shall apply on a first dollar basis without application of a deductible or self-insured retention. Under limited circumstances, the Owner may permit the application of a deductible or permit the Contractor to self-insure, in whole or in part, one or more of the insurance coverages required by the Contract. The Contractor shall pay on behalf of the Owner or Owner's officials, officers, and employees any deductible or self-insured

retention applicable to a claim against the Owner or the Owner's officials, officers, and employees.

- ii) The insurance provided by the Contractor shall be endorsed to provide that the Insurer waives its rights against the Owner and Owner's officials, officers, and employees.
- iii) Compliance with these insurance requirements shall not limit the liability of the Contractor or its Subcontractors. Any remedy provided to the Owner by the insurance provided by the Contractor and its subcontractors shall be in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedy (including, but not limited to, as an indemnitee of the Contractor) available to the Owner under the Contract or otherwise.
- iv) Neither approval nor failure to disapprove insurance furnished by the Contractor shall relieve the Contractor from responsibility to provide insurance as required by the Contract and the Contract Documents.

54) INDEMNIFICATION:

- a) The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Town, its elected officials, officers, agents, and employees, from and against any and all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and reasonable charges of attorneys, and other professionals, and all court or other dispute resolution costs), liabilities, expenditures, taxes and assessments, or cause and/or causes of action of any kind (including negligent, reckless, or willful or intentional acts or omission of the Contractor including but not limited to subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, materialmen, or agents of any tier or their respective employees and any person or organization directly or indirectly employed and/or utilized by the Contractor to perform or furnish any work or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable), to the extent arising from, relative to, or caused by the performance of any services as may be described or provided in the Contract Documents, and/or any services pursuant to the Contract issued hereunder. Such indemnification shall specifically include, but not be limited to, claims, damages, losses, liabilities, and expenses (including but not limited to all fees and reasonable charges of attorneys, and other professionals, and all court or other dispute resolution costs) to the extent arising out of or from:
 - i) Any omission, default, or negligent act of the Contractor including but not limited to subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, sub-consultants, sub-sub-consultants, materialmen, or agents of any tier or their respective employees, (including negligent, reckless, willful or intentional acts or omissions);
 - ii) Any and all bodily injuries, sickness, disease or death;
 - iii) Injury to or destruction of tangible property, including the loss of use resulting therefrom;

- iv) Other such damages, liabilities, or losses received or sustained by any person or persons during or on account of any operations connected with this Contract and/or any work arising out of the Contract Documents; and/or
- v) The violation of any federal, state, county or city laws, by-laws, ordinances, or regulations by the Contractor including but not limited to subcontractors, subsubcontractors, sub-consultants, sub-sub-consultants, materialmen, or agents of any tier or their respective employees and/or persons and/or entities under Contractor's direction and/or control.
- vi) Any indemnification hereunder shall not include claims of, or damages resulting from, gross negligence, or willful, wanton or intentional misconduct of the Town or its elected officials, officers, agents, and employees, or for statutory violation or punitive damages **except** and to the extent the statutory violation or punitive damages are caused by or result from the acts or omissions of the Contractor or any of the Contractor's subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, sub-consultants, sub- subconsultants, materialmen, or agents of any tier or their respective employees.
- b) This contractual indemnity is authorized by Section 725.06 of the Florida Statutes.
- c) This contractual indemnity shall survive the termination of this Contract.
- d) Contractor shall indemnify, and hold harmless the Town, its elected officials, officers, agents, and employees from liability for damages to persons or property caused by any act, omission, or default of Contractor (specifically including, but not limited to, Contractor's negligent or grossly negligent acts, omissions, or defaults) to the extent it relates to, pertains to, or arises from the Contract or Contractor's performance thereof. This contractual indemnity is authorized by Sections 725.06 and 725.08 (if applicable) of the Florida Statutes. Contractor also agrees to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the Town, its elected officials, officers, agents and employees, from all damages, liabilities, losses, claims, fines and fees, and from any and all suits and cause and causes of action of every name and description including but not limited to reasonable attorney's fees and reasonable attorney's fees in appellate or bankruptcy proceedings, that may be brought against the Town, its elected officials, officers, agents and employees, on account of any claims, fees, royalties, or costs for any invention or patent or for the infringement of any and all copyrights or patent rights claimed by any person, firm, or corporation.
- e) In the event of any claims or suits which fall within either of the foregoing indemnities, payment of any amount due pursuant thereto shall, after receipt of written notice by Contractor from the Town that such amount is due, be made by Contractor prior to the Town being required to pay same, or in the alternative, the Town, at the Town's option, may make payment of an amount so due and the Contractor shall promptly reimburse the Town for same, together with interest thereon at the rate of 6% per annum simple interest from the day of the Town's payment.

- f) Additionally, if Contractor, after receipt of written notice from the Town fails to make any payment due hereunder to the Town, Contractor shall pay any reasonable attorney's fees or costs incurred by the Town in securing any such payment from Contractor.
- g) Nothing contained herein is intended nor shall it be construed to waive the Town's Sovereign Immunity and/or the Town's limits of liability as set forth in Section 768.28 of the Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time, regardless of whether any such obligations are based in tort, contract, statute, strict liability, and negligence, product liability or otherwise. This obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or otherwise reduce any other right or obligation of indemnity which would otherwise exist in the Town's favor
- h) The Contractor shall not be entitled to an increase in the contract price or payment or compensation of any kind from Town for direct, indirect, consequential, impact or other costs, expenses or damages including but not limited to costs of acceleration or inefficiency or extended overhead, arising because of delay, disruption, interference or hindrance from any cause whatsoever whether such delay, disruption, interference or hindrance be reasonable or unreasonable, foreseeable or unforeseeable, or avoidable or unavoidable; provided, however, that this provision shall not preclude recovery of damages by Contractor for hindrances or delays due solely to fraud, bad faith or active malicious interference on the part of Town. Otherwise, Contractor shall be entitled only to extensions of the contract time as the sole and exclusive remedy for excusable events of delay.
- i) The Town reserves the right to include a provision for liquidated damages as a result of any delay by the Contractor.
- j) The Contractor and its subcontractors and/or sub-subcontractors agree by entering into the Contract to a waiver of subrogation for each required policy herein. When required by the insurer or should a policy condition not permit the Contractor or subcontractor or sub-subcontractor to enter into a pre-loss agreement to waive subrogation without an endorsement, then the Contractor or subcontractor or sub-subcontractor agree to notify the insurer and request the policy be endorsed with a "waiver of transfer of rights against others" or its equivalent. This "waiver of subrogation" requirement shall not apply to any policy, which includes a condition specifically prohibiting such an endorsement, or voids coverage should the Contractor or subcontractor or sub-subcontractor enter into such an agreement on a pre-loss basis.
- k) Acceptance by the Contractor of the last payment shall be a release to the Town and every officer and agent thereof, from all claim(s) and liability hereunder for anything done or furnished for, or relating to the work, or for any act or neglect of the Town or of any person relating to or affecting the work.
- 1) The parties agree that to the extent the written terms of this Indemnification conflict with any provisions of Florida law or Florida Statute(s), in particular Sections 725.06 and 725.08 of the Florida Statutes, the written terms of this Indemnification shall be

deemed by any court of competent jurisdiction to be modified in such a manner as to be in full and complete compliance with all such laws or statutes and to contain such limiting conditions, or limitations of liability, or to not contain any unenforceable, or prohibited term or terms, such that this Indemnification shall be enforceable in accordance with and to the greatest extent permitted by Florida law.

55) BID BOND:

- a) In cases where the bid price exceeds \$30,000.00, each bid must be accompanied by a certified check, cashier's check or a bid bond in an amount not less than five per-cent (5%) of the base bid, as guarantee that the Contractor will not withdraw from the competition after the opening of the bids, and will, within twenty-five (25) calendar days after receipt of written notice of award, enter into the Contract with the Town in accordance with the Contract Documents. Should the Contractor fail to enter into a contract, the bid bond shall be forfeited as liquidated damages.
- b) No proposal or bid shall be considered unless accompanied by a bid bond in the amount and form specified.

56) PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND:

- a) In cases where the bid price exceeds \$30,000.00 and/or for utility contracts covered by Section 180.24 of the Florida Statutes, the successful bidder shall be required to furnish a performance bond in an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price as security for the faithful performance of the contract. The Contractor shall also furnish a payment bond in an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price as security for the payment of all persons performing labor on the project under the contract and furnishing material(s).
- b) The performance bond and the payment bond may be in one or separate instruments in accordance with applicable law. Subject bonds are due within twenty-five (25) calendar days after written notice of award is received. Subject bonds shall also be recorded in the public records of Polk County [per F.S. 255.05(l)(a)] with proof of the recording furnished with the bonds or a certified recorded copy.

57) BONDING COMPANY QUALIFICATIONS:

- a) All bonds shall be written through a reputable and responsible surety bond agency licensed to do business in the State of Florida and with a surety company or corporation meeting the following specifications:
 - i) Minimum rating of "A-" or better;
 - ii) Financial Size Category of "VII" according to the A.M. Best Company; and

- iii) Current Certificate of Authority as acceptable surety on Federal Bonds in accordance with the latest edition of the United States Treasury Department Circular 570 entitled "Companies Holding Certificates of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on Federal Bonds and As Acceptable Reinsurance Companies" and shall be accepted for an amount not exceeding the underwriting limitations thereon.
- b) All surety companies are subject to approval and may be rejected by the Town without cause in the same manner that bids may be rejected.
- c) **Awards of \$500,000 or less**: Bonds shall be written with a surety company meeting the qualifications as set forth in Paragraph a) above, or the qualifications set forth in Section 287.0935 of the Florida Statutes.
- d) **Power of Attorney**: An Attorney-in-fact which signs a contract bond shall file with said bond a certified and effectively dated copy of the power of attorney. The power of attorney shall bear the raised seal of the surety company.
- e) The failure to furnish the required bond(s) within twenty-five (25) calendar days or within such extended period as the Town may grant shall constitute a default, and the Town may either award the contract to the next most responsive and responsible bidder or re-advertise for bids, and may charge against the original successful bidder the difference between the amount of its bid and the amount for which a contract for the work is subsequently executed, irrespective of whether the amount thus due exceeds the amount of the bid bond. If a more favorable bid is received by re-advertising, the defaulting bidder shall have no claim against the Town for a refund.

58) PAYMENT:

The Contract Documents shall set forth the terms and condition(s) relating to the contract price, payment(s), timing of payment(s), progress payment(s), and final payment. The Contract Documents shall be negotiated, approved, and executed by the Town and Contractor no later than 30 calendar days following the date on which the Town awards the contract and/or project.

59) LIENS:

No liens of any type shall be allowed, including labor, materials, rentals, or services furnished.

60) GUARANTEE:

- a) The Contractor shall guarantee all materials, equipment, and workmanship for a period of no less than one (1) year from the date the Town accepts the completed project in its entirety. The Contractor shall replace, repair, or restore any faulty materials, equipment, work, and incidental damage during this period of guarantee.
- b) Neither the final payment nor any provision in the Contract Documents shall relieve the Contractor of the responsibility for negligence or faulty materials or workmanship

within the extent and period provided by law. Upon written notice, the Contractor shall remedy all defects due thereto and pay all expenses for any damage to other work and/or property of the Town resulting therefrom.

- c) A notice of defect(s) will be issued by the Town. Upon receipt by the Contractor of such written notice, the Contractor shall immediately investigate any and all claimed defects. Should the Contractor feel that any claimed defect is invalid, it shall so advise, in writing, to the Town within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of said notice.
- d) Defects shall be remedied by the Contractor within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of notice. Within ten (10) calendar days after completion of such corrective measures, the Contractor shall notify the Town, in writing, of correction in defects. The Contractor shall transmit to the Town a copy of each certified statement as required below.
- e) Each Subcontractor shall transmit to the Contractor, in duplicate, on its business letterhead, addressed to both the Contractor and Town, a certified statement as to:
 - i) The work performed and/or materials supplied; and
 - ii) A guarantee in accordance with requirements of the Contract Documents appertaining to said work and/or materials.

61) THE CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT:

- a) The Town will require the Contractor to execute a contract. Upon execution of the Contract, the Contract and Contract Documents become the Contract between the Town and Contractor.
- b) The contract between the Town and Contractor shall be negotiated, approved, and executed by the Town and Contractor no later than 30 calendar days following the date on which the Town awards the contract and/or project to the Contractor.
- c) The Contractor cannot claim modification of the Contract because of any representation made by an employee of the Town or any other person.
- d) In the event the contract is not negotiated, approved, and executed within the time period set forth herein, the Town may, in its sole discretion, award the project and/or contract to the next most responsive and responsible bidder or withdraw the RFP and re-advertise the RFP.

62) CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE:

a) The Contractor shall submit to the Town for review and approval, a construction schedule at least five (5) business days before the start of project.

- b) The Contractor shall complete the work, phase(s), and/or part(s) of the project in the order set forth in the approved construction schedule.
- c) The Contractor's receipt of an approved construction schedule does not authorize the Contractor to begin work on the project.
- d) The Town's issuance of a Notice to Proceed authorizes the Contractor to commence work on the project.

63) FINAL INSPECTION:

- a) When the work on this project(s) is substantially completed, the Contractor shall notify the Town, in writing, at least three (3) business days before the inspection date that the work will be ready for final inspection on a definite date. The Contractor shall expressly provide the date for final inspection.
- b) Prior to the final inspection, the Contractor shall clear the project site of all trash, rubbish, and debris and restore all damage done to the project site and adjacent areas during the performance of the project. The Contractor's duty to clear the project site prior to final inspection does not relieve the Contractor of the obligation to keep the project site free from trash, rubbish, and debris during the performance of the Contract.

64) CONSTRUCTION AND CONSULTING EVALUATION:

- a) The award of contracts by the Town for construction and/or consulting service(s) is based on the lowest responsive/responsible bid (for construction) or in accordance with the guidelines and requirements of Section 287.055 of the Florida Statutes (Consultants Competitive Negotiation Act) for applicable consulting services. In addition, the Town will consider the previous performance of any bidder who may have completed work for the Town or other entity
- b) A Construction and Consulting Evaluation Form shall be completed by the department head or Town Manager for the project. The form shall be completed upon the completion of the project and submitted to the Office of the Town Clerk for retention.
- c) This form will be completed on all firms performing construction and/or consulting work for the Town of Dundee. Furthermore, the Town may, at its discretion, provide this form to other entities for whom the noted firm has completed work.

WORK SUMMARY

PART 1 – GENERAL

1.01 – REQUIREMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS

PART 2 – PRODUCTS

PART 3 – CONTRACT CLOSEOUT

PART 1 – GENERAL

1.01 – REQUIREMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS

A. "FY 2023-24 1 -FIRE DEPARTMENT MINI PUMPER"

The Town of Dundee (the "Town") is seeking proposals on and/or for one (1) FIRE DEPARTMENT PUMP TRUCK (the "Truck") in accordance with the requirements and specification set forth herein and as depicted by **Exhibit "A"** which is attached to the Work Summary and incorporated herein by reference. The Town requires certain items to be included in the Bid, as follows: (1) options to finance though the vendor/dealership or, in the alternative, the right and ability for the Town to select, in its sole discretion, to finance though a bank or lending institution the purchase price of and/or for the one (1) FIRE DEPARTMENT PUMP TRUCK; and (2) the Truck must be delivered and ready for route.

In addition to the aforementioned, the information and specification(s) required for the Truck and this RFP 24-05 are, as follows:

- 1. Bidder must provide Lead time of the units. (from build to delivery)
- 2. Budder must include all warranty on the body and chassis. (3-5year preferred)
- 3. List of references that currently operate these styles of trucks.

SPECIFICATIONS:

• **DIMENSIONS:**

- Overall, Height, < 96.00"
- Overall Length < 26'
- Overall Width, 96.00"
- Pump Module Width, 24.00"
- Angle of Approach, NFPA Minimum, 8 Degrees
- Angle of Departure, NFPA Minimum, 8 Degrees
- NFPA 1901 REQUIREMENTS -INITIAL ATTACK 7.000 02/14/22

NFPA 1901-2016

- NFPA 1901-2016 Compliance, Initial Attack
- Center of Gravity, Calculated
- Road Test Certification

PLACARDS and LABELING

- Label, FAMA #7: Seated and Belted
- Label, FAMA #10: Cab Equipment Mounting
- Label, FAMA #15: "Helmet Worn in Cab"
- Label, FAMA #17: "Vehicle Backing"
- Label, Chassis Data Labels, 1901
- Label, Overall, Height, Length, GVWR
- Label, Warning, "No Ride Rear Step"

COMMERCIAL CHASSIS

- Ford, F-550, DRW, 4x4, 4-Dr, 203.7" WB, XL
- Payload Plus Upgrade Package
- Elec Shift on the Fly (ESOF)
- Skid Plates (Extended and Crew Cab Only)
- Engine, 6.7L Power Stroke Diesel
- Transmission, Automatic, 10-Spd
- Fire/Rescue Prep Pkg
- Operator Commanded Regeneration (OCR)
- Fuel Tank, 40 Gallon, Aft, w/ Aux fuel tap
- Rear Axle Ratio, Limited Slip, 4.88 (6.7L)
- Block Heater
- PTO Provision
- Cab, Crew, 4-Dr
- Power Equipment Group
- 40/20/40 Vinyl Front Bench Seat
- 60/40 Rr Bench Seat
- XL Value Package
- Tires and Wheels: F450/550 (4x4)
- Wheels, 19.50" Steel
- Tires, 225/70Rx19.5G BSW
- Ford Warranty, Superduty

CHASSIS PAINT COLOR 1

- Cab Paint, Single Color, Race Red, PQ
- CHASSIS MODS 7.000 02/14/22

• CAB STEPS, RUNNING BRDS -

■ FORD OPTION: Running Boards, Crew Cab, NFPA

WINCHES/ BRUSH GUARDS/ REPLACEMENT BUMPERS

- NO Front Bumper Replacement PTS
- FORD OPTION: Grille Guard, w/ winch Mount
- Winch, 12,000 lbs., Wire Rope

• HITCHES-TIE OFFS-RECEIVERS

- Receiver Hitch, Rear, Class V, 2.00"
- Trailer Hitch Power Plug, 12V, 7 Prong

FORD SEATING

- FORD/ RAM OPTION: Center Seat Removal for Console
- Seating Capacity, Four (4)
- FORD OPTION: SCBA Seats, Valor, Rear, (2), w/ EZ Lock SCBA Brkt
- Label, FAMA #11: SCBA Seat Insert
- Seat Belt Web Length, Commercial Chassis, Non-NFPA 2016 Compliant
- Seat Belts, Supplied by Chassis Mfgr, Ford, Non-NFPA 2016

TIRE PRESSURE MONITORING SYSTEMS

Tire Prss Monitoring Dvce, LED AirGuard, 6 Wheel

WHEEL TRIM and COVERS

■ FORD OPTION: Wheel Covers, SS, 19.50"

EXHAUST SYSTEMS

- Chassis Exhaust Extension, RH Side
- Exhaust Heat Shield, Under Body Components
- Label, FAMA #04: "Hot Exhaust Dangers"

FRAME PREP and MODIFICATIONS

- Chassis Preparation, Commercial
- Front Tow Hooks Chassis Supplied
- Not Required, Vehicle Data Recorder & Seat Belt Monitor, Ford, Non-NFPA 2017

CONSOLES and EQUIPMENT

- FORD OPTION: Center Console, Aluminum
- Console Option, Cup Holders, (2)

BATTERY SYSTEMS and SHORELINE PLUG-INS

- Master Body Disconnect Switch
- Indicator Light, Mst Body Disconnect, Green
- Kussmaul, Chief 4012, 40 Amp
- Battery Charger Location, Per Manufacturer
- Shore Power Inlet, Kussmaul, Super Auto-Eject 20A
- Auto-Eject Mating Plug, NEMA 5-20P
- Chief Status Center w/ Cover, 091-55-266-YW, Yellow
- Auto Eject Location, Per Manufacturer
- Aux Air Cmp, Kussmaul, 12V

Aux Air Compressor Location, Per Manufacturer

• BACK UP ALARM

- Back Up Alarm, 97db
- 12 VOLT POWER SOURCES
- USB Port, Kussmaul, Dual, 4.8amp total, 2.4amp each

PUMP AND PLUMBING - FOUTS 4 - 7.000 02/14/22

- Pump Package, Side mount, Fouts 4, Hale, DSD, Midship
- Fire Pump, Hale DSD, 1 Stage, Midship
- Pump Warranty, Hale, 5 Year (2 Year Parts & Labor, Parts Only Years 3-5)
- Pump Manuals, Elec, (2)
- Pump Flow Rating, Hale, DSD, 1500 GPM
- Altitude Requirements, 0' to 2000 Feet Above Sea Level

• MASTER INTAKE(S)

- Intake, 6.00", NST, Ungated, LH Side, Pump Panel
- Cap, 6.00", Chrome Long Hndl, NST, Fouts Logo
- Intake, 6.00", NST, Ungated, RH Side, Pump Panel
- Cap, 6.00", Chrome Long Hndl, NST, Fouts Logo

PUMP MODS

Pump Installation, Midship Split-Shaft, Ford 450/550 1

• PUMP SHIFT, FORD, HALE, MIDSHIP

- Pump Shift, Hale, Air, Midship w/ Air System Install 1
- Pump Shift Control, Elec Over Air, IC 1

• PUMP EQUIPMENT, HALE,

- Valves: Akron, Gen II 1
- Drains, 0.75" Mnl, Class1, Lift Handle 1
- Discharge Gauges, Class 1, 2.50", (0-400 psi), White Face 1
- Gauge Bezels, Class1, Chrome 1
- Pump Primer, Hale ESP-PVG, 12V Elec, Fluidless 1
- Fuse, 250 amp, Primer 1
- Anodes, (3), Alloy: 2 Suction, 1 Discharge, Hale 1
- Thermal Relief Valve, TRV-120 1
- Pump Cooler Valve, Hale 1

PRESSURE GOVERNOR

Governor, Class 1, Sentry 1

GATED INTAKE

- Aux Suction, 2.50", LH Side, Pump Panel 1
- Intake Valve Control, Mnl Swing Type-Adjacent 1
- Plug, 2.50" Chrome, NST, w/Chain

TANK TO PUMP VALVE

■ Valve, Tank to Pump, 3.00", Air 1

• TANK FILL VALVE

- Valve, Tank Re-Fill, 2.00" 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Lckng, Class 1, CP T-Hndl 1

• DISCHARGE, LH PANEL

- Discharge, 2.50", LH Side, Pump Panel 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Locking, Class 1, CP T-handle 1
- Discharge, Elbow, 30d, 2.50" MNST, Integral, Class1 1
- Cap, 2.50" Chrome, NST, w/ Chain 1
- Discharge NOT Foam Capable 1

• DISCHARGE, RH FRONT PANEL

- Discharge, 3.00", RH Side, Pump Panel, Front 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Locking, Class 1, CP T-handle 1
- Discharge, Elbow, 30d, 3.00" MNST, Integral, Class 1 1
- Cap, 3.00" Chrome, NST, w/ Chain 1
- Discharge NOT Foam Capable 1

• DISCHARGE, RH REAR PANEL

- Discharge, Push Pull, 3.00" x 4.00", RH Side, Pump Panel, Rr 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Locking, Class 1, CP T-handle 1
- Discharge Adapt, Straight, 3.00"-4.00" MNST, Class1 1
- Discharge Elbow, TFT, 30 deg, 5.00"Stz S x 4.00"F NH S RL 1
- Cap, TFT, 5.00" Storz w/ Lanyard 1
- Discharge NOT Foam Capable 1

DISCHARGE, HOSEBED PRE-CONNECT

- Discharge, Preconnect, 2.50", Front of Hose Bed, RH 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Locking, Class 1, CP T-handle 1
- Discharge NOT Foam Capable

• DISCHARGE(S), CROSSLAYS

- Crosslay Discharge #1- One (1) 1.75", Above Mod 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Locking, Class 1, CP T-handle 1

- Discharge Foam Capable 1
- Crosslay Discharge #2- One (1) 1.75", Above Mod 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Locking, Class 1, CP T-handle 1
- Discharge Foam Capable 1

MASTER GAUGES

Master Gauges, Pressure Governor 1

• TANK LEVEL INDICATOR(S)

Water Level Gauge, Class1 "ITL-40B", Blue, Pump Panel 1

PUMP ENCLOSURE

- Pump House, Side Mount, Ext Alum, 24.00" 1
- Pump Panels, 14 GA, Brushed Finish, 304 SS 1

CROSSLAYS/ DUNNAGE AREA

- Crosslay Config, (2) Hosebeds, Double Stack 1
- Crosslay Divider, 3/16" Alum, w/ Hand Holes 1
- Vinyl Crosslay Cover, Red 1

• PUMP PANEL/ ENCLOSURE LIGHTS

- Pump Panel Lt, LH Side, LED, Strip 1
- Pump Panel Lt, RH Side, LED, Strip 1
- Pump Compt. Lht, LED Strip 1
- Lt, Controls, Switch on pump panel 1

PUMP MODULE RUNNING BOARDS 1

- Running Board, LH Pump Panel, Alum T/P, TM 1
- Running Board, RH Pump Panel, Alum T/P, TM

• PUMP PANEL LABELING

- Label, FAMA 22, Hose Restraint Required 1
- Label, FAMA 18, Intake and Discharge Cap Pressure 1
- Label, FAMA 25, Trained Personal Only 1
- Label, Pump ID Plate, IC 1
- Labels, Color Coded, Innovative Controls 1

FOAM SYSTEM 1

- Foam System, Hale SmartFOAM, 2.1A 1
- Foam Level Gauge, Class A, Class1 "ITLF-40G", Green 1

RESCUE BODY

WATER TANK 1

- Tank, 300 Gal Water, 15 Gal Foam, Poly 1
- Label, FAMA 19, "Foam Type Mixing" 1

BODY 1

Alum, 108.00" L x 95.00" W, Body Const 1

• LEFT SIDE COMPARTMENTS 1

- L1, Ahd Rr Whls Full Ht Comp't Roll Up Dr 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 41.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Swtch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1
- Shelf Trac, Vertical, Alum 1
- Shelf, Alum, Adjustable, ea 1
- L2, Upr Hgh Sde Sgle Comp't Roll Up Dr 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 21.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Swtch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1
- Shelf Trac, Vertical, Alum 1
- Shelf, Alum, Adjustable, ea 1
- L3, Bhnd Rr Whls Full Ht Comp't Roll Up Dr 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 41.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Swtch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1
- Shelf Trac, Vertical, Alum 1
- Shelf, Alum, Adjustable, ea 1

• RIGHT SIDE COMPARTMENTS

- R1, Ahd Rr Whls Full Ht Comp't Roll Up Dr 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 41.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Swtch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1
- Shelf Trac, Vertical, Alum 1
- Shelf, Alum, Adjustable, ea 1
- R2, Upr Hgh Sde Sgle Comp't Roll Up Dr 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 21.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Swtch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1
- Shelf Trac, Vertical, Alum 1
- Shelf, Alum, Adjustable, ea 1
- R3, Bhnd Rr Whls Full Ht Comp't Roll Up Dr 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 41.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Switch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1
- Shelf Trac, Vertical, Alum 1
- Shelf, Alum, Adjustable, ea 1

REAR BODY DESIGN- FLAT BACK 1

- CR1, Rr Cntr Comp't Full Ht Roll Up 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 13.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Swtch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1

HOSEBED

- Hose Bed, Grating, Extrd Alum 1
- Hose Bed, Cross Divider, Fwd 22.00" 1
- Hose Bed Dimensions: 49.75"W x 85.00"L x 15.00"T 1
- Hose Bed, Strge Cpcty, 34.00 Cubic Feet 1
- NO Hose Bed Storage Capacity PTS 1
- Hosebed, Divider, 3/16" Alum, ea 1
- Hsbd Cvr, Vnyl, Velcro, Red 1

• EQUIPMENT STORAGE

- Tray, Suction Hose, (2), LH, Above Compt 1
- Hose Capacity, (2) 8' Sections 1
- Ladder Mtg, RH, Above Compt, (1) PEL-12 1

WHEEL WELL AREA

- Whl Well Cmpt, (3), Sngl SCBA Tubes, Alum Dr 1
- Whl Well Prv, LH Rear, Diesel Fuel Fluid Fill 1

REAR STEPS

- Folding Steps, (2) LH Rear, IC 3004234, w/ (1) LED Step Lt 1
- Lt, Controls, Work/ Step Lts, Park Brake 1

EXTERIOR GRAB RAILS

Grab Rails, (2), Rear, Vertical 1

COMPARTMENT PACKAGES

NO FMI Compartment Packages - PTS 1

• 12V ELECTRICAL SYSTEM - FOUTS 4 - 7.000 02/14/22 1 ELECTRICAL Electrical, 12V 1

NFPA Electrical System 1

GROUND LIGHTING

- Ground Lts, (4), Chassis, 4-Dr. LED 1
- Ground Lts, (2) Forward Rr Whls, LED 1

- Ground Lts, (2) Rr Step, LED 1
- Lt Swtch, Ground Lts w/ Park Brake 1

DOOR OPEN / HAZARD WARNING LIGHT INDICATOR SYSTEMS

Lht, Hazard, LED, Flashing, Red

REAR DIRECTIONALS/ DOT LIGHTS

- Rear Brake/Tail/Turn/Backup, Whelen M6 1
- Tail/Brake Lts, Whelen, LED, M6, Red Lens (Pair) 1
- Turn Signals, Whelen, LED, M6, Amber Lens (Pair) 1
- Backup Lts, Whelen, LED, M6 (Pair) 1
- Tail Lt Bezel, 4 Lights, Whln M6 (Pair), ABS Chrome 1
- Fouts4 Body LED Marker Lights 1
- Marker Lts, 0.75" LED, DOT Required 1
- Reflectors, Red, (4), Rear Body 1
- Lht , License Plate, LED 1

TRAFFIC ADVISOR

■ Traffic Advisor, Whelen TAL85, 48.00" LED 1

• SCENE LIGHT(S) - UPPER BODY 1

- Scene Lts, Whelen, Side Facing Upper Front, (2) M6ZC 1
- Scene Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6ZC, LED, Ea 1
- Scene Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6ZC, LED, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M6 Series, Ea 2
- Scene Lts, Whelen, Side Facing Upper Rear, (2) M6ZC 1
- Scene Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6ZC, LED, Ea 1
- Scene Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6ZC, LED, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M6 Series, Ea 2
- Scene Lts, Whelen, Upper Rear Body, (2) M6ZC 1
- Scene Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6ZC, LED, Ea 1
- Scene Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6ZC, LED, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M6 Series, Ea 2
- Left Scene Swtch, Rocker, Single Switch, Cab 1
- Rear Scene Swtch, Rocker, Single Switch, Cab 1
- Right Scene Swtch, Rocker, Single Switch, Cab 1
- Scene Lt Swtch, Rr Scene Lts, Auto w/ Reverse 1

• BACKUP CAMERA

- Rearview Camera, 7.00" Color Monitor
- Monitor Location, Rear View Mirror

WARNING LIGHTS PACKAGE

Warning light flash pattern, Default NFPA 1

LIGHTBAR

- Lht Bar, Federal, 53" Vision SLR 1
- White Lights, "Blocking Right of Way" 1
- Lt Bar Swtch, Rocker, Single Switch/ Master Warn, Cab 1
- Lightbar Mount, MKEZ7 1

• UPPER LEVEL WARNING LIGHTS 1

- Warn Lts, Whelen, Side Facing Upper Front, (2) M6 Series LED 1
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M6 Series, Ea 2
- Warn Lts, Whelen, Side Facing Upper Rr, (2) M6 Series LED 1
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M6 Series, Ea 2
- Warn Lts, Whelen, Upper Rear, (2) M6 Series LED 1
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M6 Series, Ea 2
- Upper Warn Lt. Swtch, Rocker, Single Switch/ Master Warn, Cab 1

LOWER LEVEL WARNING LIGHTS 1

- Warning Lts, Whelen, Lower Warn Lt, (2) M4 Series LED 1
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M4 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M4 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M4 Series, Ea 2
- Warning Lts, Whelen, Intrsct, (2) M4 Series LED 1
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M4 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M4 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M4 Series, Ea 2
- Warning Lts, Whelen, Low Mid Body (2) M7 Series LED 1
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M7 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M7 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M7 Series, Ea 1
- Warning Lts, Whelen, Low Rr (2) M6 Series LED
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Bezel(s), Taillights
- Lower Warn Lt. Swtch, Rocker, Single Switch/ Master Warn, Cab

AUDIBLE WARNING

- Siren, Whelen Howler Siren Amplifier
- Siren, Whelen, 295SLSA1, 100/200 watt
- Speaker, Whelen, 100 watt, SA315, RH Side
- Label, FAMA #42: "Siren Noise"

• PAINT/ PREP/ STRIPE

PAINT AND FINISH

- Cab, Standard Color
- Anti-Corrosion Protection, ECK
- Body Undercoating, Rescue Body
- Compartment Interiors, Side, Zolatone

• PAINT TWO TONE CAB

Wheel Rims, As Provided with Chassis

• LETTERING AND STRIPING

- Rear Cheveron Striping, Red/ Florescent Yellow-Geen
- DEALER SUPPLIED GRAPHICS PACKAGE

• LOOSE EQUIPMENT

WARRANTY REQUIREMENTS

- General Warranty, (1) Year
- Body Warranty, Alum, (10) Year
- Plumbing Warranty, Stainless Steel, (10) Year
- Paint Warranty, (5) Year, PPG
- Electrical Warranty, (2) Year
- Akron Brass Warranty, (10) Year Valves, (5) Year Elec
- Whelen Warranty, (2) Year Siren, (5) Year LED
- Whelen Warranty, Limited Lifetime
- Kussmaul Warranty

PART 2 – PRODUCTS

All products and material shall meet or exceed all specifications set forth by this RFP, as described in either graphical or in written form, and/or as required in writing by the Town of Dundee.

PART 3 – CONTRACT CLOSEOUT

1.1 CLOSEOUT PROCEDURES

- **A.** Submit written certification that Contract Documents have been reviewed, work has been inspected and work is complete in accordance with Contract Documents and ready for Town inspection.
- **B.** Submit final application for payment identifying total adjusted contract sum, previous payments, and sum remaining due.

1.2 ADJUSTING

A. Adjust operating products and equipment to ensure smooth and unhindered operation.

1.3 WARRANTIES

A. Except as otherwise provided in this RFP, all work, product(s), equipment, materials, and workmanship shall be warranted for, at a minimum, one (1) calendar year from the date of acceptance by the Town Commission of the Town of Dundee, Florida.



BID FORM

FY 2023-2024 RFP 24-05 1 – Fire Department Mini Pumper

RETURN DATE: December 27, 2023

RETURN TO: Office of the Town Clerk

Attn: RFP 24-05 Town of Dundee P.O. Box 1000 202 East Main Street Dundee, Florida 33838

ITEM	QTY	UNIT	UNIT COST (\$)	TOTAL COST (\$)
1.				
2.				
3.				
4.				
5.				
6.				
7				
8.				
			TOTAL (\$)	

Bid Alternate

ITEM	QTY	UNIT	UNIT COST (\$)	TOTAL COST (\$)
1.				
2.				

ALL BID FORMS SHOULD INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION:

Company Submitting Bid:	
Company Address:	
Company City:	State: Zip:
Company Phone Number:	Fax Number:
Authorized Representative:	
Signature:	- Date:
Print Name:	Phone Number:
Title:	

NOTE: THE FAILURE TO FOLLOW THE BID PROTEST PROCEDURE REQUIREMENTS WITHIN THE TIME FRAMES PRESCRIBED HEREIN AS ESTABLISHED BY THE TOWN OF DUNDEE, FLORIDA, SHALL CONSTITUTE A WAIVER OF BIDDERS PROTEST AND ANY RESULTING CLAIMS.

EXHIBIT – A



AFFIDAVIT CERTIFICATION IMMIGRATION LAWS

THE TOWN OF DUNDEE, FLORIDA, WILL NOT INTENTIONALLY AWARD TOWN CONTRACTS TO ANY CONTRACTOR WHO KNOWINGLY EMPLOYS UNAUTHORIZED ALIEN WORKERS, CONSTITUTING A VIOLATION OF THE EMPLOYMENT PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN <u>8 U.S.C. SECTION 1324 a(e)</u> AND/OR SECTION 274A(e) OF THE IMMIGRATION AND NATIONALITY ACT ("INA").

THE TOWN OF DUNDEE, FLORIDA, MAY CONSIDER THE EMPLOYMENT BY ANY CONTRACTOR OF UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS A VIOLATION OF SECTION 274A(e) OF THE INA. SUCH VIOLATION BY THE RECIPIENT OF THE EMPLOYMENT PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN SECTION 274A(e) OF THE INA SHALL BE GROUNDS FOR UNILATERAL CANCELLATION OF THE CONTRACT BY THE TOWN OF DUNDEE.

BIDDER ATTESTS THAT THEY ARE FULLY COMPLIANT WITH ALL APPLICABLE IMMIGRATION LAWS (SPECIFICALLY TO THE 1986 IMMIGRATION ACT AND SUBSEQUENT AMENDMENTS).

Company Name			
Signature	Date:		
Printed Name			
Title			
PRIVATE PROVIDER FII	RM		
THIS SECTIO	N TO BE COMPLETED BY	A NOTARY PUBLIC:	
STATE OF	COUNTY	OF	
SWORN TO AND SUBSCR	IBED BEFORE ME THIS	DAY OF	, 20
NOTARY PUBLIC: CHECK	ONE PERSONALLY KNOW	N TO MEProduced	I.D
TYPE OF ID F	PRODUCED		
SIGN:			
DD INIT.			

NONCOLLUSION AFFIDAVIT OF BIDDER

State of Florida

County of	P	ol	K
-----------	---	----	---

County	y of Polk						
I		("Affiant"), b	eing first duly	sworn, depo	ses and says	that:	
(1)	Affiant is company) the	bidder that subm	(insert job title itted the attache	e) of d bid;		(ins	sert name of
(2)		y informed respect		ration and co	ontents of the	e attached bi	d and of all
(3)	Such bid is ge	nuine and is not a	a collusive or sh	am bid;			
	employees or or agreed, dire bid in connect from bidding i agreement or fix the price or cost element collusion, com Dundee or any	id Affiant nor ar parties in interes ectly or indirectly ion with the Common connection with collusion or common prices in the attact of the bid prices spiracy, connivate person interested prices quoted in spiracy, connivated prices quoted prices quoted in spiracy, connivated prices quoted prices quoted in spiracy, connivated prices quoted quoted prices quoted quoted quoted prices quoted quo	t, including Affi with any other I tract for which the h such Contract; munication or cached bid or of a e, or the bid price ance or unlawfund in the propose	iant, has in a bidder, firm of the attached be nor in any monference with any other bidder of any other lagreement, d Contract; and are fair ar	ny way collu- or person to su oid has been s nanner, directl oth any other der; nor has f er bidder; nor any advanta and	ded, conspired by or indirectly bidder, firm ixed any over has secured age against the dare not tail	ed, connived sive or sham has refrained by, sought by or person to thead, profit through any he Town of
		entatives, owners		•	•	the Armant	of any of its
	THIS S	ECTION TO	BE COMPLE	TED BY A	NOTARY	PUBLIC:	
STAT	E OF			COUNTY C)F		
SWOF	RN TO AND S	SUBSCRIBED 1	BEFORE ME	THIS	DAY O	F	, 20
NOTA	RY PUBLIC:	CHECK ONE	PERSONALL	Y KNOWN	TO ME	Produced I	.D
	TYPE	OF ID PRODU	ICED				
SIGN:							

CERTIFICATION OF DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

I		("Undersigned"), certify that:			
	(1)	Undersigned is(insert job title) and duly authorized to act on behalf of the Contractorthat submitted the attached bid.			
	(2)	Undersigned acknowledges that Preference shall be given to businesses with drug-free workplace programs.			

- (3) Undersigned acknowledges that whenever two (2) or more bids which are equal with respect to price, quality, and service are received by the Town for the Purchasing of commodities or contractual services, a bid received from a business that certifies that it has implemented a drug-free workplace program shall be given preference in the award process.
- (4) In order to have a drug-free workplace program, a business shall:
 - (a) Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in-the workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition.
 - (b) Inform employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the business's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace, any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs, and the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.
 - (c) Give each employee engaged in providing the commodities or contractual services that are under bid a copy of the statement specified in subsection (a).
 - (d) In the statement specified in subsection (a), notify the employees that, as a condition of working on the commodities or contractual services that are under bid, the employee will abide by the terms of the statement and will notify the employer of any conviction of, or plea of guilty or nolo contendere to, any violation of Chapter 893 of the Florida Statutes or of any controlled substance law of the United States or any state, for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) days after such conviction.
 - (e) Impose a sanction on, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program if such is available in the employee's community, by any employee who is so convicted.
 - (f) Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of this section.

WORKPLACE, does hereby	on authorized to sign this CERTIFICATION OF DRUG-FREE certify that the Contractor,	
DATE:	NAME OF ENTITY:	
PHONE/FAX:		
ADDRESS:		
SIGNATURE:		
PRINT NAME:		

SALES TAX SAVINGS FORM

CONTRACT NUMBER:	
NAME OF PROJECT:	

MATERIALS	(1) Amount in Contract	(2) Sales Tax	(3) Net Amount

- (1) This is the amount to be deducted from contract by change order.
- (2) The amount of the sales tax included in the material purchase line item supplied by the Contractor.
- (3) The amount to be used by the Town to make the material purchase per the Contractor's stated quantities.



RFP 24-05

FY 2023-2024 – 1 FIRE DEPARTMENT MINI PUMPER

Sealed Bids marked "SEALED BID – FY 2023-2024 – 1 FIRE DEPARTMENT MINI PUMPER" will be received by the Town Manager of the Town of Dundee, Florida, until 4:00 PM on December 27, 2023 at P.O. Box 1000, 202 East Main Street, Dundee, Florida 33838, for the following:

The Town of Dundee (the "Town") is seeking proposals on and/or for one (1) FIRE DEPARTMENT PUMP TRUCK (the "Truck") in accordance with the requirements and specification set forth herein and as depicted by **Exhibit "A"** which is attached to the Work Summary and incorporated herein by reference. The Town requires certain items to be included in the Bid, as follows: (1) options to finance though the vendor/dealership or, in the alternative, the right and ability for the Town to select, in its sole discretion, to finance though a bank or lending institution the purchase price of and/or for the one (1) FIRE DEPARTMENT PUMP TRUCK; and (2) the Truck must be delivered and ready for route.

In addition to the aforementioned, the information and specification(s) required for the Truck and this RFP 24-05 are, as follows:

- 1. Bidder must provide Lead time of the units. (from build to delivery)
- 2. Budder must include all warranty on the body and chassis. (3-5year preferred)
- 3. List of references that currently operate these styles of trucks.

SPECIFICATIONS:

• **DIMENSIONS:**

- Overall, Height, < 96.00"
- Overall Length < 26'
- Overall Width, 96.00"
- Pump Module Width, 24.00"
- Angle of Approach, NFPA Minimum, 8 Degrees
- Angle of Departure, NFPA Minimum, 8 Degrees
- NFPA 1901 REQUIREMENTS -INITIAL ATTACK 7.000 02/14/22

NFPA 1901-2016

- NFPA 1901-2016 Compliance, Initial Attack
- Center of Gravity, Calculated
- Road Test Certification

PLACARDS and LABELING

- Label, FAMA #7: Seated and Belted
- Label, FAMA #10: Cab Equipment Mounting
- Label, FAMA #15: "Helmet Worn in Cab"
- Label, FAMA #17: "Vehicle Backing"
- Label, Chassis Data Labels, 1901
- Label, Overall, Height, Length, GVWR
- Label, Warning, "No Ride Rear Step"

• COMMERCIAL CHASSIS

- Ford, F-550, DRW, 4x4, 4-Dr, 203.7" WB, XL
- Payload Plus Upgrade Package
- Elec Shift on the Fly (ESOF)
- Skid Plates (Extended and Crew Cab Only)
- Engine, 6.7L Power Stroke Diesel
- Transmission, Automatic, 10-Spd
- Fire/Rescue Prep Pkg
- Operator Commanded Regeneration (OCR)
- Fuel Tank, 40 Gallon, Aft, w/ Aux fuel tap
- Rear Axle Ratio, Limited Slip, 4.88 (6.7L)
- Block Heater
- PTO Provision
- Cab, Crew, 4-Dr
- Power Equipment Group
- 40/20/40 Vinyl Front Bench Seat
- 60/40 Rr Bench Seat
- XL Value Package
- Tires and Wheels: F450/550 (4x4)
- Wheels, 19.50" Steel
- Tires, 225/70Rx19.5G BSW
- Ford Warranty, Superduty

CHASSIS PAINT COLOR 1

- Cab Paint, Single Color, Race Red, PQ
- CHASSIS MODS 7.000 02/14/22

• CAB STEPS, RUNNING BRDS -

■ FORD OPTION: Running Boards, Crew Cab, NFPA

WINCHES/ BRUSH GUARDS/ REPLACEMENT BUMPERS

- NO Front Bumper Replacement PTS
- FORD OPTION: Grille Guard, w/ winch Mount
- Winch, 12,000 lbs., Wire Rope

• HITCHES-TIE OFFS-RECEIVERS

- Receiver Hitch, Rear, Class V, 2.00"
- Trailer Hitch Power Plug, 12V, 7 Prong

FORD SEATING

- FORD/ RAM OPTION: Center Seat Removal for Console
- Seating Capacity, Four (4)
- FORD OPTION: SCBA Seats, Valor, Rear, (2), w/ EZ Lock SCBA Brkt
- Label, FAMA #11: SCBA Seat Insert
- Seat Belt Web Length, Commercial Chassis, Non-NFPA 2016 Compliant
- Seat Belts, Supplied by Chassis Mfgr, Ford, Non-NFPA 2016

• TIRE PRESSURE MONITORING SYSTEMS

Tire Prss Monitoring Dvce, LED AirGuard, 6 Wheel

WHEEL TRIM and COVERS

■ FORD OPTION: Wheel Covers, SS, 19.50"

EXHAUST SYSTEMS

- Chassis Exhaust Extension, RH Side
- Exhaust Heat Shield, Under Body Components
- Label, FAMA #04: "Hot Exhaust Dangers"

• FRAME PREP and MODIFICATIONS

- Chassis Preparation, Commercial
- Front Tow Hooks Chassis Supplied
- Not Required, Vehicle Data Recorder & Seat Belt Monitor, Ford, Non-NFPA 2017

• CONSOLES and EQUIPMENT

- FORD OPTION: Center Console, Aluminum
- Console Option, Cup Holders, (2)

BATTERY SYSTEMS and SHORELINE PLUG-INS

- Master Body Disconnect Switch
- Indicator Light, Mst Body Disconnect, Green
- Kussmaul, Chief 4012, 40 Amp
- Battery Charger Location, Per Manufacturer
- Shore Power Inlet, Kussmaul, Super Auto-Eject 20A
- Auto-Eject Mating Plug, NEMA 5-20P
- Chief Status Center w/ Cover, 091-55-266-YW, Yellow
- Auto Eject Location, Per Manufacturer
- Aux Air Cmp, Kussmaul, 12V
- Aux Air Compressor Location, Per Manufacturer

• BACK UP ALARM

- Back Up Alarm, 97db
- 12 VOLT POWER SOURCES
- USB Port, Kussmaul, Dual, 4.8amp total, 2.4amp each

• PUMP AND PLUMBING - FOUTS 4 - 7.000 02/14/22

- Pump Package, Side mount, Fouts 4, Hale, DSD, Midship
- Fire Pump, Hale DSD, 1 Stage, Midship
- Pump Warranty, Hale, 5 Year (2 Year Parts & Labor, Parts Only Years 3-5)
- Pump Manuals, Elec, (2)
- Pump Flow Rating, Hale, DSD, 1500 GPM
- Altitude Requirements, 0' to 2000 Feet Above Sea Level

• MASTER INTAKE(S)

- Intake, 6.00", NST, Ungated, LH Side, Pump Panel
- Cap, 6.00", Chrome Long Hndl, NST, Fouts Logo
- Intake, 6.00", NST, Ungated, RH Side, Pump Panel
- Cap, 6.00", Chrome Long Hndl, NST, Fouts Logo

PUMP MODS

Pump Installation, Midship Split-Shaft, Ford 450/550 1

• PUMP SHIFT, FORD, HALE, MIDSHIP

- Pump Shift, Hale, Air, Midship w/ Air System Install 1
- Pump Shift Control, Elec Over Air, IC 1

• PUMP EQUIPMENT, HALE,

- Valves: Akron, Gen II 1
- Drains, 0.75" Mnl, Class1, Lift Handle 1
- Discharge Gauges, Class 1, 2.50", (0-400 psi), White Face 1
- Gauge Bezels, Class 1, Chrome 1
- Pump Primer, Hale ESP-PVG, 12V Elec, Fluidless 1
- Fuse, 250 amp, Primer 1
- Anodes, (3), Alloy: 2 Suction, 1 Discharge, Hale 1
- Thermal Relief Valve, TRV-120 1
- Pump Cooler Valve, Hale 1

PRESSURE GOVERNOR

Governor, Class 1, Sentry 1

• GATED INTAKE

- Aux Suction, 2.50", LH Side, Pump Panel 1
- Intake Valve Control, Mnl Swing Type-Adjacent 1
- Plug, 2.50" Chrome, NST, w/Chain

• TANK TO PUMP VALVE

Valve, Tank to Pump, 3.00", Air 1

• TANK FILL VALVE

- Valve, Tank Re-Fill, 2.00" 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Lckng, Class 1, CP T-Hndl 1

• DISCHARGE, LH PANEL

- Discharge, 2.50", LH Side, Pump Panel 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Locking, Class 1, CP T-handle 1
- Discharge, Elbow, 30d, 2.50" MNST, Integral, Class1 1
- Cap, 2.50" Chrome, NST, w/ Chain 1
- Discharge NOT Foam Capable 1

• DISCHARGE, RH FRONT PANEL

- Discharge, 3.00", RH Side, Pump Panel, Front 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Locking, Class 1, CP T-handle 1
- Discharge, Elbow, 30d, 3.00" MNST, Integral, Class1 1
- Cap, 3.00" Chrome, NST, w/ Chain 1
- Discharge NOT Foam Capable 1

• DISCHARGE, RH REAR PANEL

- Discharge, Push Pull, 3.00" x 4.00", RH Side, Pump Panel, Rr 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Locking, Class 1, CP T-handle 1
- Discharge Adapt, Straight, 3.00"-4.00" MNST, Class1 1
- Discharge Elbow, TFT, 30 deg, 5.00"Stz S x 4.00"F NH S RL 1
- Cap, TFT, 5.00" Storz w/ Lanyard 1
- Discharge NOT Foam Capable 1

• DISCHARGE, HOSEBED PRE-CONNECT

- Discharge, Preconnect, 2.50", Front of Hose Bed, RH 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Locking, Class 1, CP T-handle 1
- Discharge NOT Foam Capable

• DISCHARGE(S), CROSSLAYS

- Crosslay Discharge #1- One (1) 1.75", Above Mod 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Locking, Class 1, CP T-handle 1
- Discharge Foam Capable 1
- Crosslay Discharge #2- One (1) 1.75", Above Mod 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Locking, Class 1, CP T-handle 1
- Discharge Foam Capable 1

MASTER GAUGES

Master Gauges, Pressure Governor 1

• TANK LEVEL INDICATOR(S)

Water Level Gauge, Class1 "ITL-40B", Blue, Pump Panel 1

PUMP ENCLOSURE

- Pump House, Side Mount, Ext Alum, 24.00" 1
- Pump Panels, 14 GA, Brushed Finish, 304 SS 1

CROSSLAYS/ DUNNAGE AREA

- Crosslay Config, (2) Hosebeds, Double Stack 1
- Crosslay Divider, 3/16" Alum, w/ Hand Holes 1
- Vinyl Crosslay Cover, Red 1

• PUMP PANEL/ ENCLOSURE LIGHTS

- Pump Panel Lt, LH Side, LED, Strip 1
- Pump Panel Lt, RH Side, LED, Strip 1
- Pump Compt. Lht, LED Strip 1
- Lt, Controls, Switch on pump panel 1

PUMP MODULE RUNNING BOARDS 1

- Running Board, LH Pump Panel, Alum T/P, TM 1
- Running Board, RH Pump Panel, Alum T/P, TM

• PUMP PANEL LABELING

- Label, FAMA 22, Hose Restraint Required 1
- Label, FAMA 18, Intake and Discharge Cap Pressure 1
- Label, FAMA 25, Trained Personal Only 1
- Label, Pump ID Plate, IC 1
- Labels, Color Coded, Innovative Controls 1

FOAM SYSTEM 1

- Foam System, Hale SmartFOAM, 2.1A 1
- Foam Level Gauge, Class A, Class1 "ITLF-40G", Green 1

RESCUE BODY

• WATER TANK 1

- Tank, 300 Gal Water, 15 Gal Foam, Poly 1
- Label, FAMA 19, "Foam Type Mixing" 1

BODY 1

■ Alum, 108.00" L x 95.00" W, Body Const 1

• LEFT SIDE COMPARTMENTS 1

- L1, Ahd Rr Whls Full Ht Comp't Roll Up Dr 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1

- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 41.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Swtch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1
- Shelf Trac, Vertical, Alum 1
- Shelf, Alum, Adjustable, ea 1
- L2, Upr Hgh Sde Sgle Comp't Roll Up Dr 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 21.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Swtch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1
- Shelf Trac, Vertical, Alum 1
- Shelf, Alum, Adjustable, ea 1
- L3, Bhnd Rr Whls Full Ht Comp't Roll Up Dr 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 41.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Swtch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1
- Shelf Trac, Vertical, Alum 1
- Shelf, Alum, Adjustable, ea 1

• RIGHT SIDE COMPARTMENTS

- R1, Ahd Rr Whls Full Ht Comp't Roll Up Dr 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 41.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Swtch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1
- Shelf Trac, Vertical, Alum 1
- Shelf, Alum, Adjustable, ea 1
- R2, Upr Hgh Sde Sgle Comp't Roll Up Dr 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 21.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Swtch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1
- Shelf Trac, Vertical, Alum 1
- Shelf, Alum, Adjustable, ea 1
- R3, Bhnd Rr Whls Full Ht Comp't Roll Up Dr 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 41.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Switch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1
- Shelf Trac, Vertical, Alum 1
- Shelf, Alum, Adjustable, ea 1

• REAR BODY DESIGN- FLAT BACK 1

- CR1, Rr Cntr Comp't Full Ht Roll Up 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 13.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Swtch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1

HOSEBED

- Hose Bed, Grating, Extrd Alum 1
- Hose Bed, Cross Divider, Fwd 22.00" 1
- Hose Bed Dimensions: 49.75"W x 85.00"L x 15.00"T 1
- Hose Bed, Strge Cpcty, 34.00 Cubic Feet 1
- NO Hose Bed Storage Capacity PTS 1
- Hosebed, Divider, 3/16" Alum, ea 1
- Hsbd Cvr, Vnyl, Velcro, Red 1

• EQUIPMENT STORAGE

- Tray, Suction Hose, (2), LH, Above Compt 1
- Hose Capacity, (2) 8' Sections 1
- Ladder Mtg, RH, Above Compt, (1) PEL-12 1

• WHEEL WELL AREA

- Whl Well Cmpt, (3), Sngl SCBA Tubes, Alum Dr 1
- Whl Well Prv, LH Rear, Diesel Fuel Fluid Fill 1

REAR STEPS

- Folding Steps, (2) LH Rear, IC 3004234, w/ (1) LED Step Lt 1
- Lt, Controls, Work/ Step Lts, Park Brake 1

• EXTERIOR GRAB RAILS

• Grab Rails, (2), Rear, Vertical 1

COMPARTMENT PACKAGES

NO FMI Compartment Packages - PTS 1

• 12V ELECTRICAL SYSTEM - FOUTS 4 - 7.000 02/14/22 1 ELECTRICAL Electrical, 12V 1

NFPA Electrical System 1

• GROUND LIGHTING

- Ground Lts, (4), Chassis, 4-Dr. LED 1
- Ground Lts, (2) Forward Rr Whls, LED 1
- Ground Lts, (2) Rr Step, LED 1
- Lt Swtch, Ground Lts w/ Park Brake 1

DOOR OPEN / HAZARD WARNING LIGHT INDICATOR SYSTEMS

Lht, Hazard, LED, Flashing, Red

REAR DIRECTIONALS/ DOT LIGHTS

- Rear Brake/Tail/Turn/Backup, Whelen M6 1
- Tail/Brake Lts, Whelen, LED, M6, Red Lens (Pair) 1
- Turn Signals, Whelen, LED, M6, Amber Lens (Pair) 1
- Backup Lts, Whelen, LED, M6 (Pair) 1
- Tail Lt Bezel, 4 Lights, Whln M6 (Pair), ABS Chrome 1
- Fouts4 Body LED Marker Lights 1
- Marker Lts, 0.75" LED, DOT Required 1
- Reflectors, Red, (4), Rear Body 1
- Lht, License Plate, LED 1

• TRAFFIC ADVISOR

■ Traffic Advisor, Whelen TAL85, 48.00" LED 1

• SCENE LIGHT(S) - UPPER BODY 1

- Scene Lts, Whelen, Side Facing Upper Front, (2) M6ZC 1
- Scene Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6ZC, LED, Ea 1
- Scene Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6ZC, LED, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M6 Series, Ea 2
- Scene Lts, Whelen, Side Facing Upper Rear, (2) M6ZC 1
- Scene Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6ZC, LED, Ea 1
- Scene Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6ZC, LED, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M6 Series, Ea 2
- Scene Lts, Whelen, Upper Rear Body, (2) M6ZC 1
- Scene Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6ZC, LED, Ea 1
- Scene Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6ZC, LED, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M6 Series, Ea 2
- Left Scene Swtch, Rocker, Single Switch, Cab 1
- Rear Scene Swtch, Rocker, Single Switch, Cab 1
- Right Scene Swtch, Rocker, Single Switch, Cab 1
- Scene Lt Swtch , Rr Scene Lts, Auto w/ Reverse 1

BACKUP CAMERA

- Rearview Camera, 7.00" Color Monitor
- Monitor Location, Rear View Mirror

WARNING LIGHTS PACKAGE

Warning light flash pattern, Default NFPA 1

LIGHTBAR

- Lht Bar, Federal, 53" Vision SLR 1
- White Lights, "Blocking Right of Way" 1
- Lt Bar Swtch, Rocker, Single Switch/ Master Warn, Cab 1
- Lightbar Mount, MKEZ7 1

UPPER LEVEL WARNING LIGHTS 1

- Warn Lts, Whelen, Side Facing Upper Front, (2) M6 Series LED 1
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M6 Series, Ea 2
- Warn Lts, Whelen, Side Facing Upper Rr, (2) M6 Series LED 1
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M6 Series, Ea 2
- Warn Lts, Whelen, Upper Rear, (2) M6 Series LED 1
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M6 Series, Ea 2
- Upper Warn Lt. Swtch, Rocker, Single Switch/ Master Warn, Cab 1

• LOWER LEVEL WARNING LIGHTS 1

- Warning Lts, Whelen, Lower Warn Lt, (2) M4 Series LED 1
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M4 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M4 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M4 Series, Ea 2
- Warning Lts, Whelen, Intrsct, (2) M4 Series LED 1
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M4 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M4 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M4 Series, Ea 2
- Warning Lts, Whelen, Low Mid Body (2) M7 Series LED 1
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M7 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M7 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M7 Series, Ea 1
- Warning Lts, Whelen, Low Rr (2) M6 Series LED
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Bezel(s), Taillights
- Lower Warn Lt. Swtch, Rocker, Single Switch/ Master Warn, Cab

AUDIBLE WARNING

- Siren, Whelen Howler Siren Amplifier
- Siren, Whelen, 295SLSA1, 100/200 watt
- Speaker, Whelen, 100 watt, SA315, RH Side
- Label, FAMA #42: "Siren Noise"

• PAINT/ PREP/ STRIPE

PAINT AND FINISH

- Cab, Standard Color
- Anti-Corrosion Protection, ECK
- Body Undercoating, Rescue Body
- Compartment Interiors, Side, Zolatone

• PAINT TWO TONE CAB

Wheel Rims, As Provided with Chassis

LETTERING AND STRIPING

- Rear Cheveron Striping, Red/ Florescent Yellow-Geen
- DEALER SUPPLIED GRAPHICS PACKAGE

• LOOSE EQUIPMENT

• WARRANTY REQUIREMENTS

- General Warranty, (1) Year
- Body Warranty, Alum, (10) Year
- Plumbing Warranty, Stainless Steel, (10) Year
- Paint Warranty, (5) Year, PPG
- Electrical Warranty, (2) Year
- Akron Brass Warranty, (10) Year Valves, (5) Year Elec
- Whelen Warranty, (2) Year Siren, (5) Year LED
- Whelen Warranty, Limited Lifetime
- Kussmaul Warranty

On Thursday, December 28, 2023 at 10:00 AM, at Town Hall, 202 East Main Street, Dundee, Florida 33838, bids will then and there be publicly opened and read aloud at a meeting of the Purchasing Review Committee.

The project specified shall be furnished in accordance with this Request for Proposal, Work Specifications, Terms and Conditions, and Work Summary attached hereto and made a part hereof as if fully set forth herein.

Questions may be submitted to the Town Clerk until 3:30pm on December 20, 2023. For more information regarding this RFP 24-05, please contact Trevor Douthat, (863) 438-8330 or by e-mail at tdouthat@townofdundee.com.

Public Records - It is the policy of this state that all state, county, and municipal records are open for personal inspection and copying by any person. Providing access to public records is a duty of each governmental agency. §119.01, Fla. Stat. (2019). As such, do not submit any document(s) that you do not want to be made public. Bidders shall submit bids on the Proposal and Bid Form furnished by the Town. Please note the NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT OF PRIME BIDDER form which must also be completed. A W-9 form must be attached to the bid when returned by the responding vendor. Payment will be rendered to the name and ID appearing on the W-9. A client reference list that includes at least three (3) references and a summary of the bidders' qualifications and experience should be submitted in the bid packet. The bidder shall submit a tentative timeline detailing the process and anticipated timeline necessary to complete the project.

An original and five (5) copies, a total of six (6), of the proposal shall be submitted in sealed envelopes/packages addressed to Trevor Douthat, Town Clerk, Town of Dundee, Florida, and marked RFP 24-05: FY 2024-2025 – 1 FIRE DEPARTMENT MINI PUMPER.

The Town of Dundee welcomes your response to this **RFP 24-05**. The Town of Dundee reserves the right to reject any proposal found to be non-responsive, vague, non-conforming, or irresponsible. The Town of Dundee may withdraw all or part of this **RFP 24-05** at any time to protect its best interest. The desire of the Town of Dundee to pursue proposals shall in no way obligate the Town to compensate you for your efforts or to execute a contract. All proposers are asked to be thorough yet concise in the response(s) to this **RFP 24-05**. The failure to provide a response in the manner prescribed herein shall be grounds for disqualification.

The Town of Dundee, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Florida, reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received pursuant to this RFP 24-05, re-advertise RFP 24-05, waive informalities, and the Town of Dundee may enter into a contract determined, in the sole discretion of the Town of Dundee, to be in its best interest, in accordance with the Terms and Conditions referenced herein.

TOWN OF DUNDEE – GENERAL PROVISION CLAUSE(S) TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1) GENERAL CONDITIONS AND STATE LAW COMPLIANCE:

I. General Conditions:

- a) Bidders are required to submit their proposals subject to and upon the express terms and conditions set forth herein.
- b) Bidders shall thoroughly examine the specifications, instructions, all other Contract Documents (as defined in Section 2), visit the site of this project (if applicable) and fully acquaint itself, at its own risk, with all conditions which may affect completion of this project and/or delivery of bid items.
- c) These Terms and Conditions and any Contract Documents are subject and subordinate to any existing or future state, federal, or local law, regulation, or written policy, which may be applicable hereto, including any applicable building codes.
- d) Notwithstanding anything in this **Request For Proposal FY 2023-2024 1 FIRE DEPARTMENT MINI PUMPER No. 24-05** (the "RFP") to the contrary, the obligation of the Town of Dundee (the "Town") to furnish payment is expressly subject to appropriation(s) of sufficient public funds by the Town Commission of the Town of Dundee, Florida. In the event the Town Commission of the Town of Dundee fails to appropriate sufficient funds to satisfy the payment obligations to the successful bidder of any kind or type, the Town and/or successful bidder may immediately terminate any agreement entered into pursuant to this RFP and be released from any future responsibility or liability thereunder.

e) **PUBLIC RECORDS**:

The Town and Contractor (as defined in Section 2) agree that the Contractor shall comply with Florida's public records laws to specifically include the following:

Public Records. Consultant/Bidder/Contractor agrees to:

- i) Keep and maintain public records required by the public agency to perform the service.
- ii) Upon request from the public agency's custodian of public records, provide the public agency with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copies within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119 of the Florida Statutes or as otherwise provided by law.
- iii) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following completion of the contract if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the public agency.

- iv) Upon completion of the Contract (as defined in Section 2), transfer, at no cost, to the public agency all public records in possession of the Contractor or keep and maintain public records required by the public agency to perform the service. If the Contractor transfers all public records to the public agency upon completion of the Contract, the Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If the Contractor keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the Contract, the Contractor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to the public agency, upon request from the public agency's custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the public agency.
- f) IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT 863-438-8330, tdouthat@townofdundee.com, Trevor Douthat, P.O. Box 1000, 202 East Main Street, Dundee, Florida 33838.

If the Contractor does not comply with a public records request, the Town shall enforce the Contract provisions which may include immediate termination of the Contract.

- g) It shall be understood and agreed that by the submission of a proposal, the Contractor, if awarded a contract, shall save harmless and fully indemnify the Town and any of its officers, or agents from any and all damages that may, at any time, be imposed or claimed for infringement of any patent right, trademark, or copyright of any person or persons, association, or corporation, as the result of the use of such articles by the Town, or any of its officers, agents, or employees, and of which articles the Contractor is not the patentee, assignee, licensee, or lawfully entitled to sell same.
- h) It is the intent of the Town that this RFP promotes competitive bidding. It shall be the bidder's responsibility to advise the Town at the address noted on the cover letter, if any language, requirements, etc. inadvertently limits the requirements stated in this RFP to a single source. Such notification shall be received in writing not later than ten (10) days prior to the bid opening date.
- i) Bidders must possess any applicable business, contractor, or occupational licenses at the time of submission of the bid. The Town may request proof of such licensure. Bidders shall also obtain all permits required for this project.
- j) The Town shall be entitled to rely on the written representations of the bidder. No claims shall be paid by the Town unless in writing and approved by the Town. Additionally, sovereign immunity is not waived as to any verbal representations or comments made by the Town.
- k) Unless detailed elsewhere in the bid documents, proof of insurance naming the Town as an additional insured shall be required of the successful bidder (on any project requiring work, labor, and/or installation on Town property) with the following minimum coverage: workers compensation, general liability, and automobile insurance in an amount and form acceptable to the Town, with limits of not less than one-million dollars and zero cents (\$1,000,000.00).

II. State Law Compliance:

- a) Scrutinized Companies. Section 287.135 of the Florida Statutes states that a company is ineligible to, and may not, bid on, submit a proposal for, or enter into or renew a contract with the TOWN for goods or services in any amount if at the time of bidding on, submitting a proposal for, or entering into or renewing a contract if the company is on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List, created pursuant to Section 215.4725 of the Florida Statutes or is engaged in a boycott of Israel; or for One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00) or more if, at the time of bidding on submitting a proposal for, or entering into or renewing a contract, the company is on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, created pursuant to Section 215.473 of the Florida Statutes, or is engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria. By entering into the CONTRACT, CONTRACTOR certifies that it does not and did not at any time since the submission of a response to the initial solicitation participate in a boycott of Israel; that it is not on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List, Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List; and that it does not engage in business operations in Cuba or Syria. CONTRACTOR understands that a false certification may subject it to civil penalties, attorneys' fees and costs pursuant to Section 287.135 of the Florida Statutes and that the TOWN may terminate this RFP 24-05 and/or the CONTRACT at the TOWN's option if the CONTRACTOR is found to have submitted a false certification.
- b) *Public Entity Crimes; Convicted Vendor List.* A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017 of the Florida Statutes for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. By Entering into the CONTRACT, CONTRACTOR certifies that it is not on the convicted vendor list.
- c) *Drug-Free Workplace*. By entering into the CONTRACT, CONTRACTOR certifies that it has a drug-free workplace and has a substance abuse policy in accordance with and pursuant to Section 440.102 of the Florida Statutes.
- d) *E-Verify*. By entering into the CONTRACT, the CONTRACTOR becomes obligated to comply with the provisions of Section 448.095(5)(a), Florida Statutes, to register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all new employees of the CONTRACTOR and any subcontractor hired by the CONTRACTOR. If the CONTRACTOR enters into a contract with a subcontractor, the subcontractor must provide the CONTRACTOR with an affidavit attesting that the

subcontractor does not employ, contract with, or subcontract with, an unauthorized alien. Failure to comply will lead to termination of this CONTRACT, or if a subcontractor knowingly violates the statute, the subcontract must be terminated immediately. Any challenge to termination under this provision must be filed in the Circuit Court no later than 20 calendar days after the date of termination. If the CONTRACT is terminated for a violation of the statute by the CONTRACTOR, the CONTRACTOR may not be awarded a public contract for a period of one (1) year after the date of termination.

- e) No Consideration of Social, Political, and Ideological Interests. CONTRACTOR acknowledges receipt of notice from the TOWN of the provisions of Section 287.05701 of the Florida Statutes which prohibits local governments from giving preference to a prospective contractor based on the prospective contractor's social, political or ideological interests or requesting documentation from, or considering, a prospective contractor's social, political, or ideological interests when determining if the prospective contractor is a responsible vendor. CONTRACTOR affirms and agrees that the TOWN did not request any documentation about, or give any consideration to, the CONTRACTOR's social, political, or ideological interests in the award of this RFP 24-05 and/or the CONTRACT.
- f) Contracting with Foreign Entities. By entering into the CONTRACT, CONTRACTOR certifies that it is not owned by the government of the People's Republic of China, the Russian Federation, the Islamic Republic of Iran, the Democratic People's Republic of Korea, the Republic of Cuba, the Venezuelan regime of Nicolás Maduro, or the Syrian Arab Republic (collectively "Foreign Countries of Concern"), nor is it owned by any agency of or any other entity of significant control of any such government. Further, CONTRACTOR certifies that no government of a Foreign Country of Concern has a "controlling interest" in CONTRACTOR as the term is defined in Section 287.138(1)(a) of the Florida Statutes, nor is the CONTRACTOR organized under the laws of a Foreign Country of Concern, nor does the CONTRACTOR have its principal place of business located in a Foreign Country of Concern. If this RFP 24-05 and/or the CONTRACT permits the CONTRACTOR to access the personal identifying information of any individual, CONTRACTOR agrees to notify the TOWN in advance of any contemplated transaction that would cause CONTRACTOR to be disqualified from such access under Section 287.138 of the Florida Statutes. CONTRACTOR agrees to furnish the TOWN with an affidavit signed by an officer or representative of the CONTRACTOR under penalty of perjury at any time and upon request that the statements in this paragraph are true and correct.

2) **DEFINITIONS**

Words used in the RFP and/or Contract Documents any and all attachment(s) and/or exhibit(s) incorporated and made a part hereof shall possess their everyday and ordinary meaning, provided however, that where one (1) of the following listed terms is used, such term(s) shall possess the corresponding meaning, as follows:

- a) *APPLICABLE LAW*: Any contract entered into pursuant to this RFP shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida.
- b) **BUSINESS DAYS**: Any calendar day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or holiday which is recognized by the Town of Dundee, Florida.
- c) CALENDAR DAYS: Any and all days in a 365-day calendar year.
- d) *CHANGES*: The Town, without invalidating the Contract, may order changes, including additions, deletions, or modifications. The Parties recognize that said changes may affect price and time for performance, in which event appropriate adjustments will be considered. All such changes in the work shall be authorized in writing, signed by the Town Manager or his/her designee. The price and the time for performance may be changed only by Change Order Request. By written instructions to the Contractor, the Town may make minor changes in the work which are consistent with the purpose of the work, and which do not change the contract price or time for completion. The Town Manager shall be notified of any proposed changes in: (a) materials used, (b) manufacturing process, or (c) construction. However, changes shall not be binding upon the Town unless evidenced by a Change Order Request issued and signed by the Town Manager.
- e) **DAYS**: A calendar day unless specifically stated otherwise.
- f) **TOWN**: The Town of Dundee, Florida, a Florida municipal corporation, and/or its authorized representative vested with home rule authority pursuant to the Municipal Home Rule Powers Act, Chapter 166 of the Florida Statutes, and Article VIII, §2 of the Florida Constitution; and the Town is therefore vested with governmental, corporate and proprietary powers to enable it to conduct municipal government, perform municipal functions and render municipal services, including the general exercise of any power for municipal purposes.
- g) *CONTRACT*: The agreement entered into and executed by the Town and Contractor and includes, but shall not be limited to, the Contract Documents.
- h) *CONTRACTOR*: The successful bidder who enters into the Contract with the Town to complete the project set forth in the RFP.
- i) **DEFAULT**: Default in promised delivery of supplies, completion of project, or failure to meet specifications authorizes the Town to terminate the Contractor's right to proceed with the order/work by giving the Contractor written notice. The defaulting Contractor may, at the discretion of the Town, be charged the increase in cost(s) of obtaining the goods/services elsewhere.
- j) *CONTRACT DOCUMENTS*: The RFP; Terms and Conditions; Contract; Bond; Performance Bond; Maintenance Bond; Contract Bond; Special Provisions; Specifications; Technical Specifications; Proposal and Bid Form; Engineering Plans

- and/or Drawings; Addenda issued before, during and after the bidding period for the RFP; Change Orders issued after the Contract is let; and any other document incorporated by reference and/or annexed hereto.
- k) INDEMNIFY / INDEMNIFICATION: Contractor shall hold harmless, indemnify, and defend the Town, its elected officials, appointed officers, and employees, representatives, or agents, against any claims, action, loss, damage, injury, liability, tax, assessment, cost or expense of whatever kind (including, but not by way of limitation, attorneys' fees and court costs (in bankruptcy, trial and appellate matters in any judicial and/or administrative tribunal) arising out of and/or incidental to the Contractor performance of this Contract. Other specific references to the Contractor duty to indemnify the Town and hold it harmless, which may be set forth herein, shall be construed as in addition to, and not as a limitation of the requirements of this section. The Town shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorneys' fees, including trial and appellate, and court costs in the event judicial and/or administrative enforcement of this Contractor indemnity is required.
- l) *INSPECTION*: The goods and services purchased are subject to the inspection and approval by the Town. The Town reserves the right to reject goods and services which do not conform to provisions of the Contract Documents.
- m) *INSURANCE*: As specified in the Contract Documents.
- n) *LIMITATION ON MUNICIPAL INDEMNITY*: To the extent that the Contract calls for the Town to indemnify any party thereto, the following sentence shall be appended to the indemnity and shall control the indemnity as if set forth therein, as follows:
 - i) "Provided, however, that regardless of whether any such obligations incurred hereunder are based on tort, contract, statute, strict liability, negligence, product liability or otherwise, the obligations of the Town of Dundee under this indemnification provision shall be limited in the same manner that would have applied if such obligations were based on, or arose out of, an action at law to recover damages in tort and were subject to Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, as that section existed at the inception of this Contract." Provided further, no waiver of the Town's sovereign immunity is intended to be made herein.
 - ii) The addition of this language shall not be construed to create Town indemnifications where none are expressly made in the terms and conditions of the contract or agreement.
- o) **STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE**: No bids submitted shall be considered unless the bidder warrants that, upon execution of a Contract with the Town, it shall:
 - i) not engage in employment practices that have the effect of discriminating against employees or prospective employees because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, handicap, or marital status; and

- ii) will submit such reports as the Town may thereafter require to assure compliance.
- p) **SUB-CONTRACTOR**: An individual, person, firm, company, corporation, association, entity, society, or group which enters into a contract with the Contractor to do a portion of the work on and/or for the project.
- q) *TITLE*: The risk of loss of goods covered by the Contract Documents shall remain with the Seller and/or Contractor until the goods have been delivered to a designated site and actually received by the Town. Any damage to the material and equipment, or loss of any kind, occasioned in transit shall be borne by the Seller and/or Contractor.
- r) WARRANTY: The Contractor shall not incorporate in the work of a project any materials or equipment subject to a chattel mortgage, a conditional sales contract, or any other agreement permitting a vendor to retain an interest. The Contractor shall warrant clear title to all materials and equipment incorporated in the work when the project is completed, and the Contractor shall deliver to the Town the improvements it has incorporated free of any lien or claim. The provisions of this section shall be included in all contracts with vendors and Sub-Contractors. Vendors who furnish materials without a formal contract shall be given notice by the Contractor that this provision exists.
- s) *VENUE*: Any legal or equitable action or proceeding concerning this Contract shall be brought in the State Courts of Polk County, Florida.

3) INTERPRETATIONS OR ADDENDA:

- a) No oral interpretation will be made to any Contractor as to the meaning of the Contract Documents or any part thereof to include any error, omission, discrepancy, or vagueness. Every request for such an interpretation shall be made in writing to the Town Manager. Any inquiry received prior to the cut-off time and date for questions will be given consideration. Where necessary, interpretations made to a Contractor will be in the form of an Addendum to the Contract Documents ("Addenda"), and when issued by the Town, will be on file and available to the public upon request at the Town.
- b) The Town shall not be responsible for the safe delivery of the Addenda and/or notification of same. It shall be the Contractor responsibility to make inquiry as to the Addenda issued. All such Addenda shall become part of the Contract Documents, whether received or not.

4) MANUFACTURER'S NAMES AND APPROVED EQUIVALENTS:

a) Unless specifically set forth in the specifications, any manufacturer's names, trade names, brand names, information and/or catalog numbers listed in a specification are for information and not intended to unfairly limit competition. The Contractor may offer any brand for which they are an authorized representative, which meets or exceeds the specification(s) for any item(s) and/or deliverables required in the RFP. If bids are based on equivalent products, indicate on the Bid Form (see attachment), the manufacturer's name and number. The Contractor shall submit with their proposal descriptive literature and/or complete specifications. Reference to literature submitted with a previous bid will not satisfy the provision. The Contractor shall also explain in detail the reasons why the proposed equivalent will meet the specifications and not be considered an exception thereto. Bids which do not comply with these requirements are subject to rejection within the discretion of the Town.

b) Alternate bids shall not be considered unless alternate bids are specifically required by the technical specifications set forth in the Contract Documents. For purposes of this provision, alternate bids shall mean any bid which deviates from the specific type of product; method of construction; or plans specified in the RFP.

5) SAMPLES:

Samples of products, when called for, must be furnished free of expense and may, upon request, be returned at the Contractor expense. Each individual sample must be labeled with the Contractor name, manufacturer's name brand name and number, bid number and item reference. If forwarding instructions, payment for postage, and/or pick-up, is not made by the Contractor within ninety (90) days of the bid opening, the commodities shall be disposed of by the Town.

6) PROTEST PROCEDURES:

The Town encourages prompt and fair handling of all complaints and disputes with the business community. In order to resolve disputed matters in a fair, timely and equitable manner, without fear of retribution on the part of a vendor or person, the following shall apply:

- a) All formal responses to the RFP shall include the following statement: "NOTE: THE FAILURE TO FOLLOW THE BID PROTEST PROCEDURE REQUIREMENTS WITHIN THE TIME FRAMES PRESCRIBED HEREIN AS ESTABLISHED BY THE TOWN OF DUNDEE, FLORIDA, SHALL CONSTITUTE A WAIVER OF BIDDERS PROTEST AND ANY RESULTING CLAIMS."
- b) **RIGHT TO PROTEST:** Any aggrieved, actual, or prospective bidder in connection with the RFP may protest to the Town Manager of the Town prior to the award of a contract by the Town Commission of the Town of Dundee.
- c) **NOTIFICATION:** The Town shall post all recommendation of awards available for review by the General Public.
- d) **INITIAL NOTICE:** Any person adversely affected by an intended decision or action with respect to the initial recommendation of award of any bid or action shall file a written notice of intent to file a protest. For the purpose of computation of time, the initial notice of intent to file a protest must be received by the Town Manager no later

than 3:00 p.m. on the third (3rd) workday following the date of the notice of the initial recommendation of award (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and legal Town holidays).

In addition, a non-refundable protest bond (the "Bond") in the amount of one thousand dollars and zero cents (\$1,000.00) in the form of a cashier's check payable to the Town shall be submitted with the initial notice of intent to file a protest. The initial notice of intent to file protest shall be in writing and shall state the basis of the protest (recommendation of award protest or other) and clearly indicate that its purpose is to serve as the initial notice of intent to file a protest. Failure to clearly indicate its intent or failure to provide a Bond shall constitute a waiver of the right to seek any remedy provided under these protest procedures.

Upon the timely receipt of an initial notice of intent to file a protest and the required Bond, the Town shall toll (put on hold) any further actions related to the recommendation of award (except as noted below). Should the affected party decide to withdraw its initial notice of intent to file a protest during the tolled action the Bond will be refunded in full. This is the only reason the Town will refund the Bond other than a finding in favor of the protestor.

If during tolled action, the Town Manager determines that an Emergency Purchase (as defined by the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Dundee) is necessary, action may be taken to secure the goods or services.

e) **FORMAL NOTICE:** Any person who has filed an initial notice of intent to file a protest, as described above, shall file a formal written protest within ten (10) calendar days after the date of the filing of the initial notice of intent to file a protest. Any amendment to the formal written protest shall be in writing and received by the Town Manager within ten (10) calendar days of the date of the initial notice of intent to file a protest. No amendments to the protest will be allowed after the ten (10) calendars day period has expired.

The formal written protest shall contain the following:

- i) Town bid number and/or title (if applicable);
- ii) Name and/or address of the Town department, division or agency affected;
- iii) The name and address of the affected party;
- iv) The title and position of the person submitting the protest;
- v) A statement of disputed issues of material fact;
- vi) If there are no disputed material facts, the written letter must so indicate;
- vii) Concise statement of the facts alleged;
- viii) Statement identifying with specificity the rule(s), regulation(s), statute(s), ordinance(s), and/or constitutional provision(s) entitling the affected party to the relief requested;
- ix) Statement identifying with specificity the relief which an entitlement is alleged;
- x) Such other information as the affected party deems to be material to the issue.

f) **PROTEST MEETING:** The Town will notify all parties and schedule a protest meeting. The protest will be presented to the Protest Committee, which shall be made up of three (3) members consisting of the Town Manager or his/her designee who shall serve as the Chairperson, the Town of Dundee Finance Director or his/her designee and a designated member of the Purchasing Review Committee. The Town Attorney or designee shall be present and act in an advisory capacity to the Protest Committee.

The Protest Committee shall meet with the protesting party within fourteen (14) business days of receipt of the formal written protest. The response time may be extended, if necessary. All affected parties will be notified of the location, date and time of the bid protest meeting and will be allowed the opportunity to make their presentation to the Bid Protest Committee. The parties may bring a representative if they so choose.

The Town Manager shall present the background for the protest to the Bid Protest Committee. The purpose of the protest meeting is: (1) to question and review the basis of the protest; (2) to evaluate the facts and merits of the protest; and (3) gather information in order to make a decision.

The agenda for the bid protest meeting will be:

- i) The background as to why the recommendation for award was made or why the vendor was not selected.
- ii) The protesting party or their representative will speak to how they were adversely affected by the decision of the Town.
- iii) Any other affected parties or their representative will be given the opportunity for rebuttal and to present any facts that they deem are relevant to the protest.
- iv) During the meeting, the Bid Protest Committee may ask questions of all parties as necessary.
- g) The Bid Protest Committee will render their decision in writing within five (5) business days of the bid protest meeting.
- h) The Town Manager may conduct an evidentiary hearing if there are disputed issues of material fact. The Town Manager will conduct a review and make a final written decision within ten (10) business days after the rendering of the decision of the Bid Protest Committee. The Town Manager's decision shall be final and binding. No further protests of the action in question will be heard by the Town.
- i) Any person who is aggrieved by the final and binding decision of the Town Manager shall be entitled to a review of the final and binding decision by the 10th Judicial Circuit Court of Polk County, Florida, by filing an appropriate petition with the Clerk of the Court within 30 calendar days following the rendering of the Town Manager's final and binding decision.

j)

7) PROPOSALS:

- a) The bid must contain a manual signature of an authorized representative in the space provided on the applicable form. Each party shall be responsible for the accuracy of his/her/its proposal. A party cannot obtain relief by pleading that its bid was in error.
- b) Submittals to the RFP shall be received no later than the time and date set forth in the RFP. No bid shall be accepted after the specified deadline or at any location other than that specified in the RFP. Any bid received late or because of submittal to another location will be maintained unopened in the bid file. Bids properly received will be opened at the time, date, and place set forth in the RFP.
- c) The Town may elect to cancel or postpone the RFP at any time prior to the time and date set to open the subject bid(s).
- d) Sealed bids, proposals, or replies received by the Town pursuant to the RFP are exempt from disclosure under Section 119.071 of the Florida Statutes and s.24(a), Art. I of the Florida Constitution until such time as the Town provides notice of an intended decision or until 30 days after opening the bids, proposals, or final replies, whichever is earlier.
- e) If the Town rejects all bids, proposals, or replies submitted in response to the RFP and the Town concurrently provides notice of its intent to reissue the RFP, the rejected bids, proposals, or replies remain exempt from disclosure under Section 119.071 of the Florida Statutes and s. 24(a), Art. I of the Florida Constitution until such time as the Town provides notice of an intended decision concerning the reissued RFP or until the Town withdraws the reissued RFP. A bid, proposal, or reply is not exempt for longer than twelve (12) months after the initial Town notice rejecting all bids, proposals, or replies.
- f) Bid and a non-collusion affidavit(s) (see attachments) should be submitted on the forms furnished by the Town and completed without additions, modifications, deletions, and erasures. Bids not submitted on attached bid form(s) shall be rejected. Bids must be typed or printed in ink. All corrections must be initialed. Each bidder shall deliver its sealed proposal to the location specified by the RFP. It is the bidder responsibility to assure that its bid is delivered at the proper time and place of the bid opening. Bids which are not received, as set forth in the RFP, shall not be considered by the Town.
- g) Telegraph, telephone, e-mail, electronically transmitted, or facsimile (FAX) bids shall not be considered. Bids may be modified, in writing, provided such modification is received at the location specified for submission and prior to the time and date set for the bid opening. Each bidder shall be solely responsible for the costs associated with the preparation and submittal of its bid in response to the RFP.
- h) BIDS RECEIVED AFTER THE TIME AND DATE SET FOR THE BID OPENING SHALL NOT BE CONSIDERED.

8) PRICES, TERMS, AND PAYMENT:

- a) Prices shall be firm and good for ninety (90) days after the bid opening and shall include all labor, materials, supplies, equipment, overhead, profit, insurance, applicable taxes, packing, shipping charges, and delivered to any point designated by the Town.
- b) **Taxes:** (For purchase of products only) Bids shall not include federal excise or state sales taxes in bid prices of products only as these are not applicable to municipalities.
- c) **Discounts:** Contractor may offer a cash discount for prompt payment; however, such discounts shall NOT be considered in determining the lowest net cost for bid evaluation purposes. The bidder(s) are encouraged to reflect cash discounts in the unit prices quoted. Any discount offered shall allow no less than fifteen (15) business days for payment.

9) SUBMITTING A "NO BID" OR A "NO CHARGE":

Any bidder intending to not bid on some of the item(s) sought by this solicitation must mark those item(s) as "No Bid." However, if some of the item(s) are being offered at no charge, then items must be marked as "No Charge." Items that are left blank shall be considered a "No Bid" for that item, and the bid shall be evaluated accordingly.

10) MISTAKES; INACCURACIES; INCOMPLETE INFORMATION:

- a) All bidders are expected to examine the specifications, delivery schedule, bid prices, and all instructions pertaining to supplies and services. The failure to do so will be at the bidder risk.
- b) In the Purchasing of goods or supplies, without labor, where the bid contains a mistake in extension or total bid amount, the unit price will govern. The Town shall be entitled to presume that a mistake has been made where the unit price and total or extension do not equate.
- c) The Town reserves the right to contact a bidder, telephonically or in writing, to clarify inconsistent, inaccurate, or confusing information regarding the proposal submitted. As well, the Town reserves the right to demand the execution or re-execution of the proposal, affidavits, or certification required to be accompanied with the bid proposal, when it appears to the Town that the deficiency was an oversight in good faith. It shall be presumed that proposals submitted without a single signature on an affidavit or on the proposal is non-responsive and shall not be considered for clarification or correction.

11) SAFETY STANDARDS:

Unless otherwise stipulated in the bid, all manufactured items and fabricated assemblies shall comply with applicable requirements of federal, state, and local law, including, but not limited to, the Occupational Safety and Health Act and regulations or standards thereunder.

12) INVOICING AND PAYMENT:

The Contractor shall be paid upon submission of proper invoices to the Town at the prices stipulated in the Contract at the time the order is placed, after delivery and acceptance of the goods, less deductions, if any, within thirty (30) business days after approval of invoice by the Town. If a cash discount is taken by the Town on a prompt payment invoice, payment shall be made within the time specified, but not less than fifteen (15) business days. All invoices shall include the purchase order number for purchases against any contract resulting from this bid. An original and one (1) copy of the invoice shall be submitted. Failure to follow these instructions may result in delay in processing invoices for payment. In addition, the purchase order number must appear on bills of lading, packages, cases, delivery lists and correspondence. No overcharge will be paid. In the event an invoice is submitted with an overcharge, a credit memo must be submitted in order to correct such overcharge. Any applicable discounts that apply as a result of the Contract shall be taken even though the allowable time has lapsed due to the time awaiting credit memorandum(s).

13) WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS:

A bid proposal may be withdrawn prior to the time fixed for the bid opening, if proper written notification is received, at the location specified for submission in the RFP, prior to the time fixed for the bid opening. A proposal may also be withdrawn if the Town does not accept it within ninety (90) calendar days after the date fixed for the bid opening. Notwithstanding any withdrawal, all bid documents received by the Town in response to the RFP shall remain the property of the Town.

14) NONCOLLUSION AGREEMENT:

Any bidder submitting a bid for the RFP shall execute and submit with its bid a non-collusion affidavit (see attachments) which states that it has not entered into a collusive agreement with any other person, firm, or corporation in regard to any bid submitted in response to the RFP.

15) REJECTION OF BIDS:

The Town may reject a bid if:

- a) The bidder misstates or conceals any material fact in the bid;
- b) The bid does not strictly conform to the law or the requirements which includes, but is not limited to, the terms and conditions set forth in the RFP; or
- c) A bid is submitted in bad faith and/or in a manner intended to undermine the competitive sealed bid selection process.

The Town Manager and/or the Town Commission shall have the right to act in the best interests of the Town and reject any and all bids and request the entire transaction be rebid. The Town may also waive any minor informalities, irregularities, or technicalities in any bid.

16) STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS:

Each bidder shall, upon request of the Town, submit a statement of qualifications, its experience record in furnishing a particular commodity or constructing any type of improvements embraced in the Contract Documents, its organization and equipment available for the work contemplated, and, when specifically requested by the Town, appropriate financial information which would assist in determining the ability and solvency to perform work contemplated by the Contract Documents.

The bidder may also be requested to furnish references which the Town may use to verify claims of competency. The Town shall have the right to take such steps as it deems necessary to determine the ability of the bidder to perform its obligations under the Contract Documents; and the bidder shall furnish the Town all such information and data for this purpose as it may request.

The right is reserved to reject any bid where an investigation of the available evidence or information does not satisfy the Town that the bidder is qualified to carry out properly the terms of the Contract Documents.

17) AWARD OF CONTRACT:

- a) The Town reserves the right to award contract(s) to more than one Contractor, to split awards, to award contracts by item or group of items, to make partial awards, or to decrease or increase any or all quantities that is in the Town's best interest.
- b) The Contractor may qualify its bid for acceptance by the Town on an "All or None" basis. An "All or None" basis bid must include all items upon which bids are invited. Contractor is hereby notified that a bid submitted on an "All or None" basis is at risk for rejection in instances where the Town may deem it necessary to split or divide a project as set forth herein. Contractor shall denote on the front page of the bid proposal as to whether the bid is an "All or None" bid.
- c) A written award of acceptance mailed or otherwise furnished to the Contractor results in a binding contract without further action by either party.
- d) After issuance of a notice of intent to award and no protests having been timely filed, award shall be made to the lowest, most responsive, and responsible party (or as specified in the RFP). Additional criteria as set forth in the RFP will be considered in the award of the bid. The lowest most responsive and responsible party will be determined after evaluation of the bid by the Town. In determining the lowest most responsive and responsible party, in addition to price, the following may be considered as criteria if noted in the bid documents:

- i) Evaluations and quality of performance on previous projects;
- ii) Ability, capacity, equipment and skill of the party to fulfill the contract;
- iii) Ability to fulfill the contract within the time specified, without delay;
- iv) Character, integrity, reputation, judgment, experience and efficiency;
- v) Previous compliance with laws and ordinances relating to the contract;
- vi) Sufficiency of the financial resources to fulfill the contract;
- vii)Quality, availability and adaptability of the supplies or contractual services;
- viii) Ability to provide future maintenance and service, as required or needed; and
- ix) Number and scope of conditions attached to the bid.

18) OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES:

The Town encourages and agrees to the Contractor extending the pricing, terms, and conditions of this RFP and the Contract (if there is any such resulting contract) to other governmental entities at the discretion and/or option of the Contractor.

19) PERFORMANCE:

- a) Contractor shall keep the Town advised at all times of status of the work performed pursuant to the Contract Documents. The Contractor's default in promised delivery of supplies, completion of project, or failure to meet specifications authorizes the Town to terminate the Contractor's right to proceed with the Contract. In the event the Town terminates the Contractor's right to proceed, the Town shall provide the Contractor with written notice; and thereafter, the Town may purchase supplies and services elsewhere. Any increase in charge(s) and/or cost(s) incurred by the Town shall be charged to the defaulting Contractor.
- b) The Contract shall not be terminated, or the Contractor charged with liquidated damages (if otherwise provided for in the Contract Documents) because of any delays due to unforeseeable cause beyond the fault or negligence of the Contractor including, but not limited to, acts of God, acts of the Town, fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, (with which the Contractor has no direct connections), and unusually severe weather. The Contractor shall, within ten (10) calendar days from the beginning of such delay, notify the Town, in writing, of the cause for the delay. If, in the opinion of the Town, the failure of Contractor to perform the conditions of this Contract is occasioned by or is the result of acts or events over which the Contractor has no control, said delay in performance may be excused.
- c) The Contractor shall take into account all contingent work which has to be done by other parties, arising from any cause whatsoever, and shall not plead its want of knowledge of said contingent work as an excuse for delay in its work or for the nonperformance thereof.

20) SERVICE AND WARRANTY:

Unless otherwise specified, the Contractor shall define any warranty service and replacements that will be provided during and subsequent to this Contract. Contractor shall explain on an attached sheet to what extent warranty and service facilities are provided.

21) GOVERNMENTAL RESTRICTIONS:

In the event any governmental restrictions may be imposed which would necessitate alteration of the materials, quality, workmanship, or performance of the items offered on this proposal prior to their delivery, it shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to notify the Town immediately after learning of such restriction including, but not limited to, indicating in writing the specific regulation which required an alteration. The Town reserves the right to accept any such alteration, including any price adjustments occasioned thereby, or to cancel the Contract at no expense to the Town.

22) PRICE AND ADJUSTMENTS:

Any price decrease effectuated during the term of the Contract and/or any time specified for performance therein, either by reason of market change or on the part of the Contractor to other customers, shall be passed on to the Town.

23) EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY:

No bids submitted shall be considered unless the bidder(s) warrants that upon execution of a Contract with the Town, it shall not engage in employment practices which have the effect of discriminating against employees or prospective employees because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, handicap, or marital status, and will submit such reports as the Town may thereafter require to assure compliance.

24) OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY (FLORIDA RIGHT-TO-KNOW-LAW):

- a) In compliance with Chapter 442, Florida Statutes, any item delivered from a Contract resulting from this RFP, which contains a toxic substance as listed on the FLORIDA SUBSTANCE LIST, shall be accompanied by a Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) which product shall be labeled as such as well. These MSDS shall be forwarded to: Town of Dundee, Attn: Town Manager, P.O. Box 1000, 202 East Main Street, Dundee, Florida 33838.
- b) The MSDS shall be maintained by the Town and must include the following information:
 - i) The Division/Department to which the material was shipped.
 - ii) The chemical name and the common name of the toxic substance.

- iii) The hazards or other risks in the use of the toxic substance, including:
 - (1) The potential for fire, explosion, corrosivity, and reactivity;
 - (2) The known acute health effects and chronic health effects of risks from exposure to the toxic substance, including those medical conditions which are generally recognized as being aggravated by exposure to toxic substance; and
 - (3) The primary routes of entry and symptoms of overexposure.
- iv) The proper precautions, handling practices, necessary personal protective equipment, and other safety precautions in the use of or exposure to the toxic substances, including appropriate emergency treatment in case of overexposure.
- v) The emergency procedures for spills, fire, disposal, and first aid.
- vi) A description of the known specific potential health risks posed by the toxic substance, which description is written in lay terms and is intended to alert any person who reads this information.
- vii) The year and month, if available, that the information was compiled and the name, address, and emergency telephone number of the manufacturer responsible for preparing the information.

25) TIE BIDS:

The Town Manager shall make award of all tie bids. In accordance with Florida law, a firm which is a drug-free workplace shall have precedence. In the event that both or neither firm is a drug-free workplace, tie bids may be awarded to one of the bidders based on any of the criteria listed below (in descending order), or as otherwise directed by the Town Manager to comply with all of the Source Selection provisions of Town of Dundee Ordinance No. 14-17 (*codified in Sec. 2-159*) and the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Dundee:

- a) Where tie bids are between bidders, one of which is a business whose principal place of business is located in the Town of Dundee utility service area and the other bidder is not, the recommended award shall be to the bidder located in the Town of Dundee utility service area.
- b) Where tie bids are between bidders, one of which is a business whose principal place of business is located in Polk County and the other bidder is not, the recommended award shall be to the bidder located in Polk County.
- c) Availability or completion period.
- d) Previous vendor record on similar projects or requirements.

e) Business location closest to the Town.

26) NOTICE:

- a) A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.
- b) A company is ineligible to, and may not, bid on, submit a proposal for, or enter into or renew a contract with an agency or local governmental entity for goods or services of One Million (\$1,000,000) or more if that, at the time of bidding or submitting a proposal for a new contract or renewal of an existing contract, the company: (a) Is on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List, created pursuant to Section 215.4725, Florida Statutes, or is engaged in a boycott of Israel.
- c) Any contract for goods and/or services in and amount of \$1,000,000.00 or more will be subject to termination by the Town if the contractor is found to have been placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Sector List, or been engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria or has been placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel list, or is engaged in a boycott of Israel.

27) UNAUTHORIZED ALIEN(S):

- a) The Contractor agrees that unauthorized aliens shall not be employed nor utilized in the performance of the requirements of this solicitation. The Town shall consider the employment or utilization of unauthorized aliens a violation of Section 274A(e) of the Immigration and Naturalization Act (8 U.S.C. 1324a). Such violation shall be cause for unilateral termination of any agreement and/or the Contract by the Town. As part of the response to this RFP, the successful party shall complete and submit the attached form "AFFIDAVIT CERTIFIATION IMMIGRATION LAWS".
- b) Employers may avail themselves of a program by the U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement called E-Verify. E-Verify is an Internet-based system operated by U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS), part of the Department of Homeland Security (DHS), in partnership with the Social Security Administration (SSA). E-Verify is currently free to employers. E-Verify provides an automated link to Federal databases to help employers determine employment eligibility of new hires and the validity of their Social Security numbers.

c) If your company wishes to avail themselves of this program, you can register online for E-Verify at https://www.vis-dhs.com/EmployerRegistration, which provides instructions for completing the registration process. At the end of the registration process, you will be required to sign a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) that provides the terms of agreement between you as the employer, the SSA, and DHS. An employee who has signatory authority for the employer can sign the MOU. Employers can use their discretion in identifying the best method by which to sign up their locations for E-Verify. To find out more about E-Verify, please visit www.dhs.gov le-verify or contact USCIS at 1-888-464- 4218.

CONSTRUCTION AND OTHER CLAUSES

(provisions related to construction may not be applicable to all contracts awarded)

The construction-related clauses shall apply to all work performed pursuant to the Contract Documents by either the Contractor or by any Subcontractor engaged to do a portion of the work. The Contractor shall supply each of its Subcontractors with a copy of all of the Contract Documents.

28) ERRORS:

If the Contractor discovers any error, omission, or vagueness in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall report this discovery to the Town immediately upon learning of same. Work done after such a discovery and before the Town corrects the error, omission, or vagueness shall be at the Contractor's risk.

29) UNIT PRICES:

The unit prices for each of the several items in the proposal (see attached Bid Form) of each bidder shall include its pro rata share of overhead so that the sum of the products obtained by multiplying the quantity shown for each item by the unit price bid represents the total bid. Any bid not conforming to this requirement may be rejected as non-responsive. Special attention is called to this provision for should conditions make it necessary to revise the quantities, no limit will be fixed for such increased or decreased quantities nor extra compensation allowed, provided the net monetary value of all such additive and subtractive changes in quantities of such items of work (i.e., difference in cost) shall not increase or decrease the original contract price by more than twenty-five percent (25%) for work not covered in the drawings and technical specifications.

30) SALES TAX SAVINGS PROCEDURE/OWNER DIRECT PURCHASES:

This procedure will be in accordance with Florida Administrative Code, Public Works Contracts, and Section 212.08(6) of the Florida Statutes.

The Town reserves the right to purchase all equipment, materials, and supplies that are components of a construction bid, but generally will purchase only major equipment, materials, and supplies.

When the Town exercises this option the following procedures shall be used for ordering, receiving, and paying for the component(s) selected.

a) BID PRICES.

The bid shall include the appropriate Florida State sales tax for all components of the bid that makes up the lump sum amount submitted.

b) ORDERING.

- i) The Town may exercise its right to direct purchase any component of the bid, at the Contractor's rate, in order to save the sales tax on the selected component, which may include equipment, materials, and supplies contained within the bid. The items selected will then be purchased directly from the vendors that the Contractor used to submit their bid to the Town and therefore made a part of the Contract. The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the Town, providing information for the preparation of purchase orders for these direct purchases, monitoring deliveries, and approving invoices.
- ii) Following receipt of a sales tax savings form from the Contractor, the Town will issue a purchase order, and certificate of entitlement, to the material supplier for the component selected for owner direct purchase (ODP). The purchase order, and certificate, will be sent to the Contractor, who shall verify that the order was issued correctly, and if so, send to the material supplier. A separate form shall be used for each item or group of items selected for ODP.
- iii) The Contract shall be reduced by the amount of all construction materials plus taxes selected by the Town, for direct purchase.

c) EXPEDITING.

The Contractor shall be responsible for expediting delivery to ensure that material is received on time to maintain the construction schedule.

d) RECEIPT.

The Contractor shall sign for and receive all materials; and retain packing slips and delivery tickets for all materials delivered for the performance of the Contract. The Contractor and Subcontractors shall be responsible for the safe care, custody, and control of all materials.

i) BILLINGS/PAYMENTS.

i) All ODP's shall be billed to the Town in care of the Contractor.

- ii) The Contractor shall check all invoices for accuracy and completeness when received. The Contractor shall be responsible for immediately notifying the supplier of any billing errors and requesting corrected invoices as necessary.
- iii) Receipts and invoices must be processed in a timely manner in order to take advantage of any discount payment terms. All discounts shall accrue to the Town.
- iv) The Contractor shall prepare a direct purchase report for the Town upon submittal of each pay request.

j) OTHER CONSIDERATIONS.

- i) The Town shall have title to all items of which any payment has been made pursuant to the Contract Documents.
- ii) The Contractor shall assume the risk of damage or loss at the time of the purchase.
- iii) The selection of ODP for any item(s) contained within the bid does not relieve the Contractor from liability for that item as it may related to the quantity ordered, the maintenance and care of the item when delivered, or the installation or incorporation of the item in the work to be performed in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- iv) The Town shall have access to all necessary records in order to conduct audits to determine the correctness and accuracy of any item purchased in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- v) To be entitled to purchase materials tax exempt for a public works project, a governmental entity is required to issue a Certificate of Entitlement to each vendor and to the governmental entity's contractor to certify that the tangible personal property purchased from that vendor will go into or become a part of a public works.

31) INSPECTION:

- a) For the Town, the Contractor shall provide facilities for safe and convenient access to any completed work, work-in-progress, and preparation for work to be done.
- b) The Town shall examine the work to assure its conformity with the Contract Documents. The Town will assist the Contractor in correctly interpreting the plans, specifications, and other Contract Documents, but this assistance will not require that the Town give early notice of rejection of work or materials.

- i) The examination and/or assistance by the Town shall not relieve the Contractor of the Contractor's responsibility of any actions it may take or neglect by Contractor or its Subcontractors in performing the work.
- ii) The Town shall not be responsible for Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences of starting, stopping, or resuming work, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, and the Town shall not be responsible for Contractor's failure to perform the work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- iii) The Town shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of Contractor or any Subcontractors, or any of Contractor's agents or employees.
- iv) Neither the Town's authority to act under these Contract Documents, nor any decision made by the Town in good faith either to exercise or not exercise such authority shall give rise to any duty or responsibility of the Town to Contractor, any subcontractor, any materialman, fabricator, supplier or any of their agents, or employees or any other person performing any of the work.
- c) The Town shall retain authority to make a final decision in any matter which involves interpretation of plans and other Contract Documents including, but not limited to, quality and quantities of materials used, construction and progress of work, work completed and estimates.
- d) If the Town finds any materials or work faulty, it shall so inform the Contractor; the Contractor shall replace, at its expense, and as soon as possible, said faulty materials or work. If the Contractor does not replace the faulty materials or work within a reasonable length of time, the Town may stop the work, furnish materials and men to replace the faulty work, and deduct the expense incurred by the Town from the amount due, or which will become due the Contractor.
- e) The Town may reinspect work which has been passed and it shall be permitted to reject faulty work which existed but was not apparent at the time of a previous inspection.
- f) The Town may order the Contractor to uncover work which has been covered without the consent of the Town. The Contractor shall bear the expense of the extra work. The Town may order the Contractor to uncover work which has been covered with the consent of the Town. If the questioned work is found to be without fault, the Contractor may charge the Town for this extra work; if the questioned work is found faulty, the Contractor shall bear the expense of the extra work.

32) SUPERVISION:

The Contractor shall maintain a superintendent, who fulfills the Town's requirements, on this project at any time work is in progress and furnish efficient and skilled supervision of all work. The Contractor may change project superintendents only if the change is approved by the Town

or if the Contractor discharges the project superintendent. If the Contractor is not present, the Town shall be permitted to consider the project superintendent the Contractor's agent; and the Town shall consider instructions given to the superintendent as binding as instructions given to the Contractor.

33) ACCIDENT PREVENTION:

- a) No laborer or mechanic employed in the performance of the Contract shall be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to health or safety as determined under construction safety and health standards promulgated by the Secretary of Labor.
- b) The Contractor shall exercise proper precautions at all times for the protection of persons and property and shall be responsible for all damages to persons or property, either on or off the site, which occur as a result of Contractor's prosecution of the work. Machinery, equipment, and all hazards shall be guarded in accordance with safety provisions to the extent that such provisions are not in conflict with applicable laws.
- c) The Contractor shall maintain an accurate record of all cases of death, occupational disease, or injury requiring medical attention or causing loss of time from work, arising out of and in the course of employment on work under the Contract. The Contractor shall promptly furnish the Town with these reports.

34) CLAIMS FOR ADDITIONAL PAY:

If the Town issues written instructions which the Contractor believes will involve additional work and cost, the Contractor may assert a claim for extra cost only if it gives written notice to the Town Manager or his/her designee immediately after it receives the instructions and before it complies with those instructions. The Contractor may assert a claim for extra cost without advance written notice only if immediate compliance with the instructions given by the Town is necessary to meet an emergency which endangers life or property.

If the Contractor asserts a claim for extra pay, the Town may cancel the instructions and deny the claim or follow the procedure(s) set forth herein for "CHANGES". The cost or credit to the Town from a change in the work shall be determined from price information in the bid form, or by a lump sum price agreement with the Contractor, or a price based on the Contractor's cost for labor, materials, equipment, supervision, and insurance plus fifteen percent (15%) for profit and overhead, or as the parties otherwise agree.

35) FITTING AND COORDINATION OF THE WORK:

The Contractor shall be responsible for the proper fitting of all work and for the coordination of the operations of all trades, subcontractors, or materialmen engaged in the performance of the Contract. The Contractor shall be prepared to guarantee to each of its Subcontractors the locations and measurements which they may require for the fitting of their work to all surrounding work.

36) SUB-CONTRACTING:

Nothing in the Contract Documents shall be construed to create a contractual relationship between the Town and a Subcontractor doing a portion of the work on this project, nor shall it create any obligation on the part of the Town to pay or see to the payment of any moneys due any Subcontractor. The Town shall hold the Contractor responsible for the work done by any of its Subcontractors. For any portion of the work to be sub-contracted, a list of the Subcontractors shall be furnished to the Town Manager prior to the commencing of this project(s).

37) MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY OF CONTRACTORS:

If, through acts or neglect on the part of the Contractor, any other contractor or any subcontractor shall suffer loss or damage in the performance of the Contract, the Contractor shall settle with such other, contractor or subcontractor by agreement or arbitration, if such other contractor or subcontractor will so settle. If such other contractor or subcontractor shall assert any claim against the Town on account of any damage alleged to have been so sustained, the Town will notify the Contractor, who shall defend at Contractor's own expense any suit based upon such claim, and, if any judgment or claims against the Town shall be allowed, the Contractor shall pay or satisfy such judgment or claim and pay all attorney's fees, costs, and expenses in connection therewith.

38) LINES AND GRADES:

The Town shall establish a base line and a benchmark at each location of any separate portion of this project. The Contractor shall reference all base lines, benchmarks, and property monuments and re-establish in their original state any which are disturbed during work on this project. The Contractor shall verify in the field all base lines, elevations, and dimensions shown on the plans, report any error, omission, or discrepancy it discovers, and assume full responsibility for its grades.

39) ASSIGNMENT OR NOVATION:

The Contractor shall not assign or transfer, whether by assignment or novation, any of its rights, duties, benefits, obligations, liabilities, or responsibilities under the Contract without the express written consent of the Town; provided however, that assignments to banks, trust companies and/or other financial institutions of payments due to Contractor may be made without the consent of the Town.

40) OTHER CONTRACTS:

The Town may award, or may have awarded other contracts for additional work, and the Contractor shall cooperate fully with such other contractors, by scheduling its own work with that to be performed under other contracts as may be directed by the Town or Town Manager. The Contractor shall not commit or permit any act which will interfere with the performance of work by any other contractor as scheduled, on this project or any other project.

41) PATENT INFRINGEMENT:

The Contractor shall indemnify the Town, its officers, its agents, and its employees and hold all free of liability and unharmed by any suit or claim which results from the incorporation of any patented or unpatented invention, device, process, or system in the work of this project.

42) SHOP DRAWINGS:

Where a portion of this project requires the use of shop drawings, the Contractor shall submit four (4) copies of these drawings and a schedule of the required work to the Town. The Town shall review these drawings promptly and note any corrections required to-meet the intent of the plans and specifications. The Contractor shall make the noted revisions and submit four (4) copies of the revised drawings to the Town. The Town's approval of the shop drawings shall not relieve the Contractor of its responsibility for any error in the shop drawings and any deviation from the plans and specifications.

43) PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS:

- a) The Town shall furnish the Contractor one (1) set of the plans and specifications when the Town notifies the Contractor to begin work. The Contractor shall keep this set available at the project site at all times. If the Contractor wants more than one (1) set of plans and specifications, the Contractor may obtain these if it pays the cost of reproduction.
- b) The original plans and specifications, and any copies of these plans and specifications the Town furnishes the Contractor, shall remain the property of the Town. They shall not be used on work other than this project. The Town may ask the Contractor to return all copies of the plans and specifications when the work is completed. The Contractor shall coordinate the requirements of the plans, specifications, and all other Contract Documents prepared for this project.

44) SUB-SURFACE DATA:

The Town does not guarantee the accuracy of the sub-surface data shown on the plans. Where it will influence its execution of the Contract, the Contractor shall, with its own resources, verify ground water elevations, soil conditions, wetland jurisdictional boundary, the location of underground structures, sewers, water pipes, gas lines, telephone cables, electric cables, conduits and other such underground infrastructure.

45) FACILITIES, MATERIALS, AND EMPLOYEES:

a) Unless it is otherwise stipulated in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall be responsible for supervision, electric power, water, and any other facilities required to complete this project.

- b) The Contractor shall incorporate in the work of this project only materials, equipment, and methods which conform to the Town's applicable specifications.
- c) Unless otherwise specifically provided for in the Technical Specifications, all workmanship, equipment, materials, and articles incorporated in the work shall be new and the best grade of the respective kinds for the purpose. Where equipment, materials, articles, or workmanship are referred to in the Technical Specifications as "equal to" any particular standard, the Town shall decide the question of equality.
- d) The Contractor shall furnish to the Town for approval the manufacturer's detailed specifications for all machinery, mechanical and other special equipment, which it contemplates installing, together with full information as to type, performance characteristics, and all other pertinent information as required, and shall likewise submit for approval, as required, full information concerning all other materials or articles which it proposes to incorporate in the work.
- e) Machinery, mechanical and other equipment, materials, or articles installed or used without such prior approval shall be at the risk of subsequent rejection.
- f) Materials specified by reference to the number or symbol of a specific standard, such as an A.S.T.M. Standard, a federal specification or other similar standard, shall comply with requirements in the latest revision thereof and any amendment or supplement thereto in effect on the date of the RFP, except as limited to type, class, or grade, or modified in such reference. The standards referred to, except as modified in the technical specifications shall have full force and effect as though printed therein.
- g) The Contractor shall use only employees with skills at least equal to the requirements of their work assignment on this project.

46) TESTS AND INSPECTIONS OF MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT:

- a) Unless it is otherwise stipulated in the Contract Documents, the tests and inspections of materials and equipment incorporated in the work of this project shall be made at the Contractor's expense by independent laboratories and agencies approved by the Town.
- b) The Contractor shall instruct any laboratory or agency making, required tests to furnish the Town with a copy of the report made on each test and inspection.

47) PROTECTION OF WORK, MATERIALS, PROPERTY, AND THE PUBLIC:

The Contractor shall protect the work of this project and the stored materials not yet incorporated in the work, on site or off site, from injury, damage, and loss. The Contractor shall protect and save from damage all public and private property adjacent to the project site. The Contractor shall guard all excavations by appropriate means; and shall protect the public from hazard. Receipt of progress payment(s) shall not affect the obligations of the Contractor under this provision.

48) PROTECTION OF MONUMENTS:

The Contractor shall protect and save from damage or movement all survey monuments, permanent reference monuments, property monuments, reference points, and benchmarks. If the work demands the temporary removal of such a monument, point, or benchmark, the Contractor shall notify the Town who shall reference the monument, point, or benchmark and reset it without cost to the Contractor. If the Contractor damages, moves, or destroys a monument, point, or benchmark, the Town may restore such by a registered surveyor at the Contractor's expense and withhold the cost from money otherwise due the Contractor from the Town.

49) USE OF PREMISES:

The Contractor shall confine its equipment, storage or materials, and construction operations to the limits set forth in the Contract Documents and as prescribed by ordinances or permits, or as determined by the Town, and shall not unreasonably encumber the site or public right-of-way with its materials and construction equipment.

50) WORK PROGRESS:

- a) If the Contractor fails to proceed with the diligence required to complete the project within the time set forth in the Contract or within an extension of that time which the Town may grant, the Town may terminate the Contractor's right to proceed with the work by providing written notice to the Contractor.
- b) If the Town terminates the Contractor's right to proceed, the Town may choose to proceed with the work, take possession of the materials on the project site, incorporate these materials in the work, and hold the Contractor and its sureties liable for payment of excess costs the Town may incur, or demand the surety to complete the project as permitted under the terms and conditions of the performance bond. The execution of the Contract by Contractor shall constitute an acknowledgment of the surety's consent to this provision.
- c) If the Town does not terminate the Contractor's rights to proceed, the Contractor shall proceed with the work; in this event, it will be impossible to determine the actual damage the delay has caused. In lieu of payment of actual damage, the Contractor and its sureties shall be liable for the payment of the fixed, agreed, and liquidated damages as may be set forth in the Contract Documents for each calendar day of delay beyond the contract time.

51) REQUESTS FOR INTERPRETATION AND INFORMATION:

a) All requests for interpretation shall be in writing and submitted to the Town Manager. Whenever a written request for interpretation(s) of the Contract Documents is properly

submitted, the request(s) shall be answered by way of Addenda. All Addenda will be sent to each party holding Contract Documents. The Town shall not be responsible for the safe delivery of the Addenda.

It shall be the responsibility of the party to make inquiry as to the issuance of any Addenda to the Contract. All Addenda shall become part of the Contract Documents and all parties shall be bound by such Addenda, whether received or not.

b) It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to make timely requests of the Town for any additional information not already in its possession which should be furnished by the Town under the terms of the Contract, and which it will require in the planning and execution of the work. Such request may be submitted from time to time as the need is approached, but each shall be filed in ample time to permit appropriate action to be taken by all parties involved so as to avoid delay. Each request shall be in writing and list the various times and the latest date by which each will be required by the Contractor. The first list shall be submitted, within two (2) weeks after Contract award and shall be as complete as possible at that time. The Contractor shall, if requested, furnish promptly any assistance and information the Town may require in responding to these requests of the Contractor. The Contractor shall be fully responsible for any delay in its work or to others arising from its failure to comply fully with the provisions of this section.

52) DISPUTES:

- a) All disputes arising under this Contract or its interpretation, except those disputes covered by FEDERAL LABOR STANDARD PROVISIONS (if applicable), whether involving law or fact, extra work, and/or all claims for alleged breach of the Contract shall within ten (10) calendar days of commencement of the dispute be presented by the Contractor to the Town for decision. All papers pertaining to claims shall be filed in quadruplicate. Such notice need not detail the amount of the claim but shall state the facts surrounding the claim in sufficient detail to identify the claim, together with its character and scope. At all time(s) during the pendency of a dispute, the Contractor shall proceed with the work as directed. Any claim not presented within the time limit specified in this paragraph shall be deemed to have been waived by the Contractor.
- b) The Contractor shall submit in detail its claim and proof thereof. Each decision by the Town shall be final. Each decision by the Town will be in writing and mailed to the Contractor by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, directed to the Contractor's last known address.
- c) If the Contractor does not agree with any decision of the Town, it shall in no case allow the dispute to delay the work but shall notify the Town promptly that it is proceeding with the work under protest.

d)

53) CONTRACTOR INSURANCE:

For contracts not exceeding \$500,000.00 dollars the following insurance requirements shall be met:

The Contractor shall, at its own expense, procure and maintain, with insurers acceptable to the Town (the "Owner"), the types and amounts of insurance conforming to the minimum requirements set forth herein. The Contractor shall not commence work until the required insurance is in force and evidence of insurance acceptable to the Owner has been provided to and approved by the Owner. As evidence of compliance with the insurance required herein, the Contractor shall furnish Owner with (a) a fully completed satisfactory Certificate of Insurance evidencing all coverage required herein, with a copy of the actual notice of cancellation endorsement(s) as issued on the policies and a copy of the actual additional insured endorsement as issued on the Commercial General Liability policy, signed by an authorized representative of the insurer(s) verifying inclusion of Owner's officials, officers and employees as Additional Insureds in the Commercial General Liability coverage; (b) the original of the policy(ies); or (c) other evidence satisfactory to Owner. Such evidence shall include thirty (30) days written notice of cancellation to the Owner for all coverage. With respect to Property Insurance, an appropriate Evidence of Property Insurance form, or a copy of the policy itself shall be satisfactory evidence of insurance. Until such insurance is no longer required by this Contract, the Contractor shall provide the Owner with renewal or replacement evidence of insurance at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration or termination of such insurance.

(1) Worker's Compensation Insurance:

(a) Such insurance shall be no more restrictive than that provided by the Standard Workers' Compensation Policy, as filed for use in Florida by the National Council of Compensation Insurance, without restrictive endorsements. In addition to coverage for the Florida Workers' Act, where appropriate, coverage is to be included for the Federal Employer's Liability Act and any other applicable Federal or State law. The policy shall be endorsed to provide the Owner with thirty (30) days' notice of cancellation. The minimum amount of coverage (inclusive of any amount provided by an umbrella or excess policy) shall be:

(i) Part One: "Statutory"

(ii) Part Two: \$500,000.00 Each Accident

\$500,000.00 Disease-Policy Limit \$500,000.00 Disease-Each Employee

(b) The policy shall be endorsed to waive the insurer's right to subrogation against Owner and its officials, officers and employees in the manner which would result from the attachment of National Council on

Compensation Insurance's (NCCI) Waiver of Our Right to Recover from Others' Endorsement (Advisory Form WC 00 03 13) with Owner and its officials, officers and employees scheduled thereon.

(2) General Liability Insurance:

- (a) Such insurance shall be no more restrictive than that provided by the standard Commercial General Liability Form (ISO Form CG 00 01) as filed for use in the State of Florida without any restrictive endorsements 1 other than those required by ISO or the State of Florida or those described below. The policy must be endorsed to provide the Owner with thirty (30) days' notice of cancellation. The coverage may include restrictive endorsements excluding coverage for liability arising out of:
 - (i) Mold, Fungus or Bacteria
 - (ii) Terrorism
 - (iii) Sexual Molestation
- (b) Unless the work under this Contract includes activities, which would be the subject of such exclusions, the coverage may also exclude coverage for liability arising out of:
 - (i) Architects and Engineers Professional Liability
 - (ii) Exterior Insulation and Finish Systems (EIFS)
- (c) The minimum limits (inclusive of amounts provided by an umbrella or excess policy) shall be:

(i) \$1,000,000.00	General Aggregate
(ii) \$1,000,000.00	Products/Completed Operations Aggregate
(iii)\$1,000,000.00	Personal and Advertising Injury
(iv) \$1,000,000.00	Each Occurrence

(3) Automobile Liability Insurance:

Such insurance shall be no more restrictive than that provided by Section II (Liability Coverage) of the most recent version of the standard Business Auto Policy (ISO Form CA 00 01) without restrictive endorsements, including coverage for liability contractually assumed, and shall cover all owned, non- owned, and hired autos used in connection with the performance of the work. The policy must be endorsed to provide the Owner with thirty (30) days' notice of cancellation. Such insurance shall not be subject to any aggregate limit and the minimum limits (inclusive of any amounts provided by an umbrella or excess policy) shall be:

(i) \$1,000,000.00 Each Occurrence – BI/PD Combined

(4) Property Insurance:

- (a) If the Contract includes: (1) construction of a new above-ground structure or structures; (2) any addition(s), improvement(s), alteration(s) or repair(s) to an existing above-ground structure or structures; or (3) the installation of machinery or equipment into an existing structure or structures, the Contractor shall provide, in a policy acceptable to Owner, "all risk" (i.e., Special Form) property insurance on any such construction, additions, machinery or equipment. The amount of the insurance shall be no less than the estimated replacement value at the time of the Owner's final acceptance of such new structures, addition(s), improvement(s), alteration(s), repair(s), machinery or equipment1. The coverage shall not be subject to any restriction with respect to occupancy or use by the Owner and, subject to thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Owner, shall remain in full effect until final acceptance by the Owner. The policy must be endorsed to provide the Owner with thirty (30) days' notice of cancellation. The Owner shall be an insured on this policy. The maximum deductible shall be \$500 per occurrence.
- (b) If the Contract includes: (1) construction of a new above-ground structure or structures located within a Special Flood Hazard Area (100 year floodplain), or (2) any addition(s), improvement(s), alteration(s) or repair(s) to an existing above-ground structure or structures located within a Special Flood Hazard Area (I 00 year floodplain), Flood insurance must also be provided on such new structure(s), addition(s), improvement(s), alteration(s) or repair(s) for the lesser of: (1) the estimated replacement value at the time of the final acceptance of such new structure(s), addition(s), improvement(s), alteration(s) or repair(s), or (2) the maximum amount of flood insurance available through the National Flood Insurance Program.
- (c) The insurance provided by the Contractor and its Subcontractors shall apply on a primary basis. Any insurance maintained by the Owner, shall be excess of and shall not contribute with the insurance provided by the Contractor and its subcontractors. Except as otherwise specifically authorized in this Contract, or for which prior written approval has been obtained hereunder, the insurance maintained by the Contractor shall apply on a first dollar basis without application of a deductible or self-insured retention. Under limited circumstances, the Owner may permit the application of a deductible or permit the Contractor to self-insure, in whole or in part, one or more of the insurance coverages required by the Contract. The Contractor shall pay on behalf of the Owner or Owner's officials, officers, and employees any deductible or self-insured

retention applicable to a claim against the Owner or the Owner's officials, officers, and employees.

- ii) The insurance provided by the Contractor shall be endorsed to provide that the Insurer waives its rights against the Owner and Owner's officials, officers, and employees.
- iii) Compliance with these insurance requirements shall not limit the liability of the Contractor or its Subcontractors. Any remedy provided to the Owner by the insurance provided by the Contractor and its subcontractors shall be in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedy (including, but not limited to, as an indemnitee of the Contractor) available to the Owner under the Contract or otherwise.
- iv) Neither approval nor failure to disapprove insurance furnished by the Contractor shall relieve the Contractor from responsibility to provide insurance as required by the Contract and the Contract Documents.

54) INDEMNIFICATION:

- a) The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Town, its elected officials, officers, agents, and employees, from and against any and all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and reasonable charges of attorneys, and other professionals, and all court or other dispute resolution costs), liabilities, expenditures, taxes and assessments, or cause and/or causes of action of any kind (including negligent, reckless, or willful or intentional acts or omission of the Contractor including but not limited to subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, materialmen, or agents of any tier or their respective employees and any person or organization directly or indirectly employed and/or utilized by the Contractor to perform or furnish any work or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable), to the extent arising from, relative to, or caused by the performance of any services as may be described or provided in the Contract Documents, and/or any services pursuant to the Contract issued hereunder. Such indemnification shall specifically include, but not be limited to, claims, damages, losses, liabilities, and expenses (including but not limited to all fees and reasonable charges of attorneys, and other professionals, and all court or other dispute resolution costs) to the extent arising out of or from:
 - i) Any omission, default, or negligent act of the Contractor including but not limited to subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, sub-consultants, sub-sub-consultants, materialmen, or agents of any tier or their respective employees, (including negligent, reckless, willful or intentional acts or omissions);
 - ii) Any and all bodily injuries, sickness, disease or death;
 - iii) Injury to or destruction of tangible property, including the loss of use resulting therefrom;

- iv) Other such damages, liabilities, or losses received or sustained by any person or persons during or on account of any operations connected with this Contract and/or any work arising out of the Contract Documents; and/or
- v) The violation of any federal, state, county or city laws, by-laws, ordinances, or regulations by the Contractor including but not limited to subcontractors, subsubcontractors, sub-consultants, sub-sub-consultants, materialmen, or agents of any tier or their respective employees and/or persons and/or entities under Contractor's direction and/or control.
- vi) Any indemnification hereunder shall not include claims of, or damages resulting from, gross negligence, or willful, wanton or intentional misconduct of the Town or its elected officials, officers, agents, and employees, or for statutory violation or punitive damages **except** and to the extent the statutory violation or punitive damages are caused by or result from the acts or omissions of the Contractor or any of the Contractor's subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, sub-consultants, sub- subconsultants, materialmen, or agents of any tier or their respective employees.
- b) This contractual indemnity is authorized by Section 725.06 of the Florida Statutes.
- c) This contractual indemnity shall survive the termination of this Contract.
- d) Contractor shall indemnify, and hold harmless the Town, its elected officials, officers, agents, and employees from liability for damages to persons or property caused by any act, omission, or default of Contractor (specifically including, but not limited to, Contractor's negligent or grossly negligent acts, omissions, or defaults) to the extent it relates to, pertains to, or arises from the Contract or Contractor's performance thereof. This contractual indemnity is authorized by Sections 725.06 and 725.08 (if applicable) of the Florida Statutes. Contractor also agrees to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the Town, its elected officials, officers, agents and employees, from all damages, liabilities, losses, claims, fines and fees, and from any and all suits and cause and causes of action of every name and description including but not limited to reasonable attorney's fees and reasonable attorney's fees in appellate or bankruptcy proceedings, that may be brought against the Town, its elected officials, officers, agents and employees, on account of any claims, fees, royalties, or costs for any invention or patent or for the infringement of any and all copyrights or patent rights claimed by any person, firm, or corporation.
- e) In the event of any claims or suits which fall within either of the foregoing indemnities, payment of any amount due pursuant thereto shall, after receipt of written notice by Contractor from the Town that such amount is due, be made by Contractor prior to the Town being required to pay same, or in the alternative, the Town, at the Town's option, may make payment of an amount so due and the Contractor shall promptly reimburse the Town for same, together with interest thereon at the rate of 6% per annum simple interest from the day of the Town's payment.

- f) Additionally, if Contractor, after receipt of written notice from the Town fails to make any payment due hereunder to the Town, Contractor shall pay any reasonable attorney's fees or costs incurred by the Town in securing any such payment from Contractor.
- g) Nothing contained herein is intended nor shall it be construed to waive the Town's Sovereign Immunity and/or the Town's limits of liability as set forth in Section 768.28 of the Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time, regardless of whether any such obligations are based in tort, contract, statute, strict liability, and negligence, product liability or otherwise. This obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or otherwise reduce any other right or obligation of indemnity which would otherwise exist in the Town's favor
- h) The Contractor shall not be entitled to an increase in the contract price or payment or compensation of any kind from Town for direct, indirect, consequential, impact or other costs, expenses or damages including but not limited to costs of acceleration or inefficiency or extended overhead, arising because of delay, disruption, interference or hindrance from any cause whatsoever whether such delay, disruption, interference or hindrance be reasonable or unreasonable, foreseeable or unforeseeable, or avoidable or unavoidable; provided, however, that this provision shall not preclude recovery of damages by Contractor for hindrances or delays due solely to fraud, bad faith or active malicious interference on the part of Town. Otherwise, Contractor shall be entitled only to extensions of the contract time as the sole and exclusive remedy for excusable events of delay.
- i) The Town reserves the right to include a provision for liquidated damages as a result of any delay by the Contractor.
- j) The Contractor and its subcontractors and/or sub-subcontractors agree by entering into the Contract to a waiver of subrogation for each required policy herein. When required by the insurer or should a policy condition not permit the Contractor or subcontractor or sub-subcontractor to enter into a pre-loss agreement to waive subrogation without an endorsement, then the Contractor or subcontractor or sub-subcontractor agree to notify the insurer and request the policy be endorsed with a "waiver of transfer of rights against others" or its equivalent. This "waiver of subrogation" requirement shall not apply to any policy, which includes a condition specifically prohibiting such an endorsement, or voids coverage should the Contractor or subcontractor or sub-subcontractor enter into such an agreement on a pre-loss basis.
- k) Acceptance by the Contractor of the last payment shall be a release to the Town and every officer and agent thereof, from all claim(s) and liability hereunder for anything done or furnished for, or relating to the work, or for any act or neglect of the Town or of any person relating to or affecting the work.
- 1) The parties agree that to the extent the written terms of this Indemnification conflict with any provisions of Florida law or Florida Statute(s), in particular Sections 725.06 and 725.08 of the Florida Statutes, the written terms of this Indemnification shall be

deemed by any court of competent jurisdiction to be modified in such a manner as to be in full and complete compliance with all such laws or statutes and to contain such limiting conditions, or limitations of liability, or to not contain any unenforceable, or prohibited term or terms, such that this Indemnification shall be enforceable in accordance with and to the greatest extent permitted by Florida law.

55) BID BOND:

- a) In cases where the bid price exceeds \$30,000.00, each bid must be accompanied by a certified check, cashier's check or a bid bond in an amount not less than five per-cent (5%) of the base bid, as guarantee that the Contractor will not withdraw from the competition after the opening of the bids, and will, within twenty-five (25) calendar days after receipt of written notice of award, enter into the Contract with the Town in accordance with the Contract Documents. Should the Contractor fail to enter into a contract, the bid bond shall be forfeited as liquidated damages.
- b) No proposal or bid shall be considered unless accompanied by a bid bond in the amount and form specified.

56) PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND:

- a) In cases where the bid price exceeds \$30,000.00 and/or for utility contracts covered by Section 180.24 of the Florida Statutes, the successful bidder shall be required to furnish a performance bond in an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price as security for the faithful performance of the contract. The Contractor shall also furnish a payment bond in an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price as security for the payment of all persons performing labor on the project under the contract and furnishing material(s).
- b) The performance bond and the payment bond may be in one or separate instruments in accordance with applicable law. Subject bonds are due within twenty-five (25) calendar days after written notice of award is received. Subject bonds shall also be recorded in the public records of Polk County [per F.S. 255.05(l)(a)] with proof of the recording furnished with the bonds or a certified recorded copy.

57) BONDING COMPANY QUALIFICATIONS:

- a) All bonds shall be written through a reputable and responsible surety bond agency licensed to do business in the State of Florida and with a surety company or corporation meeting the following specifications:
 - i) Minimum rating of "A-" or better;
 - ii) Financial Size Category of "VII" according to the A.M. Best Company; and

- iii) Current Certificate of Authority as acceptable surety on Federal Bonds in accordance with the latest edition of the United States Treasury Department Circular 570 entitled "Companies Holding Certificates of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on Federal Bonds and As Acceptable Reinsurance Companies" and shall be accepted for an amount not exceeding the underwriting limitations thereon.
- b) All surety companies are subject to approval and may be rejected by the Town without cause in the same manner that bids may be rejected.
- c) **Awards of \$500,000 or less**: Bonds shall be written with a surety company meeting the qualifications as set forth in Paragraph a) above, or the qualifications set forth in Section 287.0935 of the Florida Statutes.
- d) **Power of Attorney**: An Attorney-in-fact which signs a contract bond shall file with said bond a certified and effectively dated copy of the power of attorney. The power of attorney shall bear the raised seal of the surety company.
- e) The failure to furnish the required bond(s) within twenty-five (25) calendar days or within such extended period as the Town may grant shall constitute a default, and the Town may either award the contract to the next most responsive and responsible bidder or re-advertise for bids, and may charge against the original successful bidder the difference between the amount of its bid and the amount for which a contract for the work is subsequently executed, irrespective of whether the amount thus due exceeds the amount of the bid bond. If a more favorable bid is received by re-advertising, the defaulting bidder shall have no claim against the Town for a refund.

58) PAYMENT:

The Contract Documents shall set forth the terms and condition(s) relating to the contract price, payment(s), timing of payment(s), progress payment(s), and final payment. The Contract Documents shall be negotiated, approved, and executed by the Town and Contractor no later than 30 calendar days following the date on which the Town awards the contract and/or project.

59) LIENS:

No liens of any type shall be allowed, including labor, materials, rentals, or services furnished.

60) GUARANTEE:

- a) The Contractor shall guarantee all materials, equipment, and workmanship for a period of no less than one (1) year from the date the Town accepts the completed project in its entirety. The Contractor shall replace, repair, or restore any faulty materials, equipment, work, and incidental damage during this period of guarantee.
- b) Neither the final payment nor any provision in the Contract Documents shall relieve the Contractor of the responsibility for negligence or faulty materials or workmanship

within the extent and period provided by law. Upon written notice, the Contractor shall remedy all defects due thereto and pay all expenses for any damage to other work and/or property of the Town resulting therefrom.

- c) A notice of defect(s) will be issued by the Town. Upon receipt by the Contractor of such written notice, the Contractor shall immediately investigate any and all claimed defects. Should the Contractor feel that any claimed defect is invalid, it shall so advise, in writing, to the Town within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of said notice.
- d) Defects shall be remedied by the Contractor within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of notice. Within ten (10) calendar days after completion of such corrective measures, the Contractor shall notify the Town, in writing, of correction in defects. The Contractor shall transmit to the Town a copy of each certified statement as required below.
- e) Each Subcontractor shall transmit to the Contractor, in duplicate, on its business letterhead, addressed to both the Contractor and Town, a certified statement as to:
 - i) The work performed and/or materials supplied; and
 - ii) A guarantee in accordance with requirements of the Contract Documents appertaining to said work and/or materials.

61) THE CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT:

- a) The Town will require the Contractor to execute a contract. Upon execution of the Contract, the Contract and Contract Documents become the Contract between the Town and Contractor.
- b) The contract between the Town and Contractor shall be negotiated, approved, and executed by the Town and Contractor no later than 30 calendar days following the date on which the Town awards the contract and/or project to the Contractor.
- c) The Contractor cannot claim modification of the Contract because of any representation made by an employee of the Town or any other person.
- d) In the event the contract is not negotiated, approved, and executed within the time period set forth herein, the Town may, in its sole discretion, award the project and/or contract to the next most responsive and responsible bidder or withdraw the RFP and re-advertise the RFP.

62) CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE:

a) The Contractor shall submit to the Town for review and approval, a construction schedule at least five (5) business days before the start of project.

- b) The Contractor shall complete the work, phase(s), and/or part(s) of the project in the order set forth in the approved construction schedule.
- c) The Contractor's receipt of an approved construction schedule does not authorize the Contractor to begin work on the project.
- d) The Town's issuance of a Notice to Proceed authorizes the Contractor to commence work on the project.

63) FINAL INSPECTION:

- a) When the work on this project(s) is substantially completed, the Contractor shall notify the Town, in writing, at least three (3) business days before the inspection date that the work will be ready for final inspection on a definite date. The Contractor shall expressly provide the date for final inspection.
- b) Prior to the final inspection, the Contractor shall clear the project site of all trash, rubbish, and debris and restore all damage done to the project site and adjacent areas during the performance of the project. The Contractor's duty to clear the project site prior to final inspection does not relieve the Contractor of the obligation to keep the project site free from trash, rubbish, and debris during the performance of the Contract.

64) CONSTRUCTION AND CONSULTING EVALUATION:

- a) The award of contracts by the Town for construction and/or consulting service(s) is based on the lowest responsive/responsible bid (for construction) or in accordance with the guidelines and requirements of Section 287.055 of the Florida Statutes (Consultants Competitive Negotiation Act) for applicable consulting services. In addition, the Town will consider the previous performance of any bidder who may have completed work for the Town or other entity
- b) A Construction and Consulting Evaluation Form shall be completed by the department head or Town Manager for the project. The form shall be completed upon the completion of the project and submitted to the Office of the Town Clerk for retention.
- c) This form will be completed on all firms performing construction and/or consulting work for the Town of Dundee. Furthermore, the Town may, at its discretion, provide this form to other entities for whom the noted firm has completed work.

WORK SUMMARY

PART 1 – GENERAL

1.01 – REQUIREMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS

PART 2 – PRODUCTS

PART 3 – CONTRACT CLOSEOUT

PART 1 – GENERAL

1.01 – REQUIREMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS

A. "FY 2023-24 1 -FIRE DEPARTMENT MINI PUMPER"

The Town of Dundee (the "Town") is seeking proposals on and/or for one (1) FIRE DEPARTMENT PUMP TRUCK (the "Truck") in accordance with the requirements and specification set forth herein and as depicted by **Exhibit "A"** which is attached to the Work Summary and incorporated herein by reference. The Town requires certain items to be included in the Bid, as follows: (1) options to finance though the vendor/dealership or, in the alternative, the right and ability for the Town to select, in its sole discretion, to finance though a bank or lending institution the purchase price of and/or for the one (1) FIRE DEPARTMENT PUMP TRUCK; and (2) the Truck must be delivered and ready for route.

In addition to the aforementioned, the information and specification(s) required for the Truck and this RFP 24-05 are, as follows:

- 1. Bidder must provide Lead time of the units. (from build to delivery)
- 2. Budder must include all warranty on the body and chassis. (3-5year preferred)
- 3. List of references that currently operate these styles of trucks.

SPECIFICATIONS:

• **DIMENSIONS:**

- Overall, Height, < 96.00"
- Overall Length < 26'
- Overall Width, 96.00"
- Pump Module Width, 24.00"
- Angle of Approach, NFPA Minimum, 8 Degrees
- Angle of Departure, NFPA Minimum, 8 Degrees
- NFPA 1901 REQUIREMENTS -INITIAL ATTACK 7.000 02/14/22

NFPA 1901-2016

- NFPA 1901-2016 Compliance, Initial Attack
- Center of Gravity, Calculated
- Road Test Certification

PLACARDS and LABELING

- Label, FAMA #7: Seated and Belted
- Label, FAMA #10: Cab Equipment Mounting
- Label, FAMA #15: "Helmet Worn in Cab"
- Label, FAMA #17: "Vehicle Backing"
- Label, Chassis Data Labels, 1901
- Label, Overall, Height, Length, GVWR
- Label, Warning, "No Ride Rear Step"

COMMERCIAL CHASSIS

- Ford, F-550, DRW, 4x4, 4-Dr, 203.7" WB, XL
- Payload Plus Upgrade Package
- Elec Shift on the Fly (ESOF)
- Skid Plates (Extended and Crew Cab Only)
- Engine, 6.7L Power Stroke Diesel
- Transmission, Automatic, 10-Spd
- Fire/Rescue Prep Pkg
- Operator Commanded Regeneration (OCR)
- Fuel Tank, 40 Gallon, Aft, w/ Aux fuel tap
- Rear Axle Ratio, Limited Slip, 4.88 (6.7L)
- Block Heater
- PTO Provision
- Cab, Crew, 4-Dr
- Power Equipment Group
- 40/20/40 Vinyl Front Bench Seat
- 60/40 Rr Bench Seat
- XL Value Package
- Tires and Wheels: F450/550 (4x4)
- Wheels, 19.50" Steel
- Tires, 225/70Rx19.5G BSW
- Ford Warranty, Superduty

CHASSIS PAINT COLOR 1

- Cab Paint, Single Color, Race Red, PQ
- CHASSIS MODS 7.000 02/14/22

• CAB STEPS, RUNNING BRDS -

■ FORD OPTION: Running Boards, Crew Cab, NFPA

WINCHES/ BRUSH GUARDS/ REPLACEMENT BUMPERS

- NO Front Bumper Replacement PTS
- FORD OPTION: Grille Guard, w/ winch Mount
- Winch, 12,000 lbs., Wire Rope

• HITCHES-TIE OFFS-RECEIVERS

- Receiver Hitch, Rear, Class V, 2.00"
- Trailer Hitch Power Plug, 12V, 7 Prong

FORD SEATING

- FORD/ RAM OPTION: Center Seat Removal for Console
- Seating Capacity, Four (4)
- FORD OPTION: SCBA Seats, Valor, Rear, (2), w/ EZ Lock SCBA Brkt
- Label, FAMA #11: SCBA Seat Insert
- Seat Belt Web Length, Commercial Chassis, Non-NFPA 2016 Compliant
- Seat Belts, Supplied by Chassis Mfgr, Ford, Non-NFPA 2016

TIRE PRESSURE MONITORING SYSTEMS

Tire Prss Monitoring Dvce, LED AirGuard, 6 Wheel

WHEEL TRIM and COVERS

■ FORD OPTION: Wheel Covers, SS, 19.50"

EXHAUST SYSTEMS

- Chassis Exhaust Extension, RH Side
- Exhaust Heat Shield, Under Body Components
- Label, FAMA #04: "Hot Exhaust Dangers"

FRAME PREP and MODIFICATIONS

- Chassis Preparation, Commercial
- Front Tow Hooks Chassis Supplied
- Not Required, Vehicle Data Recorder & Seat Belt Monitor, Ford, Non-NFPA 2017

CONSOLES and EQUIPMENT

- FORD OPTION: Center Console, Aluminum
- Console Option, Cup Holders, (2)

BATTERY SYSTEMS and SHORELINE PLUG-INS

- Master Body Disconnect Switch
- Indicator Light, Mst Body Disconnect, Green
- Kussmaul, Chief 4012, 40 Amp
- Battery Charger Location, Per Manufacturer
- Shore Power Inlet, Kussmaul, Super Auto-Eject 20A
- Auto-Eject Mating Plug, NEMA 5-20P
- Chief Status Center w/ Cover, 091-55-266-YW, Yellow
- Auto Eject Location, Per Manufacturer
- Aux Air Cmp, Kussmaul, 12V

Aux Air Compressor Location, Per Manufacturer

• BACK UP ALARM

- Back Up Alarm, 97db
- 12 VOLT POWER SOURCES
- USB Port, Kussmaul, Dual, 4.8amp total, 2.4amp each

PUMP AND PLUMBING - FOUTS 4 - 7.000 02/14/22

- Pump Package, Side mount, Fouts 4, Hale, DSD, Midship
- Fire Pump, Hale DSD, 1 Stage, Midship
- Pump Warranty, Hale, 5 Year (2 Year Parts & Labor, Parts Only Years 3-5)
- Pump Manuals, Elec, (2)
- Pump Flow Rating, Hale, DSD, 1500 GPM
- Altitude Requirements, 0' to 2000 Feet Above Sea Level

• MASTER INTAKE(S)

- Intake, 6.00", NST, Ungated, LH Side, Pump Panel
- Cap, 6.00", Chrome Long Hndl, NST, Fouts Logo
- Intake, 6.00", NST, Ungated, RH Side, Pump Panel
- Cap, 6.00", Chrome Long Hndl, NST, Fouts Logo

PUMP MODS

Pump Installation, Midship Split-Shaft, Ford 450/550 1

• PUMP SHIFT, FORD, HALE, MIDSHIP

- Pump Shift, Hale, Air, Midship w/ Air System Install 1
- Pump Shift Control, Elec Over Air, IC 1

• PUMP EQUIPMENT, HALE,

- Valves: Akron, Gen II 1
- Drains, 0.75" Mnl, Class1, Lift Handle 1
- Discharge Gauges, Class 1, 2.50", (0-400 psi), White Face 1
- Gauge Bezels, Class1, Chrome 1
- Pump Primer, Hale ESP-PVG, 12V Elec, Fluidless 1
- Fuse, 250 amp, Primer 1
- Anodes, (3), Alloy: 2 Suction, 1 Discharge, Hale 1
- Thermal Relief Valve, TRV-120 1
- Pump Cooler Valve, Hale 1

PRESSURE GOVERNOR

Governor, Class 1, Sentry 1

• GATED INTAKE

- Aux Suction, 2.50", LH Side, Pump Panel 1
- Intake Valve Control, Mnl Swing Type-Adjacent 1
- Plug, 2.50" Chrome, NST, w/Chain

TANK TO PUMP VALVE

■ Valve, Tank to Pump, 3.00", Air 1

• TANK FILL VALVE

- Valve, Tank Re-Fill, 2.00" 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Lckng, Class 1, CP T-Hndl 1

• DISCHARGE, LH PANEL

- Discharge, 2.50", LH Side, Pump Panel 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Locking, Class 1, CP T-handle 1
- Discharge, Elbow, 30d, 2.50" MNST, Integral, Class1 1
- Cap, 2.50" Chrome, NST, w/ Chain 1
- Discharge NOT Foam Capable 1

• DISCHARGE, RH FRONT PANEL

- Discharge, 3.00", RH Side, Pump Panel, Front 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Locking, Class 1, CP T-handle 1
- Discharge, Elbow, 30d, 3.00" MNST, Integral, Class 1 1
- Cap, 3.00" Chrome, NST, w/ Chain 1
- Discharge NOT Foam Capable 1

• DISCHARGE, RH REAR PANEL

- Discharge, Push Pull, 3.00" x 4.00", RH Side, Pump Panel, Rr 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Locking, Class 1, CP T-handle 1
- Discharge Adapt, Straight, 3.00"-4.00" MNST, Class1 1
- Discharge Elbow, TFT, 30 deg, 5.00"Stz S x 4.00"F NH S RL 1
- Cap, TFT, 5.00" Storz w/ Lanyard 1
- Discharge NOT Foam Capable 1

• DISCHARGE, HOSEBED PRE-CONNECT

- Discharge, Preconnect, 2.50", Front of Hose Bed, RH 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Locking, Class 1, CP T-handle 1
- Discharge NOT Foam Capable

• DISCHARGE(S), CROSSLAYS

- Crosslay Discharge #1- One (1) 1.75", Above Mod 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Locking, Class 1, CP T-handle 1

- Discharge Foam Capable 1
- Crosslay Discharge #2- One (1) 1.75", Above Mod 1
- Valve Control, Pull Rod, LH Side, Locking, Class 1, CP T-handle 1
- Discharge Foam Capable 1

MASTER GAUGES

Master Gauges, Pressure Governor 1

• TANK LEVEL INDICATOR(S)

Water Level Gauge, Class1 "ITL-40B", Blue, Pump Panel 1

PUMP ENCLOSURE

- Pump House, Side Mount, Ext Alum, 24.00" 1
- Pump Panels, 14 GA, Brushed Finish, 304 SS 1

CROSSLAYS/ DUNNAGE AREA

- Crosslay Config, (2) Hosebeds, Double Stack 1
- Crosslay Divider, 3/16" Alum, w/ Hand Holes 1
- Vinyl Crosslay Cover, Red 1

• PUMP PANEL/ ENCLOSURE LIGHTS

- Pump Panel Lt, LH Side, LED, Strip 1
- Pump Panel Lt, RH Side, LED, Strip 1
- Pump Compt. Lht, LED Strip 1
- Lt, Controls, Switch on pump panel 1

PUMP MODULE RUNNING BOARDS 1

- Running Board, LH Pump Panel, Alum T/P, TM 1
- Running Board, RH Pump Panel, Alum T/P, TM

• PUMP PANEL LABELING

- Label, FAMA 22, Hose Restraint Required 1
- Label, FAMA 18, Intake and Discharge Cap Pressure 1
- Label, FAMA 25, Trained Personal Only 1
- Label, Pump ID Plate, IC 1
- Labels, Color Coded, Innovative Controls 1

FOAM SYSTEM 1

- Foam System, Hale SmartFOAM, 2.1A 1
- Foam Level Gauge, Class A, Class1 "ITLF-40G", Green 1

RESCUE BODY

WATER TANK 1

- Tank, 300 Gal Water, 15 Gal Foam, Poly 1
- Label, FAMA 19, "Foam Type Mixing" 1

BODY 1

Alum, 108.00" L x 95.00" W, Body Const 1

• LEFT SIDE COMPARTMENTS 1

- L1, Ahd Rr Whls Full Ht Comp't Roll Up Dr 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 41.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Swtch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1
- Shelf Trac, Vertical, Alum 1
- Shelf, Alum, Adjustable, ea 1
- L2, Upr Hgh Sde Sgle Comp't Roll Up Dr 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 21.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Swtch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1
- Shelf Trac, Vertical, Alum 1
- Shelf, Alum, Adjustable, ea 1
- L3, Bhnd Rr Whls Full Ht Comp't Roll Up Dr 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 41.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Swtch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1
- Shelf Trac, Vertical, Alum 1
- Shelf, Alum, Adjustable, ea 1

• RIGHT SIDE COMPARTMENTS

- R1, Ahd Rr Whls Full Ht Comp't Roll Up Dr 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 41.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Swtch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1
- Shelf Trac, Vertical, Alum 1
- Shelf, Alum, Adjustable, ea 1
- R2, Upr Hgh Sde Sgle Comp't Roll Up Dr 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 21.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Swtch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1
- Shelf Trac, Vertical, Alum 1
- Shelf, Alum, Adjustable, ea 1
- R3, Bhnd Rr Whls Full Ht Comp't Roll Up Dr 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 41.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Switch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1
- Shelf Trac, Vertical, Alum 1
- Shelf, Alum, Adjustable, ea 1

REAR BODY DESIGN- FLAT BACK 1

- CR1, Rr Cntr Comp't Full Ht Roll Up 1
- Roll-UP Door, Amdor, Satin Finish 1
- Cmpt LED Strip Lht, Luma Bar, 13.00", Clear White, (1) Ea Cmpt 1
- Cmpt Lt, Dr Swtch, Amdor, Magnetic, Ea 1

HOSEBED

- Hose Bed, Grating, Extrd Alum 1
- Hose Bed, Cross Divider, Fwd 22.00" 1
- Hose Bed Dimensions: 49.75"W x 85.00"L x 15.00"T 1
- Hose Bed, Strge Cpcty, 34.00 Cubic Feet 1
- NO Hose Bed Storage Capacity PTS 1
- Hosebed, Divider, 3/16" Alum, ea 1
- Hsbd Cvr, Vnyl, Velcro, Red 1

• EQUIPMENT STORAGE

- Tray, Suction Hose, (2), LH, Above Compt 1
- Hose Capacity, (2) 8' Sections 1
- Ladder Mtg, RH, Above Compt, (1) PEL-12 1

WHEEL WELL AREA

- Whl Well Cmpt, (3), Sngl SCBA Tubes, Alum Dr 1
- Whl Well Prv, LH Rear, Diesel Fuel Fluid Fill 1

REAR STEPS

- Folding Steps, (2) LH Rear, IC 3004234, w/ (1) LED Step Lt 1
- Lt, Controls, Work/ Step Lts, Park Brake 1

EXTERIOR GRAB RAILS

Grab Rails, (2), Rear, Vertical 1

COMPARTMENT PACKAGES

NO FMI Compartment Packages - PTS 1

• 12V ELECTRICAL SYSTEM - FOUTS 4 - 7.000 02/14/22 1 ELECTRICAL Electrical, 12V 1

NFPA Electrical System 1

GROUND LIGHTING

- Ground Lts, (4), Chassis, 4-Dr. LED 1
- Ground Lts, (2) Forward Rr Whls, LED 1

- Ground Lts, (2) Rr Step, LED 1
- Lt Swtch, Ground Lts w/ Park Brake 1

DOOR OPEN / HAZARD WARNING LIGHT INDICATOR SYSTEMS

Lht, Hazard, LED, Flashing, Red

REAR DIRECTIONALS/ DOT LIGHTS

- Rear Brake/Tail/Turn/Backup, Whelen M6 1
- Tail/Brake Lts, Whelen, LED, M6, Red Lens (Pair) 1
- Turn Signals, Whelen, LED, M6, Amber Lens (Pair) 1
- Backup Lts, Whelen, LED, M6 (Pair) 1
- Tail Lt Bezel, 4 Lights, Whln M6 (Pair), ABS Chrome 1
- Fouts4 Body LED Marker Lights 1
- Marker Lts, 0.75" LED, DOT Required 1
- Reflectors, Red, (4), Rear Body 1
- Lht , License Plate, LED 1

TRAFFIC ADVISOR

■ Traffic Advisor, Whelen TAL85, 48.00" LED 1

• SCENE LIGHT(S) - UPPER BODY 1

- Scene Lts, Whelen, Side Facing Upper Front, (2) M6ZC 1
- Scene Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6ZC, LED, Ea 1
- Scene Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6ZC, LED, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M6 Series, Ea 2
- Scene Lts, Whelen, Side Facing Upper Rear, (2) M6ZC 1
- Scene Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6ZC, LED, Ea 1
- Scene Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6ZC, LED, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M6 Series, Ea 2
- Scene Lts, Whelen, Upper Rear Body, (2) M6ZC 1
- Scene Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6ZC, LED, Ea 1
- Scene Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6ZC, LED, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M6 Series, Ea 2
- Left Scene Swtch, Rocker, Single Switch, Cab 1
- Rear Scene Swtch, Rocker, Single Switch, Cab 1
- Right Scene Swtch, Rocker, Single Switch, Cab 1
- Scene Lt Swtch, Rr Scene Lts, Auto w/ Reverse 1

• BACKUP CAMERA

- Rearview Camera, 7.00" Color Monitor
- Monitor Location, Rear View Mirror

WARNING LIGHTS PACKAGE

Warning light flash pattern, Default NFPA 1

LIGHTBAR

- Lht Bar, Federal, 53" Vision SLR 1
- White Lights, "Blocking Right of Way" 1
- Lt Bar Swtch, Rocker, Single Switch/ Master Warn, Cab 1
- Lightbar Mount, MKEZ7 1

• UPPER LEVEL WARNING LIGHTS 1

- Warn Lts, Whelen, Side Facing Upper Front, (2) M6 Series LED 1
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M6 Series, Ea 2
- Warn Lts, Whelen, Side Facing Upper Rr, (2) M6 Series LED 1
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M6 Series, Ea 2
- Warn Lts, Whelen, Upper Rear, (2) M6 Series LED 1
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M6 Series, Ea 2
- Upper Warn Lt. Swtch, Rocker, Single Switch/ Master Warn, Cab 1

LOWER LEVEL WARNING LIGHTS 1

- Warning Lts, Whelen, Lower Warn Lt, (2) M4 Series LED 1
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M4 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M4 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M4 Series, Ea 2
- Warning Lts, Whelen, Intrsct, (2) M4 Series LED 1
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M4 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M4 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M4 Series, Ea 2
- Warning Lts, Whelen, Low Mid Body (2) M7 Series LED 1
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M7 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M7 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Flange, Chrome, Warning Lt, Whln, M7 Series, Ea 1
- Warning Lts, Whelen, Low Rr (2) M6 Series LED
- Warning Lt, Driver, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Warning Lt, Officer, Whelen, M6 Series, Red LED, Clear Lens, Ea 1
- Bezel(s), Taillights
- Lower Warn Lt. Swtch, Rocker, Single Switch/ Master Warn, Cab

AUDIBLE WARNING

- Siren, Whelen Howler Siren Amplifier
- Siren, Whelen, 295SLSA1, 100/200 watt
- Speaker, Whelen, 100 watt, SA315, RH Side
- Label, FAMA #42: "Siren Noise"

• PAINT/ PREP/ STRIPE

PAINT AND FINISH

- Cab, Standard Color
- Anti-Corrosion Protection, ECK
- Body Undercoating, Rescue Body
- Compartment Interiors, Side, Zolatone

• PAINT TWO TONE CAB

Wheel Rims, As Provided with Chassis

• LETTERING AND STRIPING

- Rear Cheveron Striping, Red/ Florescent Yellow-Geen
- DEALER SUPPLIED GRAPHICS PACKAGE

• LOOSE EQUIPMENT

WARRANTY REQUIREMENTS

- General Warranty, (1) Year
- Body Warranty, Alum, (10) Year
- Plumbing Warranty, Stainless Steel, (10) Year
- Paint Warranty, (5) Year, PPG
- Electrical Warranty, (2) Year
- Akron Brass Warranty, (10) Year Valves, (5) Year Elec
- Whelen Warranty, (2) Year Siren, (5) Year LED
- Whelen Warranty, Limited Lifetime
- Kussmaul Warranty

PART 2 – PRODUCTS

All products and material shall meet or exceed all specifications set forth by this RFP, as described in either graphical or in written form, and/or as required in writing by the Town of Dundee.

PART 3 – CONTRACT CLOSEOUT

1.1 CLOSEOUT PROCEDURES

- **A.** Submit written certification that Contract Documents have been reviewed, work has been inspected and work is complete in accordance with Contract Documents and ready for Town inspection.
- **B.** Submit final application for payment identifying total adjusted contract sum, previous payments, and sum remaining due.

1.2 ADJUSTING

A. Adjust operating products and equipment to ensure smooth and unhindered operation.

1.3 WARRANTIES

A. Except as otherwise provided in this RFP, all work, product(s), equipment, materials, and workmanship shall be warranted for, at a minimum, one (1) calendar year from the date of acceptance by the Town Commission of the Town of Dundee, Florida.



BID FORM

FY 2023-2024 RFP 24-05 1 – Fire Department Mini Pumper

RETURN DATE: December 27, 2023

RETURN TO: Office of the Town Clerk

Attn: RFP 24-05 Town of Dundee P.O. Box 1000 202 East Main Street Dundee, Florida 33838

ITEM	QTY	UNIT	UNIT COST (\$)	TOTAL COST (\$)
1.				
2.				
3.				
4.				
5.				
6.				
7				
8.				
			TOTAL (\$)	

Bid Alternate

ITEM	QTY	UNIT	UNIT COST (\$)	TOTAL COST (\$)
1.				
2.				

ALL BID FORMS SHOULD INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION:

Company Submitting Bid:	
Company Address:	
Company City:	State: Zip:
Company Phone Number:	Fax Number:
Authorized Representative:	
Signature:	- Date:
Print Name:	Phone Number:
Title:	

NOTE: THE FAILURE TO FOLLOW THE BID PROTEST PROCEDURE REQUIREMENTS WITHIN THE TIME FRAMES PRESCRIBED HEREIN AS ESTABLISHED BY THE TOWN OF DUNDEE, FLORIDA, SHALL CONSTITUTE A WAIVER OF BIDDERS PROTEST AND ANY RESULTING CLAIMS.

EXHIBIT – A



AFFIDAVIT CERTIFICATION IMMIGRATION LAWS

THE TOWN OF DUNDEE, FLORIDA, WILL NOT INTENTIONALLY AWARD TOWN CONTRACTS TO ANY CONTRACTOR WHO KNOWINGLY EMPLOYS UNAUTHORIZED ALIEN WORKERS, CONSTITUTING A VIOLATION OF THE EMPLOYMENT PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN <u>8 U.S.C. SECTION 1324 a(e)</u> AND/OR SECTION 274A(e) OF THE IMMIGRATION AND NATIONALITY ACT ("INA").

THE TOWN OF DUNDEE, FLORIDA, MAY CONSIDER THE EMPLOYMENT BY ANY CONTRACTOR OF UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS A VIOLATION OF SECTION 274A(e) OF THE INA. SUCH VIOLATION BY THE RECIPIENT OF THE EMPLOYMENT PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN SECTION 274A(e) OF THE INA SHALL BE GROUNDS FOR UNILATERAL CANCELLATION OF THE CONTRACT BY THE TOWN OF DUNDEE.

BIDDER ATTESTS THAT THEY ARE FULLY COMPLIANT WITH ALL APPLICABLE IMMIGRATION LAWS (SPECIFICALLY TO THE 1986 IMMIGRATION ACT AND SUBSEQUENT AMENDMENTS).

Company Name			
Signature	Date:		
Printed Name			
Title			
PRIVATE PROVIDER FII	RM		
THIS SECTIO	N TO BE COMPLETED BY	A NOTARY PUBLIC:	
STATE OF	COUNTY	OF	
SWORN TO AND SUBSCR	IBED BEFORE ME THIS	DAY OF	, 20
NOTARY PUBLIC: CHECK	ONE PERSONALLY KNOW	N TO MEProduced	I.D
TYPE OF ID F	PRODUCED		
SIGN:			
DD INIT.			

NONCOLLUSION AFFIDAVIT OF BIDDER

State of Florida

County of	P	ol	K
-----------	---	----	---

County	y of Polk						
I		("Affiant"), b	eing first duly	sworn, depo	ses and says	that:	
(1)	Affiant is company) the	bidder that subm	(insert job title itted the attache	e) of d bid;		(ins	sert name of
(2)		y informed respect		ration and co	ontents of the	e attached bi	d and of all
(3)	Such bid is ge	nuine and is not a	a collusive or sh	am bid;			
	employees or or agreed, dire bid in connect from bidding i agreement or fix the price or cost element collusion, com Dundee or any	id Affiant nor ar parties in interes ectly or indirectly ion with the Common connection with collusion or common prices in the attact of the bid prices spiracy, connivate person interested prices quoted in spiracy, connivated prices quoted prices quoted in spiracy, connivated prices quoted prices quoted in spiracy, connivated prices quoted quoted prices quoted quoted quoted prices quoted quo	t, including Affi with any other I tract for which the h such Contract; munication or cached bid or of a e, or the bid price ance or unlawfund in the propose	iant, has in a bidder, firm of the attached be nor in any monference with any other bidder of any other lagreement, d Contract; and are fair ar	ny way collu- or person to su oid has been s nanner, directl oth any other der; nor has f er bidder; nor any advanta and	ded, conspired by or indirectly bidder, firm ixed any over has secured age against the dare not tail	ed, connived sive or sham has refrained by, sought by or person to thead, profit through any he Town of
		entatives, owners		•	•	the Armant	of any of its
	THIS S	ECTION TO	BE COMPLE	TED BY A	NOTARY	PUBLIC:	
STAT	E OF			COUNTY C)F		
SWOF	RN TO AND S	SUBSCRIBED 1	BEFORE ME	THIS	DAY O	F	, 20
NOTA	RY PUBLIC:	CHECK ONE	PERSONALL	Y KNOWN	TO ME	Produced I	.D
	TYPE	OF ID PRODU	ICED				
SIGN:							

CERTIFICATION OF DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

I		("Undersigned"), certify that:			
	(1)	Undersigned is(insert job title) and duly authorized to act on behalf of the Contractorthat submitted the attached bid.			
	(2)	Undersigned acknowledges that Preference shall be given to businesses with drug-free workplace programs.			

- (3) Undersigned acknowledges that whenever two (2) or more bids which are equal with respect to price, quality, and service are received by the Town for the Purchasing of commodities or contractual services, a bid received from a business that certifies that it has implemented a drug-free workplace program shall be given preference in the award process.
- (4) In order to have a drug-free workplace program, a business shall:
 - (a) Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in-the workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition.
 - (b) Inform employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the business's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace, any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs, and the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.
 - (c) Give each employee engaged in providing the commodities or contractual services that are under bid a copy of the statement specified in subsection (a).
 - (d) In the statement specified in subsection (a), notify the employees that, as a condition of working on the commodities or contractual services that are under bid, the employee will abide by the terms of the statement and will notify the employer of any conviction of, or plea of guilty or nolo contendere to, any violation of Chapter 893 of the Florida Statutes or of any controlled substance law of the United States or any state, for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) days after such conviction.
 - (e) Impose a sanction on, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program if such is available in the employee's community, by any employee who is so convicted.
 - (f) Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of this section.

WORKPLACE, does hereby	on authorized to sign this CERTIFICATION OF DRUG-FREE certify that the Contractor,	
DATE:	NAME OF ENTITY:	
PHONE/FAX:		
ADDRESS:		
SIGNATURE:		
PRINT NAME:		

SALES TAX SAVINGS FORM

CONTRACT NUMBER:	
NAME OF PROJECT:	

MATERIALS	(1) Amount in Contract	(2) Sales Tax	(3) Net Amount

- (1) This is the amount to be deducted from contract by change order.
- (2) The amount of the sales tax included in the material purchase line item supplied by the Contractor.
- (3) The amount to be used by the Town to make the material purchase per the Contractor's stated quantities.